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October 30, 2008

The Board of County Commissioners
Citizens of Craven County

It is our pleasure to submit this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2008.

Generally accepted accounting principles require that management provide a narrative infroduction,
overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discus-
sion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should
be read in conjunction with it. The County’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of
independent auditors.

Responsibility for the accuracy, completeness and fairness of the presentations, including all disclosures,
rest with the County. We believe the data, as presented, is accurate in all material respects and fairly pre-
sent the County’s financial position and results of operations. Furthermore, we believe that all notes and
disclosures necessary to enable the reader to understand the County’s financial activity have been in-
cluded.

THE COUNTY

Craven County, chartered in 1712, utilizes a Commissioner-Manager form of government with seven
commissioners who serve four-year terms. The Chairperson is elected by the Commissioners each year
for a one year term. The County Manager, County Aitorney, and Clerk to the Board are appointed by,
and serve at the pleasure of the County Commissioners. The County Manager is responsible for adminis-
tering all affairs of the County and for management of all County employees.

Craven County is located midway along North Carolina’s lace work coastal fringe and is diverse in its
physical characteristics, demographics and economic base. The County’s land area totals approximately
712 square miles or 455,680 acres. Settled in 1710 by Swiss and German immigrants at the confluence
of the Trent and Neuse Rivers, New Bern, the county seat, is the second oldest town in the state. Rich in
history, it is the site of North Carolina’s Colonial Capitol and its first State Capitol. New Bern is also the
Birthplace of Pepsi Cola, a drink first concocted by Caleb Bradham, a local pharmacist, in 1898. Down-
town New Bern offers museums, shops, galleries, restaurants, historic sites, waterfront hotels, bed and
breakfast accommodations, marinas, convention center, parks, historic homes and churches. Tryon Pal-
ace Historic Sites & Gardens, the first permanent seat of colonial government in North Carolina, offers
visitors an opportunity to experience over 200 years of American history and acres of period inspired
gardens.



The City of Havelock, the second largest municipality in Craven County, is home to Cherry Point, the
largest Marine Corps Air Station on the East Coast, employing 5,400 civilian workers. The Air Station is
home of the 2™ Marine Aircraft Wing and sits on 13,164 acres of land in Craven County. The Fleet Rea-
diness Center (FRC) East (formerly known as NADEP), one of six {leet readiness centers operated by the
U, S. Navy, sits on nearly 150 acres on board Marine Corps Air Station Cherry Point. FRC East is the
largest industrial employer in eastern North Carolina. Their customers include 202 different Navy and
Marine Corps activities, 24 foreign nations, five U.S. Air Force activities, three U.S. Army activities, and
two other federal agencies. The base is also the location of Halyburton Naval Health Clinic.

Over time, the County has become less dependent on agriculture as the mainstay of the economic base
and has revealed itself as a desirable destination for tourists, drawn by abundant opportunities for con-
ventions, golf, sailing, beaches, fishing, hunting, and touring over 150 historic landmarks. The County’s
reputation as a desirable retirement community is a direct result of its popularity as a tourist destination.
This has resulted in a constant growth of residential development aimed at retirees. In 2005, the NBC
Today Show rated the New Bern area as an “undiscovered” retirement haven.

The financial reporting entity includes all the funds of the primary government (Craven County), as well
as its component units. Component units are legally separate entities for which the primary government
is financially accountable. Discretely presented component units are reported in a separate colurmn in the
government-wide financial statements to emphasize that they are legally separate from the primary gov-
ernment and to distinguish their financial positions and changes in financial position from those of the
primary government. The Craven Regional Airport Authority, Craven County Alcoholic Beverage Con-
trol Board, Craven County Tourism Development Authority and Craven Regional Medical Authority are
included as discretely presented component units in the reporting entity. However, the Craven County
Board of Education, the Craven-Pamlico-Carteret Regional Library, Eastern Carolina Council of Gov-
ernments, Craven Community College, and the Coastal Regional Solid Waste Management Authority
have not met the criteria for inclusion in the reporting entity as component units and, accordingly, the fi-
nancial information for these organizations is excluded from this report. Each of these entities publishes
its own annual financial report to which the reader is referred.

THE LOCAL ECONOMY

Craven County continues to experience a steady level of economic growth. Per capita personal income in
Craven County increased by 4.1 percent, to $31,107, for the calendar year 2006 (the latest information
available). The change for the state of North Carolina in 2006 was 5.0 percent and nationally the change
was 5.6 percent. The County’s per capita income level is 96 percent of the state average and 85 percent
of the national average. The County ranked nineteenth out of one hundred counties in the state in per ca-
pita income. The 1996-2006 average annual growth rate of per capita personal income for the County
was 3.8 percent, while the average anrual growth rate for the state was 3.7 percent and 4.3 percent for the
nation. The number of building inspections performed by the County Inspection Department, in fiscal
2008, was down 26% from the prior year as a result of the slowdown in the housing market. This does
not reflect the numbers of the two municipalities which have their own inspection departments.

Government is the largest single employer in the County with 30.0 percent of all jobs, down almost one
percent from a year ago and over 2 percent from two years ago. The U.S. Marine Corps Air Station at
Cherry Point provides employment for a total work force of 15,602 personnel, including 5,422 civilian
jobs. The number of civilian jobs at the Fleet Readiness Center East (the single largest employer east of
1-95) located at Cherry Point Marine Corps Air Station was down slightly from the previous year. The
total payroll for the base in 2008, including Fleet Readiness Center East, is expected to be approximately
$1.23 billion while the total economic impact of the Marine Corps Air Station at Cherry Point, including



the FRC East, is estimated to be $1.46 billion for the state of North Carolina. The military and the local
community have developed a strong relationship from which both have benefited. After government,
other large employment categories in the County are retail and wholesale trade providing 13.9 percent,
health care and social assistance with 15.3 percent, manufacturing with 11.6 percent, and accommodation
and food services with 8.9 percent of the total work force.

The unemployment rate in Craven County dropped to 4.1 percent annual average for calendar year 2007
from 4.5 percent in 2006, The statewide average for calendar year 2007 was 4.7 percent. The relatively
low percentage of manufacturing employment has prevented the County from experiencing the high lev-
els of unemployment in other areas of the state that are heavily dependent on the textile and furniture in-
dustries. Employment at the major manufacturing employers in the County was positive mixed during
the year adding employees during the year while both Hatteras and Moen reduced employment. Hatteras
announced a cutback in August 2008 of approximately 200 employees due to lower demand for yachts.
Employment in the trade, leisure and hospitality employers increased again this year.

BSH Home Appliances, 2 major manufacturer in the County, with production of dishwashers, cooktops,
ranges and laundry equipment, announced an expansion in December of 2006. The $15 million expan-
sion has been completed and added over 200 jobs. The purpose of the expansion was to produce a new
line of mid-priced dishwashers to broaden its customer base. Formerly BSH produced only high-end
priced dishwashers, named best in class by Consumer Reports for the past nine years. Production of the
new mid-range line began in 2008. BSH Home Appliances began operations in Craven County in 1997
in a 50,000 square foot facility with 24 employees and now operates out of 1,410,000 square feet and
employs over 1,200 people in Craven County. About 500,000 dishwashers are produced at the facility
cach vear. A $200 million expansion was completed in 2004 to manufacture ranges and washers and
dryers. In 2005 the County conveyed approximately 61 acres in the Craven Industrial Park to BSH for
the construction of the 590,000 square foot logistics center. The building has a value of approximately
$23 million and BSH employs 36 people at the logistics center. BSH is now the second largest taxpayer
in the County (behind Weyerhaeuser) and the largest non-governmental employer in the County.

In 2007, Carolina Technical Plastics Corporation (CTP) announced a 51,000 square foot expansion at
their facility which will add $5 million of investment and 50 jobs over the next three years. As of the end
of 2008 employment had grown by 36 employees and investment had increased by over $2.5 million.
CTP started production at their facility in Craven County in 2004 as a result of BSH Home Appliances
expanding their manufacturing facility in the County. CTP supplies plastic parts and components to the
automotive and home appliance industry. BSH is one of their largest customers in the home appliance
industry, primarily the laundry segment. The expansion will double their facility footprint and increase
employment by 42 percent.

In October 2008, a German manufacturer, Drahtzug Stein Holding Company, announced it will open a
plant in Craven County employing between 80 and 100 people. The Company produces dishwasher bas-
kets internationally for BSH Home Appliances. The Company will invest between $16 and $18 million
to begin production here in the Craven County. The Company has leased the former Amital Manufactur-
ing building directly across the street from BSH. Once full capacity is reached at the plant, two miliion
polyamide-covered steel dishwasher baskets a year will be produced.

With many historic sites and homes, 40 miles of navigable rivers, the Croatan National Forest, and abun-
dant lakes and wildlife, the County continues to emphasize and capitalize on tourism. Tryon Palace, the
first State Capitol, was authentically reconstructed in the 1950’s and is considered the main attraction in
the downtown historic district of the City of New Bern. The State of North Carolina has completed
demolition on the former Barbour Boatworks site and the environmental clean-up of the site. This site
will become an education/visitor center for the Tryon Palace and is situated between the Palace and the
Sheraton Hotel, near the Convention Center. The site will be an attractive addition to the waterfront de-
velopment of downtown New Bern. The County will pay its $1 million dollar pledge to the project in the
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next fiscal year, assuming all conditions of the pledge are met. The County borrowed the $1 million to
be paid for the project in the COPS issue closed in August 2007. The current schedule calls for the
building to be complete and open in 2010. Previously, the County had contributed $80,000 in fiscal 2005
and $75,000 in fiscal 2006 to provide funding for site cleanup and design of the facility. Also in 2006
the state legislature provided $1.5 million to the Palace to continue design and site cleanup and voted to
allow Tryon Palace to keep its receipts from sales to be used toward the project. This amount is esti-
mated at $570,000 annually. The State awarded all of the significant contracts in September 2008 for the
construction and foundation work was begun in October, 2008.

The New Bern Riverfront Convention Center, located in historic downtown New Bern, was constructed
by the County at a cost of $12 million and opened in August of 2000. The facility is approximately
45,000 square feet and houses a 12,000 square foot ballroom designed to seat and serve groups up to
1,500. The site is adjacent to one of the major hotel facilities in the downtown area and within walking
distance of two other hotels and several bed and breakfast facilities. Operating revenues increased to
$704,000 in fiscal 2008, up from $645,000 in fiscal 2007. The increase in revenues was due to the host-
ing of many large conventions during the year. There were 308 events held at the Center during fiscal
2008 which converted to 427 utilization days. The Center incurred an operating deficit of $154,000 in
fiscal 2008 which included setting aside $40,000 in the capital reserve fund for future improvements.
The total budgeted deficit was $202,000. The Center was not built with the expectation that it would
generate a direct profit but to provide an economic stimulus for the area. The Center generated approxi-
mately 23,500 overnight rooms and over $12.9 million of economic impact to the community. The debt
incurred for the Center is serviced through the increase in occupancy tax enacted in November 1996 from
3 percent to 6 percent. Advance bookings of the Center for fiscal 2009 indicate another successful up-
coming year.

Construction of new homes continues, while at a somewhat slower pace, in a large subdivision opened in
2006 in Craven County. The subdivision, Carclina Colours, is being developed on a 2,000 acre site bor-
dering the 161,000 acre Croatan National Forest and is located within the municipal limits of the City of
New Bern. The subdivision will eventually have 2,000 home sites, an 18 hole golf course, 50 different
neighborhoods, 13 miles of sidewalks, five acres of green space, retail spaces, and a commons area pavil-
ion. The building development is expected to continue for ten years and have a $600 million tax impact
for the County which would generate $3.8 million annually in County property taxes.

In November 2007 Jupiter, USA announced plans to develop a large residential, retail, commercial de-
velopment, along with a marina in Bridgeton. Bridgeton is located across the Neuse River from New
Bern. The construction of the marina has been completed and the company is currently leasing slips.
The company opened a sales center in July 2008 to market the marina and pre-sale an 18 unit high-end
condominium development in the yacht club, expected to open late 2008. The long range plans call for
more than 900 residential units, a large retail center, office space, hotels, and an amphitheater. In addi-
tion the developer is building a new wastewater treatment plant which will be donated to the Town of
Bridgeton.

In October 2008, Weyerhaeuser Real Estate Company announced plans to develop a 600 acre develop-
ment with a thousand residential units, shopping and a hotel near the NC 43 connector and Highway 70
in New Bern. The residential area will be a mix of houses, patio homes and townhouses. There also 1s a
35 acre site for apartments. The NC 43 connector is a 2.35 mile connector from NC 43 to US 70 and is
expected to be completed in 2010. Work began in December 2007 after contracts were approved by NC
DOT. The connector road was promised to BSH Home AppHances in 2001 by the State as incentive to
expand operations here. The $35.4 million project includes another road comnecting BSH’s main com-
plex to NC 43 near NC 55. The road goes through undeveloped Weyerhaeuser and BSH land and will
include a 30 foot overpass of a five-track railroad switching station that is expected to eliminate the
switching station currently in downtown New Bern.



Construction is nearing completion on a new riverfront condominium project, SkySail Condominiurns,
located adjacent to the Sheraton Hotel, on the Trent River. SkySail is 2 120 unit project with prices rang-
ing from $230,000 to over $770,000. The project was developed by the Soleil group and currently 25%
of the units have been closed with most of the remaining units under contract and expected to close in the
coming months. The project is valued at $46 million and will generate over $250,000 of property taxes
annually for the County. The property is adjacent to the location of the soon to be built Tryon Palace
History Education Center. SkySail will offer 30 of the condominium units for daily rental.

Several new hotel propetties are in various stages of development. Springhill Suites, a Marriot property
with 109 rooms, will open in late 2008 and a new Candlewood Suites, with 74 rooms on the present loca-
tion of the Economy Inn, currently 42 rooms was announced in 2008. The number of available rooms
will increase by 141 with the addition of these two properties. In addition to the new properties, major
renovations have been completed at the Sheraton Grand Hotel, also owned by the Soleil group, and at the
Hampton Inn. Recently plans have been announced for a Best Western property in Havelock and another
Best Western property just outside of New Bern. Both of these properties are expected to be 65 room fa-
cilities. Another developer is working with the City of New Bemn to obtain parking for a hotel property
in the downtown area. It would be a limited service Hilton or Marriot property with approximately 80
TOOmS.

During 2008, the Soleil group announced plans to renovate the New Bern Grand Marina, a deepwater
marina adjacent to the Sheraton Hotel. The marina has 25 to 100+ foot boat slips which are being of-
fered for sale or long term lease. Twenty slips will be available for transient travelers.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

For the Year. The County’s General Fund balance increased by $1,143,732, or 4.6 percent, in fiscal
2008. The County’s unreserved General Fund balance at June 30, 2008, represents 18.5 percent of actual
expenditures and transfers out for fiscal year 2008. The tax rate for fiscal 2008 remained unchanged at
$.61 per $100 of property valuation. Property values increased from $6.3 biilion to $6.7 billion, or 6.3
percent countywide.

During fiscal 2008 the Board of Commissioners continued to fund the capital reserve by appropriating
and transferring $.9 million from the general fund to the reserve. The capital reserve was established to
provide funds that will be required for upcoming capital projects. Some of these projects include the new
judicial center (discussed later), 2 $2 million commitment to the Community College for a business and
technology building, and over $400,000 for new carpet in the human services building. During fiscal
2008 approximately $2.7 million was transferred out of the reserve for use in projects. Of the $2.7 mil-
lion, $2.2 million was transferred to the Community College and $400,000 was transferred to the general
fund for carpet at the human services building. The remainder was transferred to the general fund for
improvements at the new West Craven Park.

Rather than decreasing fund balance as the budget projected by $2.2 million, the County added approxi-
mately $1.2 million to its fund balance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008. This swing of $3.4 mil-
lion was a result of actual expenditures and transfers in the general fund being $3.2 million below budget
while revenues were $.2 million above budget. The savings in expenditures were principally in three ar-
eas: General Government expenditures were $.6 million below budget, Health Department expenditures
were $.6 million below budget and Social Services expenditures were $1.3 million below budget. Reve-
nues which exceeded expectations included property tax, sales tax, intergovernmental, and investment
earnings.



During fiscal 2008, construction of the new elementary school located in the Carolina Colours subdivi-
sion was completed. The County purchased 30 acres of land for the school in 2006. The school was fi-
nanced through an interim installment borrowing of $14 million in 2006 which was repaid with the Au-
gust 2007 COPS transaction. As a result of the borrowing method, the County will hold title to the land
and school buildings and lease them to the Board of Education until the debt is retired. The need for this
school was to alleviate overcrowding at the other elementary school in the area which was designed for a
maximum capacity of 813 and had grown fo an enrollment of 1,100 students. The new school is located
in the Highway 70 corridor between New Bern and Havelock, an area of significant growth in the County
and opened for classes in August 2007,

In 2006, the County agreed to partner with the Board of Education, the Community College and the cities
of Havelock and New Bern to design a fiber optic network to connect all the Board of Education build-
ings (schools, offices, maintenance facilities), the two college campuses in New Bern and Havelock as
well as County and municipal buildings to provide a much more efficient communication infrastructure.
The impetus for the project was the need of the schools for substantially more band width for communi-
cation than presently existed. Each entity will recognize savings in communication costs and the poten-
tial for expansion is significantly improved. The cities of Havelock and New Bern allowed the use of ex-
isting fiber in their corporate limits where available. The project was originally broken into three phases:
1) to provide a fiber connection between New Bern and Havelock, 2) to connect the schools within the
two cities and 3) to commect the remaining five schools not in the municipal limits. In 2006 the County
borrowed $1.2 million, part of the previously mentioned $18.9 million interim installment loan, to ac-
complish phase one and added an additional $1 million in the COPS issue to provide for phase two. Dur-
ing 2007 the project was put out to bid and the low bidder for phase one, two and a part of phase three
(two of the five schools) was Corning, the manufacturer of the fiber optic cable in the amount of ap-
proximately $1.5 million. Because of the low bid the County was able to connect the remaining three
schools through a wireless solution with funds on hand and also add other sites in the rural part of the
County including two branch library sites. The County was able to do all three phases of the {iber project
and the wireless portion of the project for the original amount allocated. The fiber installation was com-
pleted in July 2008 and 21l 22 schools in the County are now up and running on the fiber or the wireless
network. In addition, as an addendum to the contract, the County appropriated an additional $163,000
out of the Capital Reserve Fund in fiscal 2008 to construct a fiber loop between all the buildings on the
New Bern campus of the Community College. This will allow them quicker response time, more band
width, and the ability to utilize VOIP technology for data and voice communications. The entities expect
to save approximately $250,000 per year on phone line costs that will be replaced by this project.

In 2007, the Board of Commissioners approved a request from the Board of Education to fund approxi-
mately $8.25 million of construction at three sites. Additions and renovations were completed in 2008 at
Grover C. Fields Middle School’s new media center, and J. T. Barber Elementary School’s expansion of
the media center and administration area. Also completed during the year was a replacement of the pub-
lc school bus maintenance facility. Additionally, $750,000 was approved to purchase land in the New
Bern/Havelock corridor for a future high school. There is no current schedule for this school, but land is
becoming very expensive and scarce in the corridor and the decision to buy the land and hold it was made
by the Board of Commissioners. Also, $470,000 was approved for the replacement of telephone and in-
tercom systems at ten schools bringing the total of these school projects to slightly over $9.5 million.
This amount was borrowed in the COPS issue closed in August 2007. The Board of Education is cur-
rently searching for land for the high school and has narrowed the search to a couple of parcels. The tel-
ephone and intercom projects were begun late in 2008 and will be completed in fiscal 2009.

The current jail was originally built in 1982 to house approximately 78 inmates and was then double
bunked in areas to provide capacity for approximately 121 inmates. The work release center, constructed
in 2001 at a remote location, can house up to 40 inmates. The average daily inmate population is now
approximately 200. The work release center has provided some relief, but was never expected to be the
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ultimate answer to the problem. During 2006, the County engaged a construction manager and an archi-
tect to design the new facility. The project went out to bid during fiscal 2007 and the low bid was $26.8
million, approximately $4 million over the architect’s estimate. Value engineering reduced this cost to
approximately $25.4 million. A contract was signed with Devere, Inc. for this amount during September,
2007. The facility will include a 292 bed jail, Sheriff’s office, magistrate’s office and courtroom, and a
district courtroom. Earlier in fiscal 2007 the County contracted for the site preparation separately from
the construction of the building. The site work and water lines were completed in fiscal 2008. The gen-
eral contractor began construction in November 2007 and work is proceeding close to schedule. The ju-
dicial center is being constructed on a 110 acre site near the industrial park. The judicial center will be
the first building constructed on the site and land is available to add additional County buildings should
the need arise. The County borrowed $3.2 million, as part of the 2006 $18.9 million installment borrow-
ing mentioned earlier. The COPS issue, of August 2007, included $30 million for the judicial center and
paid off the $3.2 million borrowed previously. The original estimated completion date was April 2009,
but will likely be June 2009. The courtroom will be used for District Court, the court which hears most
cases of the County jail inmates and would greatly reduce the need for transportation of inmates. The es-
timated total project cost is approximately $34 million which will be funded by the $30 million borrow-
ing, $2.5 million transferred to the project from the capital reserve and interest earned on the escrow ac-
count. Over the last three years the County had transferred $4.5 million from the capital reserve to this
project, including the $2.5 million in fiscal 2007, mentioned earlier. Based on the total project budget
the County was able to transfer $2 million back to the reserve from this project in 2008 to be used for
other County projects. As of the end of fiscal 2008 the County had expended approximately one-third of
the total $34 million budget.

In 2008, the County continued construction on a new recreation park in the western part of the County.
The land was acquired in 2006 for approximately $130,000. The County received a Parks and Recreation
Trust Fund (PARTF) grant from the State in the amount of $65,250 to cover approximately half the cost
of the 70 acre site near West Craven High School. The Board of Education donated 20 adjoining acres to
the County resulting in a total of 90 acres to be used for the park. The County was approved for an addi-
tional PARTF grant in the amount of $500,000 to be used for construction of the park. The County bor-
rowed the matching $500,000 as part of the previously mentioned $18.9 million installment loan. During
2007, the site grading was completed. In 2008 construction of the access road and two parking lots, four
softball/baseball fields (two of which are lighted), one football field, a playground area, maintenance
building, and six tennis courts were completed. These items were funded from the previously mentioned
grant, as well as, an additional $158,000 in the June 30, 2008 budget, of which $72,000 was expended by
the end of the year. In the June 30, 2009 budget there is $227,000 appropriated to light the other two ball
fields, install fencing around ball fields, provide an irrigation system and pave the entrance road as well
as consiruct restrooms.

Tn May 2007, Delta Airlines began service at the Coastal Carolina Regional Airport, formerly the Craven
Regional Afrport with flights to Atlanta, Georgia using 50 seat jets. The Airport Authority had been seek-
ing a second airline for some time and based on the number of passengers on Delta flights it would ap-
pear they are very successful. The number of enplanements for all the airlines was up 23% for the first
six months of calendar 2008. US Air continues to fly to Charlotte and Philadelphia out of New Bern and
their number of enplanements has increased even after Delta began service at Craven. During fiscal
2008, the Airport Authority acquired two large tracts of land adjacent to the airport at a total cost of ap-
proximately $4 million. The County borrowed $1.8 million in the 2007 COPS issue for the purchase of
one tract and the Airport provided the approximate $2 million for the other tract from its fund balance.
The Airport Authority will repay the $1.8 million over a three year period from FAA grants, as well as,
repay its fund balance from FAA grants for the second piece of property. Both of these tracts were ac-
quired to provide a buffer from development around the airport. One of the tracts is part of the long
range expansion plans of the Authority for additional hangar space. There are no plans to develop the
other tract at this time. Additionally the Airport Authority and County approved the construction of a



new improved General Aviation terminal facility for private and corporate aircraft using fixed base op-
eration. This facility was a much needed improvement with the continuing growth of aircraft based at the
airport and the increasing number of aircraft coming into the airport for corporate purposes. The Airport
Authority was able to obtain a $250,000 grant from the State DOT to assist with this public private part-
nership. The Airport was named the best in the state for on-time flights by AAA North Carolina in June
2008 based on first quarter 2008 statistics compiled by the U.S. Department of Transportation. Their
ranking was almost 3% better than Raleigh-Durham Airport, the second highest ranked facility.

Fiscal 2008 was the initial year of implementing legislation passed by the General Assembly in 2007 to
relieve North Carolina counties from paying a portion of the non-Federal piece of Medicaid costs. North
Carolina was the last state to address the issue of requiring counties to participate in the costs, even
though counties had no ability to change or create policy or benefits. The legislation required counties to
give up approximately 60% of their revenue from the State Public School Capital Building Fund in 2008
only (ADM funds). Counties had to make this money up for schools from the savings they realized from
the Medicaid assumption by the State. The legislation also calls for counties to exchange one quarter of
a cent of sales tax beginning October 2008. The State will assume the Medicaid costs beginning 25 per-
cent in October 2007, 50 percent October 2008 and 100 percent in October 2009. The legislation further
holds counties harmless from giving up more than they save and guarantees a $500,000 savings per year
for each county. The savings for Craven County in fiscal 2008 was $500,000. The budgeted savings i
fiscal 2009 are $1 million. The same legisiation gave counties the authority to enact a .4 percent land
transfer tax or an additional one quarter cent sales tax if approved by a voter referendum. The Craven
County Board of Commissioners has decided not to seek either of these additional revenues at present.

In fiscal 2008, the County appropriated approximately $724,000 from the General Fund balance to ac-
quire new software for the E-911 system, Sheriff and jail records, and field reporting for the Sheriff de-
partment which will allow deputies to file reports from remote locations. The switchover to this software
is proceeding according to schedule. All of the conversion should be completed prior to the end of the
calendar 2008 year.

The County completed the orthophotography project during 2008. This involved contracting to have new
acrial photographs of the entire county. One of the major uses of the new color photographs is to aid the
County in the revaluation process for property values. They are also frequently used by realtors and de-
velopers. The County has made these photographs available through the County website.

For the Future. The budget for fiscal 2009 was adopted with a tax rate of $.61 per hundred dollars of
valuation, the same rate as fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006. The estimate of property values for fiscal 2009 is
$7.0 billion, an increase of 4.02 percent over the prior year’s actual valuation. Budgeted expenditures of
the General Fund total $94.6 million and budgeted revenues $93.6 million, with the difference of $1 mil-
lion being appropriated from the County’s fund balance.

Upcoming plans for the County water system include the continued alternate water source project in re-
sponse to restrictions imposed by the State limiting the volume of water that users of the Black Creek ag-
uifer may withdraw. All entities currently using the Black Creek are mandated to make a 25 percent re-
duction in the Black Creek withdrawals by 2008, 50 percent reduction by 2013, and 75 percent reduction
by 2018 (if required). Craven County made the decision to meet the 25% reduction by putting wells into
the Pee Dee aquifer. Test wells in the Pee Dee aquifer indicated that the amount of water available
would be sufficient to attain the hoped for ratio of approximately 30 percent Pee Dee water to 70 percent
Black Creek water with five wells. They also confirmed the quality of the water as good enough to blend
with the Black Creek water and require no additional treatment. The five production wells have been
drilled on the same sites as the five Black Creek wells. Engineering estimates are that the five wells will
provide sufficient water to reach the goal of 30 percent. The remaining portion of the project is the me-



chanical stage of installing the pumps and making the connections. A contract was signed in August
2008 for the completion of this work.

The Pee Dee aquifer wells will not allow the County to meet the 2013 goal of 50% reduction from the
Black Creek aquifer. The County will have to find another water source. This most likely will involve
drilling wells into the Castle Hayne aquifer. This water will require advanced treatment and the need for
a water treatment plant which may be located on the cast side of the Trent River and provide water for all
customers on that side of the river. The existing Black Creek and Pee Dee wells will then serve all cus-
tomers on the western side of the river. The County has engaged an engineer to update a plan of future
demands on the system to allow the decision of where to locate the plant. The study will also determine
if other options are available to meet the next restriction in 2013.

During the budget process for fiscal 2009, the decision was made to implement a new rate schedule
which has higher rates for higher levels of usage. This graduated rate schedule will be designed to in-
crease revenue slightly, 5% or less, and is intended as an incentive to conservation of water. The change
in rates will be implemented January 1, 2009. There will be several months of education and information
distributed to customers to help them understand the changes. Most customers who use less than the av-
erage amount of water a month will see no increase and likely a decrease in their monthly bill.

Two major construction projects were recently completed at the New Bern campus of the Craven Com-
munity College. In fiscal 2005, the State of North Carolina included an appropriation of $7.4 million
over two years for the construction of a state of the art facility used o train students and manufacturing
employees in robotics and automation at Craven Community College. The State had pledged its support
for the advanced manufacturing training center in 2001 as part of an incentive package for German man-
ufacturer BSH Home Appliance to expand the facilities in New Bern. The legistature had previously
given the college $500,000 to pay for design and development of the project, which was completed in
January, 2005, Ground was broken for the facility in April 2006. The facility, named the Bosch and
Siemens Advanced Manufacturing Center, was dedicated in August 2008 and classes are scheduled to
begin in January, 2009. The 30,000 square foot building will add five laboratories and three classrooms
to the College. The building also includes classrooms for the Early College, a partnership with the public
school system which gives students the opportunity to graduate high school and obtain an associate de-
gree during the five year program. The program takes 50 ninth graders each year and is in the second
year of operation. When fully implemented, there will be 200 students in the program at the college
campus.

The second project is a new Business and Information Technology Building. This $5.23 million facility
is funded with 2000 statewide community college bonds and $2 million from the County. The County
funds are part of the moneys set aside in the capital reserve fund and were provided to the College during
fiscal 2008. The 35,000 square foot building will house the business and technology programs, class-
rooms, offices, bookstore and the Small Business Center. This building was completed late in fiscal
2008 and is in use. The building also houses the East Carolina/ Wachovia teaching partnership program
which allows students to obtain an elementary education degree at the community college campus
through East Carolina University.

In fiscal 2008, the President of Craven Community College, Dr. Scott Ralls, was named President of the
North Carolina Community College system. He began his new position in August and a new president,
Dr. Catherine Chew, took over on October 1, 2008.

The buildup of new personnel at Marine Corps Air Station Cherry Point which was announced in Octo-
ber 2007 began in 2008 and will be completed by 2010. Cherry Point Marine Corps Air Station, located
in Craven County, is expected to get at least 1,485 new military jobs and 1,241 new dependents as a re-
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sult of the announcement. Discussions with the military continue to determine what the infrastructure
needs will be to accommodate these additional personnel.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The management of Craven County is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control
structure designed to assure that the assets of the County are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to
assure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The internal control structure is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable
assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived;
and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

Single audit. As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the County also is responsible for
assuring that an adequate internal control structure is in place to assure compliance with applicable laws
and regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure is subject to periodic evaluation
by management. As a part of the County’s single audit, described earlier, tests are made to determine the
adequacy of the internal control structure, including that portion related to federal and state financial as-
sistance programs, and to determine that the County has complied with applicable laws and regulations.
The results of the County’s single audit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, provided no instances of
material weaknesses in the internal control structure or significant violations of applicable laws and regu-
lations.

Budgeting controls. In addition to the above mentioned internal control structure, the County maintains
budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to assure compliance with legal provi-
sions embodied in the annual budget ordinance adopted by the Board of County Commissioners. Activi-
ties of the General Fund, Debt Service Fund, and certain special revenue funds are included in the annual
budget ordinance. Financial plans covering the term of the project are adopted for those projects that are
expected to require more than a fiscal year for completion. The level of budgetary control (that is, the
level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) is established at the depart-
ment level in the General Fund and the special revenue funds. The County also maintains an encum-
brance accounting system as one technique of accomplishing budgetary control. Encumbered amounts
lapse at year-end; however, encumbrances generally are re-appropriated as part of the following year’s
budget. As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report,
the County continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management.

Cash Management. Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in demand deposits, certificates
of deposit commercial paper, federal and State government securities, banker’s acceptances or the North
Carolina Capital Management Trust (2 money market mutual fund established for North Carolina local
governments). At all times, consideration was given to earning the highest yields on investments while
maintaining the safety and liquidity of those monies.

Interest earned on investments, in all funds of the primary government, was $3,930,617 for the year. The
investment yield on the portfolio for the year was 4.96 percent as compared to 5.16 percent last year. The
cash and investment portfolio balance at June 30, 2008, was $70.6 million, compared to $49.2 million at
June 30, 2007. The increase in the ending balance was due to the unexpended proceeds from the COPS
borrowing and excess of revenues over expenditures in the water enterprise fund and the general fund.
The County portfolio at June 30, 2008 was composed of the following mix: State agencies 33 percent,
certificate of deposits 14 percent, demand deposits 10 percent, and North Carolina Capital Management
Trust 43 percent.
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Risk Management. Craven County provides protection from liability and casualty risks through a com-
bination of partially self-funded programs, joint risk management pools and commercial coverage. The
County chose in 1990 to enter into a self-funded health nsurance program, with administrative services
provided through a contract administrator. The County uses an internal service fund to account for the
self-funded health insurance. In the government-wide statements the internal service fund is combined
with the governmental funds. The County increased health insurance premiums by 10% in fiscal 2008.
Health insurance claims payments were $.5 million more than fiscal 2007. The increase in premiums re-
sulted in the health insurance plan ending the year with excess revenue of $208,000. As a result of spi-
raling medical costs inflation, the County increased health insurance premiums by 5 percent for fiscal
2009. The health insurance plan had a fund balance of $362,000 at the end of fiscal 2008. Risk to the
County is restricted by a specific stop-loss limit of $125,000 per individual per year for fiscal 2008 and
fiscal 2009. This protection is provided through coverage acquired from a commercial underwriter. The
County established a reserve of $420,000 for incurred but not reported claims at June 30, 2008. This was
an increase of $15,000 in the reserve at year end over the prior year.

During fiscal 2008, the County continued its participation in the risk management pool operated by the
North Carolina Association of County Commissioners for liability and property coverage. In fiscal 2003,
the County contracted with a third-party administrator for workers’® compensation claims and chose to
partially self-insure this coverage. This coverage is also accounted for in the internal service fund. The
County limits its risk by purchasing reinsurance, which for the year ended June 30, 2008, provided indi-
vidual loss limits of $350,000. A reserve of $55,834 was established at June 30, 2008 for estimated
claims incurred but not paid. The workers’ compensation fund ended the year with a fund balance of
$1,039,624 available for future claims. Flood insurance on the Convention Center, the Administration
Building, and the Water Maintenance Building, which are located in flood zones, was obtained through a
commercial carrier.

OTHER INFORMATION

Awards. The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the County of Craven for
its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, the eighteenth consecu-
tive year this award was received. The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award, recog-
nizing conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state and local government financial re-
ports.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable
and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents conform to program
standards. Such CAFR must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal
requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current
report continues to conform to the Certificate of Achieverent program requirements and we are submit-
ting it to GFOA.

Independent Audit. Under Section 159-34 of North Carolina General Statutes, the County is required
to provide for an annual audit by an independent certified public accountant. The accounting firm of
McGladrey and Pullen, LLP, CPAs, was selected by the County to perform this audit. McGladrey & Pul-
len, LLP audited the Financial Section and reported on the County’s compliance with federal and state
award programs contained in the Compliance section

Acknowledgments. The preparation of the comprehensive annual financial report was made possible
by the entire Craven County Finance Department: Linda A. LeDrew, Assistant Finance Officer, Carolyn
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Mattocks, Mary Ann Harper, Rosie Brinson, Andrea Brookins, Christy Moore, Donna Nelson, Aletta
Brown, Nancy Dawson, and Craig Warren. Also of significant assistance in the preparation of the report
were Brian Dunn, Tyler Drake, and Steve Johnson of McGladrey & Pullen, LLP.

The information presented in this report illustrates the progressive leadership and support provided by
the Craven County Board of Commissioners. Without the Board’s guidance and initiative, the financial
activities of Craven County would not be able to operate in a fiscally stable and responsible manner.

Respectively submitted,

\\
Harold Blizzard Rick Hemphili
*7@ K% W\
County Manager Finance Officer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS







McGladrey & Pullen

Certified Public Accountants

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of County Commissioners
Craven County
New Bem, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of Craven County, North Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008, which collectively comprise the
County's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of Craven County’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these basic financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The financial
statements of Craven Regional Medical Authority and Craven County Alcoholic Beverage Control Board were not
audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the basic financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Craven County, North Carolina
as of June 30, 2008, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof, and
the respective budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 30, 2008 on our
consideration of the County's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the intemal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an infegral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered
in assessing the results of our audit.

McGladrey & Pullen, LLP is a member firm of RSM International,
an affifation of separate and intependent legal entities.
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The management's discussion and analysis and the other required supplementary information on pages 19 through
33 and page 93 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required
by the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
Craven County, North Carolina's basic financial statements. The other supplementary information is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying
schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards and passenger facility charges is presented for additional
analysis as required by the U. S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Govemments, and Non-Profit Organizations, the State Single Audit Implementafion Act and the Passenger Facility
Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies issued by the Federal Aviation Administration and is not a required part of
the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole.

The accompanying introductory and statistical sections, as listed in the table of contents, have not been subjected to

the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion
on them. :

/%M?, S Al cep
New Bern, North Carolina

October 30, 2008
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS







Craven County
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2008

As management of Craven County, we offer readers of Craven County’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of Craven
County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. We encourage readers to read the
information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have
furnished in the County’s financial statements, which follow this narrative.

Financial Highlights

.

The assets of Craven County exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by
$45,446,101.

The government’s total net assets increased by $2,095,905, due primarily to an
increase of $1,535,945 in the net assets of the Water Fund. This increase in the
Water Fund was a result of increased investment earnings and less interest expense
on debt. The remaining increase in net assets can be attributed to the increase in the
Internal Service Fund used for partially self insured risk management. The net
assets of the Internal Service Fund increased by $674,000 and are combined with
the governmental funds for purposes of the government wide statements.

The net assets of the governmental activities are lower than one would expect due
to the method used in North Carolina to record the debt and asset related to school
buildings. Under North Carolina law, the County is responsible for providing
capital funding for the public schools and community college. The assets funded by
the County are owned by the public school system and community college and are
not recorded as an asset of the County. The County, however, does record a
liability for the debt issued to fund these projects. As of June 30, 2008, the
outstanding balance of school related debt was $59,460,000.

As of the close of the current fiscal year, Craven County’s governmental funds
reported combined ending fund balances of $64,016,897 an increase of $20,607,190
for the year. Most of this increase was due to a borrowing in the net amount of
$39,013,563 during the year, of which $24,826,245 was unexpended at June 30,
2008. Actual expenditures of the General Fund were $3,418,607 less than the
budgeted expenditures and actual revenues exceeded budgeted revenues by
$147,190. The increase in revenues was due to a higher than anticipated collection
rate of property taxes. The lower than anticipated expenditures were in the General
Government, Health, and Social Services Departments. Expenditures in the
Register of Deeds office were $218,000 below budget due to lower revenues
resulting in less payment to the State for the shared revenues. Health Department
costs were down due to declining revenue in programs such as Child Health and
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Home Health where the lower activity resulted in less expenditure. County
Medicaid costs, in 2008, were $493,000 less than budget and $527,000 less than the
prior year as a result of the legislation passed in 2007. The State is assuming the
County’s portion of Medicaid cost over a three year period in retumn for taking a
half cent of sales tax over a three year period.  Approximately 80 percent of the
total governmental funds fund balance, or $51,322,000 is available at June 30, 2008
for spending at the government’s discretion (unreserved fund balance). In 2007,
unreserved fund balance was $32,324,000 approximately 74 percent of the total
fund balance.

At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund
was $17,781,000 or 18.5 percent of total General Fund expenditures (including
transfer outs) for the fiscal year. In 2007, unreserved fund balance in the General
Fund was $17,661,000, or 20.3 percent of total expenditures. Even though
unreserved fund balance increased during the year, the percentage of fund balance
compared to the expenditures declined. This was due to a $5 million increase in
expenditures consisting of capital money for the Community College in the amount
of $2.3 million as well as a $2.3 million increase in debt service for the new COPS
issued in August, 2007.

The County’s bonded and installment debt increased by $30,309,000 during the
current fiscal year. In August, 2007 the County closed on a Certificates of
Participation (COPS) issue in the amount of $57,635,000. This borrowing
refinanced the $18.9 million instaliment loan dated July, 2006 as well as providing
the balance of funds ($26.8 million) for the judicial center, $9.6 million for other
school renovations and construction of a new bus garage, an additional $1 million
for the fiber optic cable project, $1.8 million to acquire land adjacent to the airport
to prevent encroachment by development, and $1 million for the Tryon Palace
History Education Center. The difference between the net amount of new debt,
$36,935,000, and the net increase in debt of $30,309,000 was due to the normal
amortization of principal balances. The $1.8 million borrowed for the airport is
reflected as debt of the Airport Authority, leaving $55,835,000 on the new issue
recorded as County debt. The COPS were sold at a premium of $2,078,000 and the
$18.9 million installment loan was paid off leaving a net new debt of $39,013,000.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Craven County’s
basic financial statements. The County’s basic financial statements consist of three
components; 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and
3) notes to the financial statements. The basic financial statements present two different
views of the County through the use of government-wide statements and fund financial
statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains other
supplemental information to enhance the reader’s understanding of the financial
condition of Craven County.
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Required Components of Annual Financial Report

Management's Basic
Discussion and Financial
Analysis Statements
|
[ f , I
Government-wide Fund Notes to the
Financial Financial Financial
Statements Statements Statements

Basic Financial Statements

The first two statements in thie basic financial statements are the Government-wide
Financial Statements. They provide both short and Jong-term information about the
County’s financial status, using the full-accrual basis of accounting, in a manner similar
to a private-sector business.

The next statements are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on the
activities of the individual parts of the County’s government. These statements provide
more detail than the government-wide statements. There are four parts to the Fund
Financial Statements: 1) the governmental fund statements; 2) the budgetary comparison
statements; 3) the proprietary fund statements; and 4) the fiduciary fund statements.

The next section of the basic financial statements is the Notes to the Financial
Statements. The notes are essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements because they explain in detail some of
the data contained in those statements.

After the notes, supplemental information is provided to show details about the
County’s non-major governmental funds, all of which are added together in one column
on the basic financial statements. Budgetary information required by the General
Statutes also can be found in this part of the statements.
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Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a
broad overview of the County’s finances, similar in format to a financial statement of a
private-sector business. The government-wide statements provide short and long-term
information about the County’s financial status as a whole.

The two government-wide statements report the County’s net assets and how they have
changed. Net assets are the difference between the County’s total assets and total
liabilities. Measuring net assets is one way to gauge the County’s financial condition.

The government-wide statements are divided into three categories: 1) governmental
activities, 2) business-type activities, and 3) component units. The governmental
activities include most of the County’s basic services such as public safety, education,
human services, envirommental services, economic and physical development, and
general administration. Property tax, sales tax, and state and federal grant funds finance
most of these activities. The business-type activities are those that the County charges
customers to provide. For Craven County, only the water utility is reported as a business
activity.

The final category is component units. Craven Regional Medical Center 1s a public
hospital operated by the Craven Regional Medical Authority.  The County
Commissioners appoint the governing board of the Authority and own the property upon
which the hospital is built. The land is leased for $1 per year to the Authority by the
County. The Craven County Tourism Development Authority (TDA) and the Craven
County Regional Airport Authority are separate legal entities. The County is financially
accountable for the TDA, as the TDA derives its revenues through a special room
occupancy tax authorized and revocable by the County Commissioners. The Airport
Authority governing board is appointed by the County Commissioners and the County 1s
responsible for financing any operating deficits of the Authority. Although legally
separate from the County, the Craven County Alcoholic Beverage Control Board is a
component unit of the County because the County is financially accountable for the
Board by appointing its members and because the Board is required to distribute its
profits to the County.

The government-wide financial statements are on pages 34 and 35 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed Jook at the County’s most
significant activities. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over the resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.
Craven County, like all other governmental entities in North Carolina, uses fund
accounting to ensure and reflect compliance (or non-compliance) with finance-related
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legal requirements, such as the General Statutes or the County’s budget ordinance. All of
the funds of Craven County can be divided into three categories: governmental funds,
proprietary fund and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds — Governmental funds are used to account for those functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Most of
the County’s basic services are accounted for in governmental funds. These funds focus
on how assets can readily be converted into cash flow in and out, and what monies are
left at year-end that will be available for spending in the next year. Governmental funds
are reported using the accounting method called modified accrual accounting. This
method also has a current financial resources focus. As a result, the governmental funds
financial statements give the reader a detailed short-term view that helps him or her
determine if there are more or less financial resources available to finance the County’s
programs. The relationship between government activities (reported in the Statement of
Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is described in a
reconciliation that is a part of the fund financial statements.

Craven County adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the General
Statutes. The budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates input from the
citizens of the County, the management of the County, and the decisions of the Board
about which services to provide and how to pay for them. It also authorizes the County
to obtain funds from identified sources to finance these current period activities. The
budgetary statement provided for the General Fund demonstrates how well the County
complied with the budget ordinance and whether or not the County succeeded in
providing the services as planned when the budget was adopted. The budgetary
comparison statement uses the budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using the
same format, language, and classifications as the legal budget document. The statement
shows four columns: 1) the original budget as adopted by the board; 2) the final budget
as amended by the board; 3) the actual resources, charges to appropriations, and ending
balances in the General Fund; and 4) the difference or variance between the final budget
and the actual resources and charges.

Proprietary Funds — Craven County has only two proprietary funds. Enterprise funds
are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. Craven County uses an enterprise fund to account
for its water utility activity. This fund is the same as the separate activity shown in the
business-type activities in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities.
Internal Service Funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs
internally among the functions of the County. The County uses an internal service fund
to account for its risk management activity. Because this operation benefits
predominately governmental rather than business-type activities, the internal service fund
has been included within the governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements,

Fiduciary Funds — Agency funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit
of parties outside the government. Craven County has four agency funds.
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Notes to the Financial Statements — The notes provide additional information that is
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund
financial statements. The notes to the financial statements start on page 47 of this report.

Other Information — In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying
notes, this report includes certain required supplementary information concerning Craven
County’s progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to law
enforcement personnel. Required supplementary information can be found following the
Financial Statements and Notes to the Financial Statements of this report.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government’s
financial condition. The assets of Craven County exceeded liabilities by $45,446,101 as
of June 30, 2008. As of June 30, 2007, the net assets of Craven County were
$43,350,196. The County’s net assets increased by $2,095,905 for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2008.

The invested in capital assets, net of related debt category is defined as the County’s
investment in County owned capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, vehicles, equipment, and
water system infrastructure) net of accumulated depreciation, less any related debt still
outstanding that was issued to acquire those items. The County uses these capital assets
to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for current
spending. Although the County’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of
outstanding related debt, the resources needed to repay that debt must be provided by
other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. The
County’s, investment in capital assets net of related debt, increased by $2,199,42] over
the prior year. While both capital assets and debt related to capital assets increased in
the fiscal year due to the COPS borrowing, debt increased by $2.2 million less than the
assets, due to the normal amortization of debt through timely payments. The increase in
the capital assets of the governmental activities was due to the construction of the new
Judicial Center. The assets net of debt of the business activities were relatively
unchanged.

The second category of net assets is restricted net assets. This category represents
resources that are subject to specific external legal restrictions that limit the County’s
ability to access and use these funds beyond the purpose for which they were provided.
Sales tax proceeds restricted for school debt service and statutorily restricted revenues are
typical of the type of items included in this category. This category of net assets
increased by $203,523 this year as a result of more assets in the debt service fund used to
retire school debt was caused by higher sales tax and lottery revenues.

The final category of net assets is unrestricted net assets. This balance may be used to
meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. At June 30, 2008,
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the unrestricted deficit of $8,853,015 is attributable to the County’s outstanding debt
incurred for use by the Craven Community College and the Craven County Board of
Education (the “schools™) to construct, renovate, and equip schools. Under North
Carolina law, the County is responsible for providing capital funding for the schools.
The County has chosen to meet its legal obligation to provide the schools capital funding
by using a mixture of County funds and debt. The assets funded by the County, however,
are owned and utilized by the schools. Since the County, as the issuing government,
acquires no capital assets, the County has incurred a liability without a corresponding
increase in assets. Even though the debt issued has been issued to finance capital outlay
and construction for the schools, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board has
determined that it is not capital debt for the County since it is not financing assets owned
by the County. As a result, the school debt is reportable within the unrestricted category
of net assets rather than as part of the category invested in capital assets, net of related
debt. The unrestricted net assets consist of the following:

School system debt $ (59,460,000)
Al other 50,606,985

Total unrestricted (deficit) $ (8,853,015)

Craven County’s Net Assets — at June 30

Governmental Activities Business Type Activities Total
2008 2007 2808 2007 2008 2007
Current and other assets $74,236,068 1 $52,199,153 1 § 9,540,634 | § 8,320,372 | $83,776,702 | §$60,519,525
Capital assets, net 50,866,028 38,919,103 19,962,461 20,274,551 70,828,489 59,193,654
Total assets 125,102,096 91,118,256 29,503,095 28,594,923 | 154,605,191 | 119.713,17%
Long-term liabilities/schools 59,460,000 51,930,000 59,460,000 51,930,000
Long-term lizbilities/other 42,191,950 16,738,213 1,863,135 2,438,271 44,055,085 19,176,484
Other liabilities 5,198,444 4,758,301 445,561 408 198 5,644,005 5,256,499
Total liabilities 106,850,394 73,426,514 2,308,696 2,936,469 | 109,159,090 76,362,983
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 31,120,067 29,183,652 18,099,326 17,836,280 49,219,393 47,019,972
Restricted 5,079,723 4,876,200 5,079,723 4,876,200
Unrestricted {deficit) (17,948,088) | (16,368,150) 9,095,073 7,822,174 (8,853,015) (8,545,976)
Total net assets $ 18,251,702 | $17,691,742 | $27,194,399 | $25,658,454 | $45,446,101 | $43,350,196

The impact on unrestricted net assets, caused by the inclusion of the school debt

without the corresponding assets, was partially offset by the following positive factors:

e Continued diligence in the collection of property taxes by maintaining a collection
percentage of 98.27, up from 98.19 the previous year and higher than the
statewide average of 97.46 percent for the previous year.
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e General Fund actual revenues exceeded budgeted revenues by $ 147,000. While
this is a relatively small amount, it is significant that the budget was exceeded.
Charges for services revenue for 2008 was significantly lower in certain areas
such as fees collected by the Register of Deeds and the Inspections Department.
Both of these revenues have been negatively impacted by the slowdown in the
housing market. Actual property taxes collected were $573,000 higher than the
budgeted amount. Sales tax was $111,000 more than the budgeted amount for the
year due to higher than anticipated collections in the County. Interest earnings
were $157,000 above the budgeted amount as rates increased during the year.

e An increase of 6.3 percent in property values countywide due to the continued
steady growth in the County of both residential and commercial property as of
January 1, 2007.

Craven County Changes in Net Assets — years ended June 30,

Governmental Activities Business Type Activities Total
2008 2087 2008 2007 2008 2007
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $13,063,977  $12,643,819 $3,387,837 $3,350,661  $16,451,814  $15,994,480
Operating grants and contributions 19,195,643 16,870,225 19,195,643 16,870,225
Capital grants and contributions 529,725 218,669 529,725 218,669
General revenues:
Property taxes 42,236,411 40,057,692 42,236,411 40,057,692
Sales and use taxes 20,131,706 19,769,089 20,131,706 19,769,089
Other 5,526,546 6,218,350 596,526 524,135 6,123,072 6,742,485
Total revenues 100,684,008 95,777,874 3,984,363 3,874,796 104,668,371 99,652,640
Expenses:
General government 6,568,743 7,679,876 6,568,743 7,679,876
Pubtic safety 13,475,510 12,792,549 13,475,510 12,792,549
Environmental protection 5,369,403 5,448,188 5,369,403 5,448 188
Economic and physical development 3,447,939 2,629,063 3,447,939 2,629,063
Human services 32,544,458 31,067,818 32,544,458 31,067,818
Culture and recreation 2,070,824 2,307,962 2,070,824 2,307,962
Education 33,000,753 29,897,811 33,000,753 29,897,811
Interest on long term debt 3,716,568 3,042,742 3,716,568 3,042,742
Water and sewer districts 2,378,268 2,350,421 2,378,268 2,350,421
Total expenses 100,194,158 94,866,009 2,378,268 2,350,421 102,572,466 97,216,430
Incr/(dect) in net assets before transfers 489,810 911,865 1,606,095 1,524,375 2,095,905 2,436,210
Transfers 70,150 45,799 (70,150) (45,799) .
Increase in pet assets 559,960 957,664 1,535,945 1,478,576 2,095,905 2,436,240
Net assets, beginning of year 17,691,742 16,734,078 25,658,454 24,179,878 43,350,196 40,913,956
Net assets, end of year 18,251,702 $17,691,742  $27,194399  $25,658,454  $45,446,101 543,350,196
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Governmental activities, Governmental activities increased the County’s net assets by
$559,960 during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. The decline in the increase in net
assets from the $911,865 reported in the prior year was caused by both an increase in
revenues of $4.9 million and an increase in expenses of $5.3 million over the prior year.
Key elements of the increase in revenues are as follows:

¢ Property tax revenue was up by $2.2 million due to a 6.3 percent increase in
property values. The rate remained unchanged at $.61 per $100 of valuation. The
remainder of the increase was due to increased collection efforts.

o Sales tax revenue was up by 1.8 percent over the prior year, or $362,000 due to
favorable economic conditions in the County, primarily during the first three
quarters of the fiscal year.

e Other carnings were lower than the prior year as a result of several items.
Tnvestment earnings increased by $1.0 million as a result of an increase in the
average daily invested amount. This was due to the investment of the unexpended
loan proceeds from the COPS issue. The yield on the portfolio decreased by 3.9%
from 5.16% to 4.96%. The increase in investment earnings was offset by
reduction in other earnings due to a donation of a building received in the prior
year in the amount of $1.8 million. There was no comparable donation in the
current year.

e The most significant increase in expenses was in education and was a result of
funding provided for the construction of the three public school projects: the
completion of Creekside Elementary School; the fiber optic network project; and
a project which included renovation at two schools and the replacement of the bus
garage. Over $10.3 million dollars was expended in the current year for these
projects. Additionally the amount paid, by the County, to the Craven Community
College was up by $2.3 million in fiscal 2008. This was the County’s
commitment to the Business and Technology Building as well as funds for a
parking lot and a fiber optic network on the New Bern campus.

e Interest expense was up by $673,000 over the prior year due to the COPS issue in
August, 2007. This borrowing was to refinance the $18.9 million installment
from 2006 which funded the new elementary school, and to complete the funding
for the park improvements, the fiber optic project, and the Judicial Center, and
fund the school renovations and land purchase, and purchase of land at the airport.

Business-type activities. Business-type activities, the County’s water utility, increased
Craven County’s net assets by $1,535,945.

» Revenue increased by $109,000 over the prior year which consisted of

approximately $36,000 of additional water charges and the remainder due to an
increase in investment earnings.
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e Operating income decreased from 36.2% of revenue to 35.29% this year primarily
due to an increase in depreciation of $154,079 this year. This increase in
depreciation was the result of capitalizing the Pee Dee Aquifer wells and the
extension of water lines in the Northwest Craven area. Operating income was
$1,250,730 and accounted for most of the increase in net assets.

o The water utility rates remained unchanged during 2008. They were increased
several years earlier in anticipation of upcoming capital needs related to
alternative water sources. The State has mandated reductions in the amount of
water withdrawn from the Black Creek aquifer used by the County. Currently this
aquifer is the single source of water for the County system. The rate increase was
put into effect to provide funds to evaluate and implement other sources of water
for the County. During the fiscal year the County completed drilling the wells
into the Pee Dee aquifer as an alternate water source in anticipation of mixing the
water from the two aquifers at the existing well sites, thereby reducing the amount
from the Black Creek aquifer. The remaining work will be completed in fiscal
2009 and involves installing the pumps and tying the new wells into the existing
wells. This project has been funded on a pay as go basis. Before 2013 the
County will, most likely, be forced to build a water treatment plant, which will
result in higher operating costs and require a corresponding increase in water
rates. The water utility is also developing an aggressive conservation program to
reduce water consumption and withdrawals from the current aquifer. One aspect
of the conservation program is to implement a graduated rate structure. This will
occur in fiscal 2009 and will require users to pay more per gallon for greater
volume.

Financial Analysis of the County’s Funds

As noted earlier, Craven County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of Craven County’s governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of usable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing Craven County’s financing requirements. Specifically,
unreserved fund balance can be a useful measure of a government’s net resources
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of Craven County. At the end of the current
fiscal year, unreserved fund balance of the General Fund was $17,780,899, an increase of
$120,391, while total fund balance increased by $1,143,732 to $25,749,140. The
increase in the General Fund balance for the year was 4.6 percent. As a measure of the
General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and
total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents 18.5
percent of total General Fund expenditures (including transfers out), while total fund
balance represents 26.7 percent of that same amount.
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While the fund balance increased during the year, the percentage of fund balance to
expenditures (and transfers out) actually decreased, due to an increase in total
expenditures of over $9 million. This increase was due to an increase of $2.3 million in
debt service, primarily due to the COPS issue relating to the Judicial Center and the park.
Education expenditures increased by over $3 million of which $2.3 was capital for the
community college. Even with the decrease in Medicaid costs to the County this year,
the cost of social services increased by over $1 million. Much of this was due to an ever
increasing costs relating to foster care. Expenditures in the general fund were
approximately $3.4 million less than budget due primarily to lower than anticipated
expenditures in general government, health and social services. The general government
expenditures were significantly lower in the Register of Deeds department where
revenues also declined.

At June 30, 2008, the governmental funds of Craven County reported a combined fund
balance of $64,016,897, a 47.5 percent increase over last year. This increase was due
primarily to the unexpended debt proceeds from the 2007 COPS issue, most of which are
in the Judicial Center Fund.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights: During the fiscal year, the County revised the
budget on several occasions. Generally, budget amendments fall into one of three
categories: 1) amendments made to adjust the estimates that are used to prepare the
original budget ordinance once exact information is available; 2) amendments made to
recognize new funding amounts from external sources, such as Federal and State grants;
and 3) increases in appropriations that become necessary to maintain services.

Total amendments to the General Fund increased revenues by $1.7 million including the
following:

o Intergovernmental revenues increased by approximately $1,168,000 from the
original budget and consisted of the following items. Over $218,000 of additional
pass through grants were received from the state for various agencies throughout
the County after the original budget was adopted. In addition a grant for
$112,500 was received from the Department of Commerce and passed through the
County as an incentive for Wirthwein, an industry located in the County. Grant
increases during the year, from the state for: the Health Department accounted for
over $116,000 of the increase; CARTS accounted for $146,000; and the
Department of Social Services overhead reimbursement for $83,000. Subsidized
day care revenues increased by $338,000 during the year and assistance for
energy grants increased by $109,000. It is not unusual for the State to make more
funds available in these programs as the year progresses.
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e Charges for services budgeted amounts increased by $487,000 during the year.
Collection of fees for the volunteer rescue squads accounted for $110,000 of this
amount. Collections for fees charged by the Health Department were increased
by over $145,000 during the year. Fees for services provided by CARTS
increased $110,000. The estimated revenue for the convention center also
increased by $111,000 during the year due to an outstanding year at the center.

Appropriations in the final budget were increased by approximately $6.6 million from the
original budget. The changes included $1,935,000 additional funds being appropriated
from the General Fund balance during the year. Of this amount, $724,000 was for the
acquisition of the new software for E911 and the Sheriff department. The County
appropriated $113,000 of fund balance for matching Department of Insurance grants for
the volunteer rescue squads. The County had to appropriate $113,000 of additional funds
for the foster care programs due to higher number of children in the program than
anticipated. The County moved an additional $350,000 from fund balance to the County
Reserve for future capital outlay. Expenditures were increased by $2.1 million for the
Community College to fund the capital commitment the County made several years ago
for the Business and Technology Building. This money was moved from the County
Reserve Fund to the General Fund and disbursed to the college. Debt service
expenditures were increased by $2.3 million in the General Fund to service the new
COPS issue. The debt service was originally budgeted in the County Reserve Fund and
was transferred to the General Fund and paid. The remainder of the fund balance
appropriations during the year of $265,000 was for a variety of expenditures, none of
which were significant in themselves.

Proprietary Funds. Craven County’s proprietary funds statements (water utility)
provide the same type of information found in the government-wide statements but in
more detail. Unrestricted net assets of the Water Fund increased during the fiscal year by
$1.3 million to $9.1 million. This was a result of an operating income of $1.3 million for
the year, the same as the previous year. Other factors concerning the finance of this fund
have already been addressed in the discussion of Craven County’s business-type
activities.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. Craven County’s capital assets for its governmental and business-type
activities as of June 30, 2008, totaled $70,828,489 (net of accumulated depreciation).
These assets include buildings, land, machinery and equipment, park facilities, vehicles,
and water production and distribution infrastructure.

Major capital asset transactions during the year included:
s Purchase new vehicles for the Sheriff department and CARTS
e Construction of the new judicial center project
¢ Construction at new park in western portion of County
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Purchase backhoe for use at the County’s solid waste convenience centers
Purchase of new carpet in the human services building

Acquisition of new software for E-911 and the Sheriff department
Disposal of old vehicles of the Sheriff department and CARTS

. & o @

Craven County’s Capital Assets

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Land $7,783,556  §7,774,584 $207,676 $207,676  $7,991,232  $7,982,260
Buildings 37,315,561 37,260,124 563,318 563,318 37,878,879 37,823,442
Improvements 4,302,071 3,681,220 27,956,624 27,436,562 32,258,695 31,117,782
Machinery and equipment 5,548,435 5,302,208 347,763 353,114 5,896,198 5,655,322
Vehicles 4,827,525 4,775,897 185,509 214,454 5,013,034 4,990,351
Construction in progress 14,823,271 2,047,520 590,422 657,980  15413,693 2,705,500
Total 74,600,419 60,841,553 29,851,312 29,433,104 104,451,731 90,274,657

Less accumulated depreciation 23,734,391 21,922,450 9,888,851 9,158,553 33,623,242 31081003

Total net of depreciation $50,866,028  $38,919,103  $16,962,46] 20,274,551  $70,828,489  $59,193,654

Additional information on the County’s capital assets can be found in Note 3 of the Basic
Financial Statements.

Long—term Debt. As of June 30, 2008, Craven County had total bonded general
obligation debt outstanding of $36,642,000. Of this amount, $36,265,000 is debt backed
by the full faith and credit of the County. Included in this amount is $930,000 of general
obligation debt issued by the County on behalf of the Craven Regional Airport Authority,
a discretely presented component unit of the County, and shown as debt belonging to the
Airport Authority on their financial statements. (This debt is not shown in the table
below). Of the total bonded general obligation debt, $377,000 is debt backed by the full
faith and credit of five water and sewer districts, blended component units of the County.

Craven County’s Outstanding Debt

Governmenial Activities Business Type Activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
G. O. bonds $35,335,000 837,930,000 $377,000 $839,500  $35,712,000  §38,76%9,500
Installment debt 62,006,934 28,527,792 1,486,135 1,598,771 63,493,069 30,126,563
Total long debt $97,341,934  $66,457,792 $1,863,135 $2,438,271  $96,2035,069 68,896,063
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Craven County’s total bonded and installment debt increased by $30,309,005 (44
percent) during the past fiscal year. This increase was the result of the August 2007
COPS issue which was used to pay off the interim installment financing incurred for the
judicial center, elementary school, park, and fiber project in the amount of $18,900,000
and finish funding these projects, as well as, additional school projects. The total amount
of the COPS issue was $57,635,000 of which $1,800,000 is shown as Airport Authority
debt and was used to acquire land to prevent development around the airport. This
increase was partially offset by regularly scheduled payments of $6,625,995.

The State of North Carolina limits the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of
government can issue to 8 percent of the total assessed value of taxable property located
within that government’s boundaries. The balance remaining of the legal debt margin for
Craven County is $442,557,380.

Additional information regarding Craven County’s long-term debt can be found in Note 4
of this audited financial report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

The following key economic indicators reflect current economic conditions of the
County:

e The annual average unemployment rate for calendar year 2007 was 4.1 percent in
the County, compared with a State rate of 4.7 percent. The rate has increased to
5.8% at the end of August, 2008.

e The number of building inspections performed by the County Inspections
Department in fiscal 2008 was down 26% percent from 2007 due to the sharp
decline in the housing market. Commercial building is less affected in Craven
County at the present but is slowing. Housing market conditions have been
adversely affected by the lack of credit and uncertainty with the economy
although not to the extent that many areas of the country have experienced.

e Per capita income for the years 1996-2006 for Craven County shows an average
annual growth rate of 3.8 percent, while the average annual growth rate for the
State was 3.7 percent and 4.3 percent for the nation. The County’s per capita
income increased 4.1 percent in calendar 2006 (the latest year information is
available) while the State increased 5.0 percent and the nation by 5.6 percent.
The County’s per capita income level is 96 percent of the state average and 85
percent of the national average.
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Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2009

Governmental Activities: The County has approved a $94.6 million General Fund
budget for fiscal year 2009. This budget was adopted with no increase in the ad valorem
tax rate of 61 cents per $100 of property valuation.

Property values are estimated to increase 4.02 percent over last years estimate resulting in
higher property tax revenue. The budget for fiscal 2009 includes several new positions
and increased capital outlay. Funding for the public schools and community college were
both increased and $3.0 million was budgeted to cover debt service on the certificates of
participation.

Work continues on the Tudicial Center in 2009 with an expected completion date of
around June, 2009. This will alleviate an overcrowding situation at the current facility as
well as provide new facilities for the Sheriff Department and a new District Courtroom.
In fiscal 2009 the fiber optic network will be completed with all public schools,
community college buildings and many county facilities on the network making use of
the broadband connection. All of the school projects financed with the 2007 COPS issue
will be completed during 2009. The Board of Education is looking for suitable land in
the Havelock/New Bem corridor for a new high school and possibly a middle school.
The construction of the school could be several years later than the purchase of the land.

County staff is closely monitoring all revenues and expenditures as a result of the current
economic downturn nationwide. Sales tax collected to date has not been adversely
impacted but it is expected to decrease in the next several months. Certain expenditures
at social services are expected to increase as a result of more people being unemployed
and eligible for services. The department is experiencing an increase in the number of
people attempting to qualify for benefits at present.

Business-type Activities: There were no rate increases or unusual items included in the
budget for fiscal 2009 for the County water function. There will be a rate change,
however, probably effective January 1, 2009 which will enact a graduated rate scale.
This will be calculated to generate about 5% additional revenue and will reward users
with little usage and users with higher usage will pay more for the incremental additional
water. Work will continue on the alternate water supply project in fiscal 2009 by
finishing the Pee Dee aquifer project.

Requests for Information

This report is designed to provide an overview of the County’s finances for those with an
interest in this area. Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or
requests for additional information should be directed to the Finance Officer, Craven
County, 406 Craven Street, New Bem, North Carolina, 28560.
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2008

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Restricted short-term investments
Taxes receivabie
Accounts receivable
Due from other funds

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payabie
Accrued salaries and benefits
Due to other funds
Deferred revenue
Total Habilities

Fund balances:
Reserved for:
State statute
Debt service
Future law enforcement expenditures
Register of deeds
Unreserved:

Designated for subsequent year's expenditures, reported in:

General fund

Special revenue funds

Capital project funds

Undesignated, reported in:

General fand

Capital project funds {(deficit)
Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund bajances

Judicial Nonmajor Fotal
Center Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds

10,391,977 % 433,658 3% 1,231,167 8§ 12,056,802
10,285,400 3,657,135 9,160,693 23,103,228
1,000,000 19,435,305 4,390,940 24,826,245
7,045,969 - 36,89 7,082,860
2,640,522 71,175 332,602 3,044,299
38,816 - 1,010,067 1,048,883
31,402,084 § 23597273 § 16,162,360  § 71,162,317
1,076,200 §$ 1,187,502 & 136,045 8§ 2,399,837
1,549,180 - 2,590 1,551,776
1,010,067 - 38,816 1,048,883
2,018,007 - 36,917 2,054,924
5,653,544 1,187,502 214,374 7,055,420
7,920,769 71,175 326,979 8,318,923
- - 4,328 413 4,328 413
915 - - 915
46,557 - - 46,557
1,057,114 - - 1,057,114
- . 469,202 469,202
- 22,338,596 10,838,077 33,176,673
16,723,785 . - 16,723,785

- - (14.685) (14,685)
25,749,140 22,409,771 15,947,986 64,106,897
$ 31,402,684 § 23,597,273 % 16,162,360  § 71,162,317

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

36



CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental

Funds to the Statement of Nei Assets
June 30, 2008

Amounts reported for the governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:
Fund balance at June 30, 2008 - total governmental funds (page 36) $ 64,016,897

Capital assets used in governmental activities that are not current financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the funds. 50,866,028

Other assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and
therefore are not recognized in the funds. 2,144,933

Internal service fund is used by management to charge the costs of insurance
to individual funds. The assets and labilities of the internal service fund are
included governmental activities in the statement of net assets. 1,591,298

Liabilities for earned but deferred revenues in the fund. 1,804,539

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable and accrued interest payable, are not
due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds. (1062,171,993)

Net assets of governmental activities at June 30, 2008 (page 34) 3 18,251,702

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Judicial Nonmajor Total
Center Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds
REVENUES
Taxes:
Property $ 40,754,564 % - $ 1,506,943  § 42,261,507
Sales 19417676 - 714,030 20,131,706
Tourism Room - “ 798,930 798,930
Intergovernmental 17,042,380 - 2,682,988 19,725,368
Charges for services 13,192,411 - 304,428 13,496,839
Interest 1,359,219 1,507,009 537,173 3,403,401
Miscellaneous 1,113,229 69,729 80,306 1,263,264
Total revenues 92,879.479 1,576,738 6,624,798 101,081,015
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 7,770,341 - 768,866 8,539,207
Public safety 11,079,523 9,997,559 2,479,594 23,556,676
Environmental protection 5,413,220 - - 5,413,220
Economic and physical development 2,572,320 - 470,989 3,043,309
Health 8,004,577 - - 8,064,577
Social services 24,829,156 - - 24,829,156
Culture and recreation 2,134,291 - 744,251 2,878,542
Education 22,696,797 - 10,303,956 33,000,753
Debt service:
Principat 2,575,858 - 3,475,000 6,050,858
Interest 1,619,240 - 2,588,649 4,267,889
Total expenditures 88,755,323 9,997,559 20,831,305 119,584,187
Excess of revenues
over {(under) expenditures 4,124,156 (8,420,821) (14,206,507 (18,503,172)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Debt igsued 1,000,000 30,695,619 26,217,944 57,913,563
Current refunding of debt - (3,200,000) (15,700,000) (18,900,000)
Transfers in 3,539,119 - 8,072,517 11,611,636
Transfers out (7,519,543) - (3,995,294} {11,514,837)
Total other financing sources {uses) (2,980,424) 27,495,619 14,595,167 39,110,362
Net change in fund balances 1,143,732 19,074,798 388,660 20,607,190
FUND BALANCES:
Beginning 24,605,408 3,244,973 15,559,326 43,409,707
Ending $ 25,749,140 § 22319771 % 15947986 & 64,016,897

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Amounts reported for the governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (page 38) 5 20,607,190

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the
amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current
period. 12,008,226

The net effect of various misceilaneous transactions involving capital assets
(i.e., sales, trade-ins, retirernents, and donations) is to decrease net
assets. {61,301

Decrease in revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. (23,575)

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provide current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal
of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of
governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net
assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs,
premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued,
whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of
activities. This amount is the net effect of those differences in the
treatment of long-tern: debt and related items. (32,644,714)

Internal service fund is used by management to charge the costs of risk
management to individual funds. The net revenue of certain activities
of the internal service fund is reported with governmental activities. 674,134

Change in net assets of governmental activities {(page 35) $ 559,960

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE, BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

(Page 1 of 3}

REVENUES
Taxes:
Property
Sales
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Interest
Miscellaneous
Total revenues
EXPENDITURES
General government;
Commissioners
Administration
Human resources
Information technology
Finance
Elections
Tax assessor
Tax collections
Register of deeds
Public buiidings
Housekeeping
Court facilities
GIS/Mapping
Maintenance
Non-departmental
Total general government
Public safety:
Animal control
Medical examiner
Sheriff
Criminal Justice Partnership Program
Jail
Communications
Fire marshal/ Emergency management
Inspections
Volunteer rescue squads
Special appropriation
Wired E-911
Wireless E-911
Total public safety

Variance With

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
QOriginal Final Actual {Negative)
40,171,629 40,181,029 40,754,564  § 573,535
19,306,643 19,306,643 19,417,676 111,033
15,793,467 16,961,389 17,042,380 80,991
13,544,746 14,031,290 13,192,411 {838,879)
1,200,800 1,202,185 1,359,219 157,034
1,014,431 1,049,753 1,113,229 63,476
91,031,116 92,732,289 92,879,479 147,190
506,533 505,849 418,096 87,753
604,108 515,982 493,376
389,272 390,979 383,976 7,003
865,784 872,901 848,857 24,104
744,936 751,810 748,995 2,815
257,271 270,620 244,220 26,400
1,679,740 793,726 787,706 6,020
500,146 505,780 492 849 12,931
1,165,491 1,166,769 948,997 217,772
349,107 267,073 256,476 10,597
226,125 226,171 218,027 8,144
258,820 290,495 277,314 13,181
- 288,400 246,244 42,156
366,619 370,441 365,791 4,650
1,317,783 1,166,193 1,039,417 126,776
8,631,735 8,383,249 7,770,341 590,302
319,962 331,679 323,831 7,848
69,000 69,000 66,900 2,100
4,793,737 4,955,385 4,927,296 28,089
- 120,817 120,817 -
2,881,035 2,960,869 2,942,012 18.857
503,269 508,622 504,459 4,163
290,845 316,407 268,716 47,691
567,337 566,741 473 839 92,902
1,250,808 1,476,256 1,420,471 55,785
8,700 8,700 8,700 -
24,848 24,848 17,574 7,274
18,135 4,909 4.908 1
10,727,736 11,344,233 11,079,523 264,710
Continued
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE, BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2608

(Page 2 of 3) Variance With
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)

Environmental protection:
Solid waste § 3,939,588 % 3,946,077 % 3,730,580 § 215,497
Environmental heaith 1,260,268 1,255,846 1,236,903 18,943
Soil conservation 109,550 110,834 110,326 508
Cooperative extension 335,062 343 688 3135411 8,277
Total environmental protection 5,644,498 5,656,445 5413220 243,225

Economic and physical development:

Planning 528,531 570,696 520,571 50,125
Economic Development Commission 627,353 740,409 579,415 160,994
Convention Center 1,083,437 1,171,311 1,170,627 684
Other-Airport - 66,263 66,263 -
Other-Legal 100,000 244 500 235,444 9,056
Total economic and physical development 2,339,321 2,793,179 2,572,320 220,859
Health:
Dental 277,343 305,343 296,322 9,021
Maternity . 989,664 1,036,167 996,381 39,786
Child health 1,347,850 1,378,836 1,271,012 107,824
Risk Reduction 99,140 129,140 117,136 12,004
WIC 469,428 469,428 441,519 27,909
Adult Health Services 37,940 68,101 51,290 16,811
Vector Control 155,537 157,009 125,199 31,810
Communicable Disease 163,303 163,303 148.964 14,339
Bio-Terrorism 55,960 74,060 72,463 1,597
Family planning 441,280 454,847 432 864 21,983
Home health 2,225,131 2,380,108 2,085,109 294,999
Mental health 272,827 274,027 274,018 9
Other - unclassified 1,605,125 1,807,044 1,752,300 54,744
Fotal health 8,140,528 8,697,413 8,064,577 632,836

Social services:

Transportation 1,264,353 1,579,978 1,481,765 98,213
Administration 1,957,281 2,315,231 2,241,807 73,424
Employment assistance 2,828,562 2,758,868 2,588,880 169,988
Adult/child services 1,342,343 1,366,958 1,253,154 113,804
Veterans services 123,382 125,888 123,444 2,444
Senior services 530,147 552,093 478,919 73,174
Public assistance payments ) 10,951,592 10,739,102 10,216,242 522,860
TANF 5,954,645 6,220,632 5,956,674 263,958
Other - unclassified 391,871 492512 488,271 4,241

Total social services 25,344,176 26,151,262 24,829,156 1,322,106

Continued
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE, BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

(Page 3 of 3)

Culture and recreation

Recreation
Libraries

Special appropriation
Total culture ang recreation

Education, schools
Public schools - current expenditures
Public schools - capital outlay
Community college
Total education

Debt service:
Principal
Interest

Total debt service

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Debt 1ssued
TFransfers in
Fransfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)
Excess of revenues over {under)
expenditures and other financing
sources (uses)
Appropriated fund balance

Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE

Beginning

Ending

Variance With
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
937,564 8 920,299 808,170 % 112,129
1,191,866 1,191,866 1,191,866 -
141 806 141,806 134,255 7,551
2,271,236 2,253,971 2,134,291 119,680
16,538,963 16,623,838 16,621,667 2,171
850,000 850,000 850,000 -
3,210,130 5,225,130 5,225,130 -
20,599,093 22,698,968 22,696,797 2,171
1,375,763 2,575,912 2,575,858 54
476,001 1,619,208 1,619,240 58
1,851,764 4,195,210 4,195,008 112
§5,550,087 92,173,930 £8,755,323 3,418,607
5,481,029 558,359 4,124,156 3,565,797
- 1,000,000 1,000,000 -
1,187,291 3,750,995 3,539,119 (211,876)
(6,946,670} (7,522,713} (7,519,5433 3.170
{5,759.379) (2,771,718) (2,980,424) (208,706)
(278,350} (2,213,359 1,143,732 3,357,091
278,350 2,213,359 - (2,213,359)
- 5 - 1,143,732 § 1,143,732
24,605 408
25,749,140

The notes to the financial siatements are an integral part of this statement.
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 306, 2008
Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds Governmental
Northwest Activities -
Water Craven Water and Aggrepate Internat
Fund Sewer Pistrict - Nonmajor Funds Total Service Fund
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 3 161,774 3 - $ ” 3 161,774 § 363,526
Short-term investments 8,450,600 - 8,450,600 1,760,000
Accounts receivable, net of allowance
for doubtful accounts 633,860 " - 633,860 4,175
Due from other govermment-current - - 50,000 50,000 -
Total current assets 9,245,634 - 50,000 9,295,634 2,067,701
Noncurrent Assets:
Due from other government-noncurrent - - 245,000 245,000
Capital assets:
Land 207,676 - - 207,676
improvements other than buildings 27,956,624 - - 27,956,624
Buildings 563,318 - - 563,318 -
Machinery and equipment 533,274 - - 533,274 -
Construction in progress 590,422 - - 596,422 -
Less accumulated depreciation {9,888,853) - - {9,888,853) w
Total capital assets (net of
accumulated depreciation) 19,962,461 - - 10,962,461 -
Total noncusrent assets 19,962,461 - 245,060 20,207,461 -
Total assets 25,208,095 - 295,000 29,503,095 2.067,70%
LIABILITIES
Currert Habilities:
Accounts payable 63,601 - 63,601 476,403
Accrued salaries and benefits 29,441 - - 29,441 -
Accrued interest payable - 6,557 586 7,143 -
Customer deposits payable 345,376 - - 345,376 -
Installment notes payable-current - 107,312 5,325 $12,637 -
General obligation bonds payable-current - - 132,000 132,000 -
Total current liabiiitics 438,418 113,869 137,911 690,198 476,403
Nencurrent Habilities:
Instajiment notes payabie - 1,336,223 37,275 1,373,498 -
General obligation bonds payable " - 245,000 245,000 -
internal balances 1,575,278 (1,450,092} (125,186) - -
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,575,278 (113,869} 157,089 1,618,498 -
Tota} labilities 2,013,696 - 295,000 2,308,696 476,403
NET ASSETS
Invested in capitat assets, net of
related debt 19,962,461 {1,443,533) (419,600) 18,099,326 -
Unrestricted 7,231,938 1,443,535 419,600 9,095,073 1,591,298
Total net assets $ 27194399 & - $ - $ 27,194,399 % 1,591,298

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2068

Business-type Activities -

Enterprise Funds Governmental
Northwest Ageregate Activities -
Water Craven Water and  Nonmajor Internal
Fund Sewer District Funds Total Service Fund
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 3387837 % - $ - $ 3,387,837 §  4,115826
Miscellaneous 166,684 - - 166,684 132,305
Total operating revenues 3,554,521 - - 3,554,521 4,248,131
QPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of services 1,481,767 - - 1,481,767 3,644,722
Depreciation and amortization 822,024 - - 822,024 -
Total eperating expenses 2,303,791 - - 2,303,791 3,644,722
Operating income (loss) 1,250,730 - - 1,250,730 603,409
NONOPERATING REYENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest income 429,842 - - 429,842 97,374
Interest expense - (58,736) (15,741} (74,477) -
Total net senoperating revenues (expenses) 429,842 (58,736} (15,741) 355,365 971,374
Income (loss) before transfers 1,680,572 (58,736) (15,741) 1,666,095 700,783
Transfers in 26,649 58,736 15,741 108,126 -
Transfers out (171,276) - - (174,276} (26,649)
Total transfers in (ouy) (144,627 58,736 15,741 {70,150) {26,649}
Change in net assets 1,535,945 - - 1,535,945 674,134
Total net assets - beginning 25,658,454 - - 25,658,454 917,164
Total net assets - ending § 27,194399 % - $ - $ 27194399 & 1,591,298

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Business-type Activities ~

Enterprise Funds Governmental
Northwest Activities -
Water Craven Water and Aggregate Internal
Fund Sewer District Nontajor Funds Total Service Fund
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users b 3,579,368 § - 3 - 3 3,579,368 § 4,267,848
Paymenis to customers and suppliers {932,397y - (932,397} (3,908,804}
Paymenis to employees {598,462) - - (598,462} -
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,048,509 - - 2,048,509 359,044
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition & construction of capital assets (535,882) - - (535,882) -
Repayment of installment notes and bonds - (380,311) {144,825) (325,136)
Payments on obligations under capital lease payable (525,136} " - (525,136)
Proceeds from investment in direct finance leasing - 380,311 144,825 525,136
interest paid (78,023) - - {78,023) -
Net cash used in capital
and related financing activities (1,139,041 - - (1,139,041 -
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers out {70,150) - - (70,150) (26,049)
Net cash used in noncapital
financing activities (70,150) - - (70,150) (26,049)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds (purchase) of short-term investments {1,350,000) - (1,350,060) {300,000)
Interest on cash and investments 429,842 b - 429,842 97,314
Net cash used in investing activities (920,158) - - (920,158} (202,628)
Net increase {decrease) in cash ’
and cagh eguivalents (80,840} - - (80,8403 129,769
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Beginning 242,614 - - 242,614 233,757
Ending $ 161,774 % 3 - 3 161,774  § 363,520
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Operating income 3 1250730 % - 3 - 3 1250730 % 603,409
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation 822,024 - - 822,024 -
Loss on disposal of assets 25,948 " - 25,948 -
Change in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (1,102) - - (1,102) 19,717
Accounts payable (47,622) - - (47,622) {264,082)
Customer deposits payable {1,469) - - {1,469) -
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 2,648,509 % - 3 - $ 2,048,569 3 359,044
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of installment notes and bonds
by other governments 3 - 3 - 5 50,000 % 50,000 $ -

The notes to the financial statements are an integrat part of this statement.
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
June 30, 2008
All Agency
Funds
ASSETS
Current assess:
Cash and cash equivalents 113,512
Total assets $ 113,512
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued
liabitities . 113,512
Total liabilities $ 113,512

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These notes are intended to communicate information
necessary for a fair presentation of financial position and
results of operations that are not readily apparent from or
cannot be included in the financial statements themselves.
The notes supplement the financial statements, are an integral
part thereof, and are intended to be read in conjunction with
the financial statements.
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Craven County, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Operations, Reporting Entity, Significant Accounting Policies and Basis of Accounting
Nature of operations:

Craven County, which is govemed by a seven-member board of commissioners, is one of the 100 counties
established in North Carolina under General Statute 153A-10. The County is located near the coast in eastermn
North Carolina, with its seat of government in the City of New Bern. The County is responsible for providing a full
range of governmental services, including police and fire profection to residents in unincorporated areas of the
County, health and social services, recreational programs, ambulance services, recycling operations, and operational
and capital funding support for the public school systems.

Reporting entity:

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these financial statements
present the County (primary government) and its component units, legally-separate entities for which the County is
financially accountable. The four discretely presented component units presented beiow are reported in separate
columns in the County's government-wide financial statements in order to emphasize that they are legally separate
from the County.

Craven_County Tourism Development Authority. The Craven County Tourism Development Authority ("Tourism
Development Authority") is govemned by members appointed by the County Commissioners, the New Bern Board of
Aldermen, the Havelock Board of Commissioners, and non-profit agencies. The County Is financially accountable for
the Authority, as the Authority derives its revenues through a special room occupancy tax authorized and revocable
by the County Commissioners. The Authority does not issue separate financial statements.

Craven County Regional Airport Authority. The Craven County Regional Airport Authority (“Airport Authority”) was
established by a joint agreement between the City of New Bem and the County pursuant to state statute. The
governing authority is selected by the County Commissioners and the County is responsible for financing any
operating deficits of the Airport. The County must approve issuance of any revenue bonds. The Airport Authority
does not issue separate financial statements.

Craven Regional Medical Authority, The Craven County Commissioners established the Craven Regional Medical
Authority (“Medical Authority”) to provide medical services to County residents. The Commissioners select the
Medical Authority's governing board. In addition, Craven County leases land and improvements to The Medical
Authority for $1 per year “in perpetuity”, and therefore does not record these assets in the County's financial
statements. The Medical Authority's financial statements are presented as of and for the year ended September 30,
2007 as if it were a proprietary fund. Complete financial statements for the Medical Authority may be obtained at
2000 Neuse Boulevard, New Bern, NC 28561.

Craven County Alcoholic Beverage Control Board. The Craven County Alcoholic Beverage Control Board ("ABC
Board") is governed by a board appointed by the County Commissioners. The ABC Board is required by State statute
to distribute surpluses to the General Fund of the County. The ABC Board's financial statements are presented as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2008 as if it were a proprietary fund. Complete financial statements for the ABC
Board may be obtained at 3493 Martin Drive, New Bern, NC 28561.

47



Craven County, North Caroiina

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Operations, Reporting Entity, Significant Accounting Policies and Basis of Accounting
{Continued)

Blended component units are separate legal entities whose operations are so intertwined with Craven County that
they are, in substance, the same as Craven County. The County's blended component units are the following water
and sewer districts, which have been established to provide water and sewer services to the residents of the
respective districts:

Neuse River Water and Sewer District Northwest Craven Water and Sewer District
Township 6 Water and Sewer District Tuscarcra Rhems Water and Sewer District
Pembroke Water and Sewer District East Craven Water and Sewer District

The County has entered into an agreement with each existing District, which will encompass additional Districts as
they are created, that transfers all assets, liabilities (excluding bonded indebtedness, loans, and instaliment notes),
operational rights, and responsibilities to Craven County. In consideration for this agreement, the County has agreed
to pay the Districts an amount equal o debt service costs for the respective Districts for the duration of the respective
bonds, loans, and notes.

The County maintains the Districts’ assets, provides water operations and makes payments on outstanding debts on
behalf of the respective Districts. Therefore, the County’s financial statements reflect the assets and debts in the
Craven County Water Fund. The Board of County Commissioners sits as the Board of each District. No separate
financial statements are issued by these Districts as they have no operations, only certain outstanding debt that is
paid on their behalf by Craven County pursuant to the agreement noted above. The outstanding liabilities of the
Districts are presented in individual statements along with the other proprietary funds, and the balances within the
District and the corresponding balances in the Craven County Water fund are eliminated through internal balances.

The agreement terminates with each district at the time there is no outstanding debt. At this point the County has the
option to purchase for $1 all of the real and personal property owned by the districts. There is no outstanding debt
for Tuscarora Rhems Water and Sewer District or East Craven Water and Sewer District. The County has exercised
its option to purchase the real and personal property of these two districts.

Craven County Finance Corporation:

Craven County Finance Corporation (CCFC) is a nonprofit public benefit corporation. The Corporation was
organized and shall be operated exclusively for the purpose of providing debt financing for the County, to fulfill
various statutory obligations involving, but not limited to, purchase and sale, construction and/or lease of real estate
and improvements, facilities, and equipment. County debt and debt payments are made by the County's
governmental funds. CCFC is a blended component unit and does not issue separate financial statements.

Summary of significant accounting policies:
The basic financial statements of Craven County, North Carolina (government) have béen prepared in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States as applied to government units. The Governmental

Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting
and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the government’s accounting policies are described below.
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Craven County, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Operations, Reporting Entity, Significant Accounting Policies and Basis of Accounting
{Continued)

Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information about
the primary government (the County) and its component units. These statements include the financial activiies of the
overall government; except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of
internal activities. Interfund services provided and used are not eliminated in the process of consolidation. These
statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the County. Govemmental activities
generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. Business-
type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each function
of the County's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or
function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense allocations that have been
made in the funds have been reversed for the statement of activities. Program revenues include (a) fees and charges
paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified
as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements. The fund financial statements provide information about the County's funds, including its
fiduciary funds and blended component units.  Separate statements for each fund category - governmental,
proprietary, and fiduciary ~ are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and
enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are
aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated with
the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up
essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and investment eamings, result from
nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund. This is the County's primary operating fund. it accounts for all financial resources of the general
government, except those required fo be accounted for in another fund.

Judicial Center Fund. This fund is used to account for capital project revenues and expenditures related fo the
new iudicial center.
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Craven County, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Operations, Reporting Entity, Significant Accounting Policies and Basis of Accounting
{Continued)

The government reports the following major enterprise funds:
Water Fund. This is used to account for the operation of water services provided throughout Craven County.

Northwest Craven Water and Sewer District. Established to provide water and sewer services to the residents of
this district.

The County reports the following other fund types:

Agency Funds. Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not involve the measurement of operafing results.
Agency funds are used fo account for assets the County holds on behalf of others. The County maintains the
following agency funds: the Social Services Fund, which accounts for moneys deposited with the Department of
Social Services for the benefit of certain individuals; the Juvenile Restitution Fund, which accounts for State
monies to be expended for services to juveriles; the Department of Motor Vehicle Interest Fund, which accounts
for the three percent interest on the first month of delinquent motor vehicle taxes that the County is required to
remit to the North Carolina Department of Motor Vehicles; and the Municipal Property Tax Fund, which account for
registered motor vehicle and real property taxes that are billed and collected by the County for various
municipalities within the County.

Internal Service Fund, This fund is used to finance and account for the County's health and dental insurance and
workers' compensation program information.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

In accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, all funds of the County are maintained during the year using the
modified accrual basis of accounting.

Govermment-wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements. The government-wide, proprietary, and
fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus, except for the
agency funds which have no measurement focus. The government-wide, proprietary fund, and fiduciary fund financial
statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses
are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange
transactions, in which the County gives (or receives) value without directly receiving {or giving) equal value in
exchange, include property taxes, grants, entiiements, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property
taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and
donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including special
assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues.
Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.
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Craven County, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Operations, Reporting Entity, Significant Accounting Policies and Basis of Accounting
{Continued)

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the County enterprise funds are
charges to customers for sales and services. The County also recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap
fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the water system, Operafing expenses for
enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.
All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when
measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when the refated fund liability is incurred, except for principal
and interest on generat long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as
expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other
financing sources.

The County recognizes assets of non-exchange transactions in the period when the underlying fransaction occurs,
when an enforceable legal claim has arisen, or when all eligibility requirements are met. Revenues are recognized,
on the modified accruat basis, when they are measurable and available. Non-exchange transactions occur when one
government provides {or receives) value to (from) another party without receiving (or giving) equal or nearly equal
value in return. State shared revenues, sales tax, property taxes, federal grants funding federal mandates, and most
donations are examples of non-exchange fransactions.

The County considers all revenues available if they are collected within 90 days after year-end, except for property
taxes. Ad valorem property taxes are not accrued as a revenue because the amount is not susceptible to accrual. At
June 30, taxes receivable are materially past due and are not considered to be an avaifable resource to finance the
operations of the current year. Also, as of January 1, 1993, State law altered the procedures for the assessment and
collection of property taxes on registered motor vehicles in North Carolina. Effective with this change in the law,
Craven County is responsible for billing and collecting the property taxes on all registered motor vehicles on behalf of
all municipalities and special tax districts in the County. For those motor vehicles registered under the staggered
system and for vehicles newly registered under the annual system, property taxes are due the first day of the fourth
month after the vehicles are registered. The billed taxes are applicable to the fiscal year in which they become due.
Therefore, taxes for vehicles registered from March 2007 through February 2008 apply to the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2008. Uncollected taxes that were billed during this period are shown as a receivable on these financial
statements. For motor vehicles that are renewed and bifled under the annual system, taxes are due on May 1 of
each year and the uncollected taxes are reported as a receivable on the financial statements offset by deferred
revenues because the due date and the date upon which the interest begins to accrue passed prior to June 30. The
taxes for renewal vehicles registered annually that have already been collected as of year-end are also reflected as
deferred revenues at June 30, 2008 because they are intended to finance the County's operations during the 2009
fiscal year.

Sales taxes collected and held by the State at year-end on behalf of the County are recognized as revenue.
Intergovernmental revenues and sales and services are not susceptible to accrual because generally they are not
measurable unil received in cash. Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying
expenditures have been incurred and all other grant requirements have been satisfied, subject to availabiiity.

51



Craven County, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Operations, Reporting Entity, Significant Accounting Policies and Basis of Accounting
{Continued)

Under the terms of grant agreements, the County funds certain programs by a combination of specific cost-
reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus when program expenses are incurred,
there are both restricted and unrestricted net assets available to finance the program. It is the County’s policy to first
apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs, followed by categorical block grants, and then by
general revenues.

All governmental and business-type activities and enterprise funds of the County follow FASB Statements and
Interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting
Research Bulletins, unless those pronouncements conflict with GASB pronouncements.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

In accordance with the North Carolina Local Govemnment Budget and Fiscal Confrol Act, the County follows these
procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial report:

1) The County Manager submits to the Board of Commissioners a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year
commencing the following July 1. The operational budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of
financing them.

2) Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.
3) The budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance by June 30 each year.

The Board of Commissioners may amend the budget ordinance at any time after its adoption as long as the
amended ordinance continues to meet the requirements of North Carolina’s “Local Govemment Budget and Fiscal
Control Act’. No amendment may change the property tax levy unless the Board of Commissioners is so ordered by
competent authority. During the year, several supplementary appropriations to the original budget were necessary.
Individual amendments to the ordinance were not material in relation to the original appropriations, and all
amendments were legally made. The budget amounts shown in the basic financial statements include the original
budget as adopted at July 1, 2007, and the budget as amended at June 30, 2608.

Under State statute, actual expenditures cannot exceed budgetary appropriations at the level at which the budget
ordinance is formally approved. The County's budget ordinance authorizes expenditures by department total (the
legal level of control} for alf funds, including the enterprise funds. Alt budgets, including the enterprise funds’ budgets,
are fixed in nature. For internal management purposes, the budgets are detailed by line item within each department
and entered into the accounting records. Comparisons of actual expenditures to budget are made on an ongoing
basis. All budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting.

The County Manager is authorized to transfer appropriations within a fund up to $20,000; however, the governing
board must approve any revisions that alter total expenditures of any fund or exceed $20,000. Annual appropriated
budgets are adopted for the General Fund, certain Special Revenue Funds (all fire districts funds), the Debt Service
Fund, and all Proprietary Funds. The budget for Capital Projects Funds and certain Special Revenue Funds (2006
CDBG Scattered Sites Fund and PreDisaster Mitigation 06 Fund) authorize activity for the life of each individual
project. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end, whereas all project appropriations lapse at the end of the
project.
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(Continued)

The budget, as authorized for the General Fund, includes certain receipts fo be received for and disbursed to, or on
behalf of, other entities, or individuals, by the County as fiscal agent. For financial reporting purposes, these agency
receipts and disbursements are reclassified to a fiduciary fund type.

The budgets for the enterprise funds are prepared on a modified accrual basis of accounting which excludes
depreciation expense and recognizes purchases of capital assets as current expenditures. For financial reporting
purposes, the activity of the enterprise funds has been reported using the accrual basis of accounting, which is in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Craven Regional Medical
Authority and Craven County Alcoholic Beverage Control Board (proprietary discrete component units) do not report
budget data in their financial statements.

Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity

Cash and Investments. The County pools cash resources of all funds and invests these funds jointly, including
certain funds of the Airport Authority and the Tourism Development Authority, to facilitate disbursement and
investment activities and to maximize investment income. Each fund owns a pro rata share of the cash and
investments pool.

The County and all component units other than the Craven Regional Medical Authority report money market
investments, if any, with a maturity of more than one year at acquisition and non money market investments at fair
value as determined by quoted market prices. The North Carolina Capital Management Trust ("NCCMT'} cash
portfolio's securities are valued at fair value, which is the NCCMT's share price. Money market investments that
have a remaining maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less are reported at amortized cost.

Investment eamnings of the poo! are alfocated to afl funds based on the individual fund's average cash balances
outstanding during the month.

For the purposes of the County's proprietary fund types statement of cash flows, all highly liquid investments outside
of the pool with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased are considered to be cash equivalents.
For amounts in the County’s cash and investment pool, since cash pools have the general characteristics of demand
deposit accounts in that the individual funds may deposit additional cash at any time and withdraw cash at any time
without prior notice or penalty, such cash and investments are considered to be cash.

The Medical Authority has investments in debt and marketable equity securities, all of which are reported at their fair
value. Debt securities consist of obligations of the U.S. Government as well as corporate bonds and commercial
naper. Marketable equity securities consist primarily of common stocks that are traded or listed on national
exchanges. Both realized and unrealized gains and losses on all debt and marketable equity securities are included
in nonoperating income. Interest and dividends on investments in debt and equity securities are included in
nonoperating income when eamed.

Restricted Investments. The unexpended bond proceeds of the County's 2007 Certificates of Participation Issue are
classified as restricted investments within the County's general fund and certain capital project funds because their
use is completely restricied to the purpose for which the bonds were originally issued.
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Ad Valorem Taxes. In accordance with North Carolina General Statutes [G.S. 105-347 and G.S. 159-13(a)}, the
County levies ad valorem taxes on property other than motor vehicles at July 1, the beginning of the fiscal year. The
taxes are due on September 1 (lien date); however, penalties and interest do not accrue until the following January 6.
These taxes are based on the assessed values as of January of the preceding fiscal year. The majority of the
County's property tax collections occur during December and early January each year. The faxes outstanding at
June 30 are therefore delinquent. To the extent that County property tax revenues result in current receivables as
defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), they are recognized when levied.

Delinquent ad valorem taxes receivable are reported in the financial statements net of an allowance for uncollectible
accounts of $100,000 in the General Fund. The allowance approximates, based on past experience, the percentage
of the original levy which has normally been uncollectible. Net delinquent ad valorem taxes receivable are offset by
deferred revenue in the governmental fund statements because they cannot be considered a resource which can be
used to finance current operations.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. Allowances for doubtful accounts are maintained on all types of receivables which
historically experience uncollectible accounts.

Exclusive of ad valorem taxes, the following summarizes other allowances for doubtful accounts by fund and
receivable type at June 30, 2008:

Component
Unit Craven
Regional
Medical

Authority
Patient receivables (at September 30, 2007) $ 12,779,720

interfund Receivables/Payables. During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual
funds for goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as “due from other
funds” or “due to other funds” in the fund financiat statements.

Inventories. Inventories of the Medical Authority and the ABC Board in the government-wide statement of net assets
are valued at the lower of cost, on a first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis, or market. The Medical Authority inventory consists
of expendable items, including pharmaceuticals and general supplies, held for sale to patients or consurption. The
Medical Authority inventories are recorded as expenses when consumed rather than when purchased. The ABC
Board inventory consists of alcoholic beverages held for sale.

Prepaid ltems. Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2008, are recorded
as prepaid ifems.
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Bond Issuance Costs and Refunding. Bond issuance costs and refunding are deferred and amortized over the term
of the bonds using the effective interest methad in the govemment-wide financial statements and in proprietary funds.
The bond issuance costs relate to the 2007 Certificates of Participation and the 1996 General Obligation Bonds, both
issued in the Governmental funds. The amount recorded as bond refunding relates only to the refunding of the 1996
General Obligation Bonds, which were refunded during the year-ended June 30, 2004.

Intangibie Assets. Intangible capital assets consists of goodwill of the Medical Authority associated with cost in
excess of fair value of the net assets of certain entities acquired in purchase transactions, and are included in the
total for capital assets on the Statement of Net Assets. Goodwill is being amortized on a straight-line basis over 5 to
30 years. At each financial statement date, the Medical Authority evaluates goodwill for impairment.

Capital Assets. Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported af cost or estimated historical cost in the
government-wide financial stafements and in proprietary funds. Donated capital assets are recorded at their fair
value at date of donation. Minimum capitalization cost is $5,000 for all capital assets. The costs of normal
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets’ fives are not
capitalized. Capital assets are not recognized in the governmental fund statements. These statements report capital
items as expenditures as incurred.

The County holds title to certain Craven County Board of Education properties which have not been included in fixed
assets. The properties have been deeded to the County to permit installment purchase financing of acquisition and
construction costs and to permit the County to receive refunds of sales tax paid for construction. Agreements
hetween the County and Board of Education give the Board of Education fult use of the facilities, full responsibility for
maintenance of the facilities, and provide that the County will convey fitle to the property back to the Board of
Education, once all restrictions on the financing agreements and all sales tax reimbursement requirements have
been met. The properties are reflected as capital assets in the financial statements of the Craven County Board of
Education.

The County and its component units follow the policy of capitalizing interest as a component of the cost of business-
type activity capital assets constructed for their own use in accordance with the guidelines of GASB COD.1400.111,
and other related components.

When the County leases capital assets to a discretely presented component unit for a nominal amount, the County
reports those capital assets and related depreciation in the component unit. Depreciation of all depreciable capital
assets is charged as an expense against their operations. Accumulated depreciation is reported in the statement of
net assets. Capital assets of the County are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful
lives of the individual assets:

Buildings 25-50 Years
Improvements other than buildings 10-40 Years
Machinery and equipment and vehicles 510 Years

Capital assets of the Airport Authority, the Medical Authority, and the ABC Board are depreciated over the estimated
useful lives of the individual assets on a straight-line basis.
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Compensated absences. For the County's govemment-wide financial statements and in proprietary fund statements,
an expense and a fiability for compensated absences and the salary-related payments are recorded as the leave is
eamed. The County or its component units have made no accrual for sick leave since there is no obligation for
accumulated sick leave until it is actually taken, as sick leave does not vest.

Long-term obligations._In the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities.

In the governmental fund financial statements, the face amount of long-term debt issued is reported as another
financing source and is not considered fund liabilities.

Deferred/Unearned revenue. The balance in deferred or unearned revenue on the governmental fund statements and
uneamed revenues on the govermnment-wide statements of govermental activities at year-end is composed of the
following elements:

Uneamed or Fult Accrual
Deferred Uneamed
Revenue Revenue
Prepaid taxes not yeteamed $ 226775 § 226,775
Prepaid fees 23,587 _ 23587
Property taxes receivable, net (General) 1,647,654 -
Property taxes receivable, net (Special Revenue} 36,917 23
Recycling fees receivable 118,991 -
Total deferred revenue S 2054924 § 750 385

MM

Net Assets

Net assets in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are classified as invested in capital assels,
net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted. Restricted net assets represent constraints on resources that are
either a) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or b)
imposed by law through state statute.

Fund Balances

In the governmental fund financial statements, reservations or restrictions of fund balance represent amounts that are
not appropriable or are legally segregated for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative
management plans that are subject to change.

State law [G.S. 159-13(b)(16)] restricts the appropriation of fund balance to an amount not to exceed the sum of cash

and investments minus the sum of liabilities, encumbrances and deferred revenues arising from cash receipts as
those amounts stand at the close of the fiscal year preceding the budget year.
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The governmental funds classify fund balances as follows:
Reserved
Reserved by State statute - portion of fund balance which is not available for appropriation under State law
[G.S. 159-8(a)]. This amount is usually comprised of accounts receivable and interfund receivables that are
not offset by deferred revenues.

Reserved for debt service ~ portion of fund balance available for refirement of long-term debt.

Reserved for law enforcement expenditures — portion of fund balance available for appropriation which has
been designated to be restricted to law enforcement purposes.

Reserved for Register of Deeds ~ portion of fund balance available for appropriation which has been
designated to be restricted for Register of Deeds technology needs.

Unreserved

Designated for subsequent year's expenditures - portion of total fund balance available for appropriation that
has been designated for the adopted 2008-2009 budget ordinance.

Undesignated - portion of total fund balance available for appropriation that is uncommitted at year-end.
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Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Explanation of certain differences between the govemmental fund balance sheet and the aovernment-wide statement
of netf assets.

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance - total governmental
funds and net assets ~ governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net assets.
The net adjustment of $(45,765,195) consists of several elements as foliows:

Description Amount
Capital assets used in govemmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds. $ 74,600,420
Less accumulated depreciation 23,734,392
Net capital assets 50,866,028

Accrued interest receivabie less the amouni recorded as unearned revenue in
the government-wide statements as well as deferred charges for bond issuance

and refunding costs as these funds are not available and therefore deferred in 2,144,933
ihe fund statements.
Liabilifies for revenue deferred but earned therefore recorded in the fund
statements but not in the govemment-wide statements. 1,804,539

Internal service fund is used by management to charge the costs of insurance
to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internat service fund are
included in the statement of net assets for the governmental activities. 1,591,208

Long term liabifiies, including bonds payable, that are notdue and payable in
the current period and therefore are notrecorded in the fund statements:

Instaliment notes financing (62,006,934)
Bends financing {35,335,000)
Deferred bonds premium (1,987.,064)
Accrued interest payable (520,043)
Compensated absences {1,946,403)
Net pension obligation (376,549)
Total adjustment $  (45,765,195)
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Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes
in fund balance and the government-wide statement of activities.

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a
reconcifiation between net changes in fund balances ~ total governmental funds and changes in net assets
of govemmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. There are several
elements of that total adjustment of $(20,047,230} as follows:

Description Amount
Capital outlay expenditures recorded in the fund statements but capitalized as assets
in the statement of activities $ 14,333,155
Depreciation expense, the allocation of those assets over their useful lives, that is
recorded on the statement of activities but not in the fund statements (2,324,929)
The net effect of various transactions involving capital assels (i.e. sales, trade-ins,
retirements, and donations (61,301)

Principal payments on debt owed are recorded as a use of funds on the fund
statements but again affect only the statement of net assets in the govemnment-wide

staements 6,050,858
Revenues reported in the fund statements from the proceeds of long-term borrowings
that are not reported as revenues in the statement of activities (36,935,000)

Expenses reported in the statement of activiies thatdo not require the use of cument
resources to pay are not recorded as expenditures in fund staements.
Compensated absences are accrued in the government-wide statements but not in

the fund statements because they do not use current resources (94,743)
Long-term net pension obligations are accrued in the government-wide statements

butnotin the fund statements because they do not use cumrent resources (31,770)
Diference in interest expense between fund statements (modified accrual) and

government-wide statements (full accrual) (197,134)

Bond issuance and refunding costs, premiums and other similar items, are amortized in
the government-wide statements butnot in the fund statements because they do not

use current resources (1,435,925)
Revenues reported in the statement of activities that do not provide current
resources are not recerded as revenues in the fund statements. (23,575}

Internal service fund is used by management to charge the costs of risk management to
individual funds. The netrevenue of certain activifies of internal service funds is
reported with governmental actvities 674,134

Tetal adjustment $ (20,047,230)
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At June 30, 2008, the primary government's cash and investments are comprised of the following:

Cash on hand $ 20,885
Cartying value of deposits 2,501,217
Investmenis and resfricted short-term investments 68,049 473

$ 70,571,575

Statement of net assets reconciliation:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,582,102
Short-term investments 57,989,473
$ 70,571,575

Deposits:

The deposits of the County and its component units are made in Board designated official depositories and are
collateralized as required by General Statute 159-31. They may designate as an official depository, any bank or
savings and loan institution whose principal office is located in North Carofina. They may also establish time deposits
in the form of NOW accounts, SuperNOW and money market accounts and certificates of deposit.

All deposits of the County and its component units are either insured or collateralized by using one of two methods.
Under the dedicated method, all deposits exceeding the federal depository insurance coverage level are
collateralized with securities held by the units' agents in the units' name. Under the pooling method, which is a
collateral pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities held by the State Treasurer's agent in the
name of the State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary capacity for the units, these deposits
are considered to be held by their agents in the entities’ name. The amount of the pledged collateral is based on an
approved averaging method for noninterest bearing deposits and the actual current balance for interest-bearing
deposits. Depositories using the pooling method report to the State Treasurer the adequacy of their pooled collateral
covering uninsured deposits.

The State Treasurer does rot confirm this information with the units or the escrow agent. Because of the inabifity to
measure the exact amount of collateral pledged for the units under the pooling method, the potential exists for under
collateralization, and this risk may increase in periods of high cash flows. However, the State Treasurer of North
Carolina enforces strict standards of financial stability for each depository that collateralizes public deposits under the
pooling method. The State Treasurer enforces standards of minimum capitalization for all pooling method financial
institutions. The County relies on the State Treasurer to monitor those financial institutions. All deposits of the
County rest with banks that have chosen the pooling method. The County, the ABC Board, the Tourism Development
Authority, the Airport Authority and the Medical Authority do not have policies regarding custodial credit risk for
deposits.

At June 30, 2008, the County's {primary government) deposits had a carrying amount of $12,582,102 and a bank
balance of $14,641,342. Of the bank balance, $100,000 was covered by federal depository insurance and
$14,541,342 was covered by collateral held under the pooling method.

At June 30, 2008, the County’s agency fund deposits had a carrying amount of $113,512 and a bank balance of
$118,292. The bank balance was covered by collateral held under the pooling method.
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Component Unit Information

At June 30, 2008, both the carrying amount and bank balance of deposits for the Tourism Development Authority
was $64,869. The bank balance was covered by collateral held under the pooling method.

At June 30, 2008, both the carrying amount and bank balance of deposits for the Airport Authority was $375,446.
The bank balance was covered by collateral held under the pooling method.

At June 30, 2008, the carrying amount of deposits for the ABC Board was $1,715,340 and the bank balance was
$1,689,530, Of the bank balance, $380,000 was covered by federal depository insurance and $1,309,530 was
covered by collateral held by the State Treasurer.

At September 30, 2007, the carrying amount of deposits for the Medical Authority was $11,812,725 and the bank
balance was $13,036,741. Of the bank balance, $102,796 was covered by federal depository insurance and
$12,933,945 was covered by collateral held under the pooling method.

Ihvestments:

State law [G.S. 159-30(c)] authorizes the County, the ABC Board, the Tourism Development Authority, the Airport
Authority, and the Medical Authority to invest in obligations of the United States or obligations fully guaranteed both
as to principal and interest by the United States; obligations of the State of North Carolina; bonds and notes of any
North Carolina local government or public authority; obligations of certain non-guaranteed federal agencies; certain
high quality issues of commercial paper and bankers' acceptances and the North Carolina Capital Management Trust
(NCCMT). In addition to the above, the Medical Authority may invest in other property or securities in which trustees,
guardians, executors, administrators, and others acting in a fiduciary capacity may legally invest funds under their
control.

As of June 30, 2008, the County had the following investments and maturities.

Less Than
lnvestment Type : Fair Value 6 Months
State Agencies $ 23200000 $ 23,200,000
NC Capital Management Trust

Cash Portfolio 34,789,473 N/A
Total $ 57989473 § 23,200,000

61



Craven County, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2. Cash on Deposit and Investments (Continued)

Inferest Rate Risk: As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the
County’s investment policy limits the County’s investment portfolio to maturities of less than 5 years. Also maturity
dates are to be staggered to avoid undue concentration in specific maturity sectors.

The North Carolina State Education Assistance Authority (NCSEAA) instruments in the portfolio have final stated
maturities ranging from 2015 to 2036. Historically they could be redeemed at par and the interest rate reset every 7,
28 or 35 days making the effective maturity date the next reset date, until February 2008 when the auctions began
failing. At that time the instruments became ifliquid and there was no secondary market. See note 16.

Credit Risk: State law limits investments in commercial paper to the top rating issued by nationally recognized
statistical rating organizations (NRSROs); however, the County has no formal policy on managing credit risk. Instead,
the County informally utilizes the State Law to minimize credit risks. The County's investments in the NC Capital
Management Trust Cash Portfolio carried a credit rating of AAA by Standard & Poor’s as of June 30, 2008. The
County's investments in the North Carolina Education Student Assistance Authority are rated Aaa by Moody's and
AAA by Fitch.

Cusfodial Credit Risk: For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the County will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The County has no policy on custodial credit risk.  There are no amounts of
uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty, or by its safekeeping
department or agent.

Concentration of Credit Risk: The County places no limit on the amount that the County may invest in any one
issuer. More than 5 percent of the County’s investments are in each of the following: the North Carolina Education
Student Assistance Authority (40%), and the North Carolina Capital Management Trust-Cash Portfolio (60%).

Component Unit Information

At June 30, 2008, the Airport Authority’s investments consisted of $200,000 in the North Carolina Education Student
Assistance Authority and had a maturity of less than six months. This investment carried a credit rating of Aaa by
Moody's and AAA by Fitch. The Airport Authority follows the County’s investment policy.

At June 30, 2008, the Tourism Development Authority’s investments consisted of $200,000 in the North Carolina

Education Student Assistance Authority and had a maturity of less than six months. The investment carried a credit
rating of Aaa by Moody's and AAA by Fiich. The TDA follows the County’s investment policy.
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As of September 30, 2007 the Medical Authority had the foliowing investments and maturities (Amounts are in
thousands):.

Craven Regional Medical Fair <Than 1-5 6-10 1120 >Than
Authority Investment Type Value 1 Year Years Years Years 20 Years
US Govemment Treasury Notes $ 13,600 § - % 9106 $ 44% § - §
US Government Agencies 24,703 1076 11,916 7,384 4111 217
Asset Backed CMO's 16,877 125 9,337 4,795 2,020 601
Corporate Bonds 33,290 726 19,658 6,498 1,569 4,841
Equity Securities 95,089 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Hedge Fund 11,360 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Short Term Cash Equivalents® 7,109 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
NC Capital Management Trus{* 4,430 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
NC Capital Management Trust-

Bank of New York Trustee 844 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Total $207302 $ 1927 $ 50017 $ 23169 § 7700 $§ 5659

* These amounis include $1,859,509 which is included in cash and cash equivalents.

Interest Rate Risk: As a means of limiting its exposure fo fair value losses, mortgage backed securities or other
asset backed securities will never comprise more than 30% of the fixed income portfolio. Corporate debt securities
will never comprise more than 50% of the fixed income portfolio. The maximum maturity of any non-mortgage
backed fixed income instrument will not exceed 10 years without the approval of the Authority’s Board. Investment
managers should not exceed a 7-year expected weighted average maturity for investments in mortgage backed
paper and government agencies including Ginnie Maes, Freddie Macs or Fannie Maes.

Credit Risk: The Authority’s investment policy requires corporate obligations to meet the commercial paper rating of
A1 by Moody's or P1 by S&P and bond rating in the “BBB" category or better by S&P, Moody's, and Fitch. *BBB’
securities wili be fimited to 10% of the fixed income portfolio. No single “BBB" issue will be greater than $500,000
face value at purchase. Obligations of the U.S. Government or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. Govermnment are
generally not considered to have credit risk,
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As of September 30, 2007, the total quality ratings for the above holdings were as follows:

Cash on Deposit and Investments (Continued)

Holdings AAA AA A BBB BB B Totat
Asset Backed CMO's 100.00% 100.00%
Comorate Bonds 32.48%  2446%  37.69% 5.37% 100.00%
Short Term Cash Equivalents 100.00% 100.00%
NC Capitai Management Trust 100.00% 100.00%
NC Capital Management Trust -
Bank of New York Trustee 100.00% 100.00%

Concentration of Credit Risk: The Authority's investment policy states individual cumulative debt instruments by any
one issuer shall be confined to a maximum of 5% of the fixed income portiolio.

Equity Investment Guidelines: Each equity holding will be limited to 5% of the equity portfolio determined at the time

of investment.

Permissible types of equity investments include equities of U.S. and foreign companies listed on the NYSE, ASE and

NASDAQ traded OTC securities to include common and preferred and convertible preferred stocks. Equity
investments may also include publicly traded mutual funds, unit trusts and other common investment funds

comprised of commingled securities listed on the NYSE, ASE and NASDAQ traded OTC securities.

Alternative Assets: A fund of funds hedge fund is employed fo offer diversification as an investment altemative with

low correlation to fixed income and equity securities. A fund of funds performance is measured against the
performance of an appropriate hedge fund index.

Other Investment Guidelines: The primary portfolio shall contain no derivatives fo enhance the overall yield of the
stock or bond portfofio. The Altemative Asset class may use derivatives. Investment managers must maintain
compliance with State of North Carolina laws and regutlations, and all other applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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Note 3. Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the primary government for the year ended June 30, 2008 was as follows:

Capital Capital
Assels Assels
July 1, 2007 Additions * Retirements June 30, 2008
Governmental Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land, other $ 7774584 § 13789 (4818) & 7,783,557
Construction in progress 2,047,520 12,776,751 - 14,823,271
Total capital asseis not being depraciated $ 6822104 § 12789540 (4,816} $ 22,506,828
Cagilal assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 3 37,260,124 $ 60,032 § {4,585 § 37,315,561
Vehicles 4,775,897 563,274 (511,646) 4,827 525
Equipment 5,302,208 299,458 (53,231) 5,548,435
Other improvements 3,681,220 620,861 - 4,302,074
Tolal capital assets being depreciated 51,010,449 1,543,615 {569,472) 51,993,592
l.ess accumuiated depreciation for:
Buildings 13,608,798 1,367 081 (1,247) 14,874,632
Vehicles 3,484,568 533,538 (458,509) 3,559,597
Equipment 4,077 577 239,899 (53,231} 4,264,245
Other improvements 851,507 184,411 - 1,035918
Total accumulated depreciation 21,922,450 2,324,929 {512,087) 23,734,392
Total capital assels, baing depreciated, net $ 20006500 $  (781314) § (56485 $ 28,250,200
Business-type Activities
Capitad assets, not being depreciated:
Land, other $ 207676 3 -8 - % 20767
Construction in progress 657,980 161,166 {228,723 590,423
Total capital assets not being depreciated $ 865656 § 161,466 §  {228723) § 748,099
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings & other improvements § 27,999,880 $ 530822 % (10,760) § 28519942
Vehicles 214,455 72,516 (101,562} 185,509
Equipment 353,113 . (5,350} 347,763
Totat capital assets being depreciated 28,567,448 603,438 (117,672) 29,053,214
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings & othar improvements 8,657,938 792,706 (10,780} 9,439,584
Vehicles 173,495 22,495 (75,616) 120,374
Equipment 327,120 6,824 {5,350) 328,504
Total accumulated depreciation 9,158,553 822,025 191,726) 4,688,852
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net $ 19408895 § (218,587} § {25,548) $ 19,164,362

* Additions include $228,723 of assets fransferred from construction in progress.
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government $ 503,587
Public safety 595,359
Social Services 327,782
Economic and physical development 431,242
Health 299,241
Environmental protection 83,777
Culture and recreation 83,941
Total depreciation expense, governmental activities $ 2324029
Business-ype activities: T
Water Fund $ 822,025
Total depreciation expense-business-type activities T 822025

Discretely presented component units
The following is a summary of the capital assets of the Airport Authority at June 30, 2008:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 9456818
Construction in Progress . 1,762,140
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 11,218,958

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings 8639436
Improvements other than buildings 12,160,897
Machinery, equipment, and vehicles 1,696,985
Total capital assets being depreciated 23,497,318
Less accumulated depreciation 10,987,395
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 12,508,923
Capital assets, net $ 23728881

Titie to the real property occupied by the Airport Authority rests with Craven County. The land is leased fo the
Airport Authority for an annual rent of one dollar through a lease signed November 1, 1993 and expiring
October 31, 2013.
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The following is a summary of the Medical Authority capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2007:

Capital assets, rot being depreciated
Land
Constructon in progress

Total capitd assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated/amortized
Intangible assets
Land improverrents
Builcing and fidures
Equipment
Total capitd assdis being depreciated

Less accunulated depreciation/amortization for:
Intangible assets
Land improvements, building and fixiures,
and equipment

Total capitd assets being deprecided/amorized, net

Medical Auhority capitd assets, net

Year Ended Septerrber 30, 2007

Beginning Ending

Balarce Incresses Decreases Balance
284465 § - - 2,844,655
5,962,088 11,94549% (6,242,845 11,664,739
8,806,743 11,9454% {6.242,845) 14,500,294
15,727,713 - 15,727,713
3,680,672 86,110 3,766,782
93,303,776 4892 180 98,195,956
111,078,781 9,591,980 (3639,205 117,031,565
223,790,942 14,570,279 (3639205 24722016
(6,906,812) (518,424) - (7,425,236)
(133,934,084 (14,281,148) 3504867 (144,710,365
(140,840,8%6) (14799572) 3504867  (152,135,601)
82,950,046 (229.293) (134338 82,586,415
$ 9N7H § 1716208 § (377,183 § 97005800

All depreciation is directly or indirectly in relation to the provision of healthcare services. The Authority has active
construction projects as of September 30, 2007. The projects include various building renovations and information
systems installations. As of September 30, 2007, the Authority has outstanding commitments for construction in

progress for approximately $52,000.
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Legal titfe to the Medical Authority's property and equipment, except equipment purchased by the Medical Authority
from unrestricted funds, is held by Craven County. The facilities are leased to the Medical Authority, under a lease
agreement which expires in 2024, for an annual rental of one dollar. In the event of dissolution of the Medical
Authority or its failure to function as an Authority and to operate as required in the lease, all of its monies, properties
and assets shall revert to Craven County.

Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt, as of September 30, 2007 are as follows:

Capital assets, as above $ 97,095,809
Capital related debt (Note 4) 4454419
$ 92,641,390

The following is a summary of the capital assets of the ABC Board at June 30, 2008:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 98,533
Contruction in progress 34 841
Total capifal assets not being depreciated $ 133374
Capitat assets, being depreciated:
Buildings $ 451,282
Fumiture & equipment 308626
Leasehold improvements 10,507
Automotive equipment 74,264
Total capite! assets being depreciated 844679
Less accumulated depreciation 459,966
Total capital assets being depreciated, net $ 384,713
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General obligation bonds and bond anticipation notes:

General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the County or Water and
Sewer District that issued the debt. These bonds generally are issued as serial bonds with equal amounts of
principal maturing each year. General obligation bonds payable currently outstanding are as follows:

Purpose Stated interest Rates  Amounts

General government bonds: -
The County'’s general obligation bonds payable at June 30, 2008 are comprised
of the following individual issues:
$28 000,000 2062 School Fagility Serial Bonds with installments due on November 1 (inferest

only) and May 1 {principal of $1,100,000 to $2,300,000 plus interest) through May 1, 2023 45% -50% $ 23,600,000
$20,780,000 1996 School Facility Serial Bonds with instaliments due on December 1 (inferest
only) and June 1 (principal of $225,000 to $1,430,000 plus interest) through June 1, 2017 2.5%-3.75% 10,435,600

$1,800,000 2001 Communiy College Facility Serial Bands with instaliments due on

December 1 (interest only) and June 1 {principal of $100,000 to $200,000 plus interest)

through June 1, 2019 46% -4 7% 1,300,000
35335000

Proprietary (Water and Sewer Districis) bonds:
$325,000 Neuse River Water and Sewer District bonds with installments due September 1

{interest only) and March 1 {principal of $5,000 fo $20,060 plus interest} through March 2016 5.25% - 5.5% 145,000

$659,800Township 6 Water and Sewer District bonds with installments due December 1

{interest only) and June 1 {princpal of $5,500 to $82,000 plus interest) through June 2609 Prime 82,000

$600,000 Pembroke Water and Sewer District bonds with installments due November 1

{interest only) and May 1 {principal of $30,000 plus interest} through May 2013 §.00% 150,000
37006
$ 35712000
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The annual debt service requirements for general obligation bonds are as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-type activities
Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest
2009 $ 2,560,000 $ 1,541,663 $ 132,000 § 20,915
2010 2,525,000 1,453,463 50,000 13,965
2011 2,500,000 1,359,613 50,000 11,115
2012 2,475,000 1,263,763 50,000 8,255
2013 2,445,000 1,166,969 50,000 5,375
2014 - 2018 12,136,000 4,334,019 45,000 4125
2019 - 2023 10,700,000 1,604,700 - -
Total $ 35335000 § 12,624,090 $ 377,000 § 63,750
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Loans and instaliment notes payable:

Purpose Interest Rates Amount

General govemment:

Human Senvices Complex 3.59% 1518419

Convention Center 4.72% 6,765,000

Industrial Park improvements 3.88% 68515

New School/School Projects/Fiber Optic 4.5%-5.0% 24125000

Law Enforcement Center/Park/Tryon Palace 4.5%-5.0% 29,530,000
Total General Govemment 62006934

Enterprise:

Water line expansion project-

Northwest Craven Water and

Sewer District 3.82% - Clean watler note 81593

Water line expansicn project-

Township 6 Water and

Sewer District 3.43% - Clean water note 42 600

Water line expansion project-

Northwest Craven Water and

Sewer District 2.66% - Drinking Water Revolving Loan 1,361,942
Total Enterprise 1486,135

Total loans and instaliment notes payable $ 63493069

The Human Services Complex note is payable in monthly installments consisting of principal and interest in the
amount of $44,576 at the interest rate terms described above. The note is collateralized by the land and building.

The Convention Center project note is payable in semi-annual installments consisting of principal payments
ranging from $217,500 to $385,000 plus interest. The note is collateralized by the convention center land and
building.

The Industrial Park Improvements note is payable in semi-annual instaliments consisting of principal and interest
in the amount of $39,513 at the interest rate described above.

The New School/School Projects/Fiber Optic debt is a portion of the Certificates of Participation, Series 2007
Bonds issued in August, 2007 in the full amount of $57,635,000. Principal on this portion is due in annual
installments ranging between $1,265,000 and $1,270,000. The Law Enforcement Center/Park/Tryon Palace debt
is also a portion of the Certificates of Participation, Series 2007 Bonds. Principal on this portion is due in annual
installments ranging between $1,550,000 and $1,555,000. Interest with respect to the 2007 Certificates is
payable on each June 1 and December 1 at rates ranging from 4.25%-5%. The remaining $1,800,000 issued
was used by the Airport Authority as discussed below.
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The water line expansion note for Northwest Craven is for the purpose of expanding the water distribution service.
The note is payable in annual instaliments consisting of principal in the amount of $27,198 plus interest. The note
is collateralized by the water lines.

The water line expansion note is for the purpose of providing water line extensions to the Westgate Subdivision
located in Township No. 6. The note is payable in annual instaliments of $5,325 plus interest. The note is
collateralized by the water lines.

The drinking water revolving loan is for the purpose of providing water line extension in the Northwest Craven
Water & Sewer District.  The note is payable in annual installments of $80,114 plus interest. The note is
collateralized by the water lines.

The annual debt service requirements for installment notes payable are as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-iype Actvities
Year Ending

June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest
2009 $ 3861859 § 2,944 787 $ 112,637 § 40806
2010 3,841,167 2,775,021 112,637 37453
2011 3,878,508 2,606,838 112,636 34,100
2012 3,380,000 2,439,460 85,439 30,748
2013 3,405,000 2,283,403 85,439 28434
2014 - 2018 17,470,000 9,006,279 416,545 107 847
2019 - 2023 14,890,000 4,964,876 400,570 53275
2024 — 2027 11,280,000 1,410,000 160,232 6,393
Total $ 62,006934 $§ 28430664 $ 148,135 § 338,856
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Long-Term Obligations (Continued)

Changes in long-term obligations for the year ended June 30, 2008 was as follows.

Governmental Activities:
General obligation bonds

Deferred premium on new debt
Loans and installment notes

1. aw enforcement pension obligation

Compensated absences
Governmental activity Long-term
liabilities

Due within one year

Due in more than one year
Total Governmental Activities

Business-type activities:
General obligation bonds
Loans and instaliment notes

Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Total Business-type Activilies

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

$ 37,930,000 - § 2,595,000 35335000 § 2,560,000
13,982 2078563 105,481 1,987 064 -

28,527,793 55,835,000 22,355,850 62,006,934 3,861,859
344,779 31770 - 376,549 -
1,851,659 1535817 1,441,073 1,946 403 1,441,073

$ 68,668,213 59481150 § 26,497,413 101,651,950 § 7,862,832

§ 7,862,932

03,789,018

$ 101,651,950

3 839,500 - $ 462,500 377,000 § 132,000
1,588,771 - 112,636 1,486,135 112,837

$ 2438271 - $ 575,136 1,863,135 § 244,637
$ 244,637

1,618,498

$ 1863135

Compensated absences typically have been fiquidated in the general fund and are accounted for on a LIFO basis,
assuming that employees are taking leave time as it is earned.

State statutes provide for a legal debt limit of 8 percent of the County’s assessed value of taxable property. The
County has utiized $92,920,940 of its legal debt limitation of $535,478,320, leaving a legal debt margin of

$442,557,380 at June 30, 2008.
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Component Unit Information:

General obligation bonds and bond anticipation notes:
The Airport Authority currently has the following general obligation bond outstanding:

Purpose Stated Interest Rate Amount
Airport Terminal General Obiigation Bonds 4.6-4.7% $ 830,000

During the Year

Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2009 $ 150,000 § 43710 ¢ 193,710
2010 150,000 36,660 186,660
2011 150,000 29,610 179,610
2012 175,000 22,560 197,560
2013 175,000 14,335 189,335
2014 130,000 6,110 136,110

$ 930,600 § - 152986  § 1,082,985

Loans and instaliment notes payable:

Enterprise: Stated Interest Rate Amount
Airport Terminal 4.09% $ 2,178,927
Airport Land 4.5% - 5% 1,450,000

3,628,927

{Less) Unamortized charges (35,891)

Net $ 3,593,036

The Airport Terminal note is payable in annual instaliments consisting of principal and interest in the amount of
$416,673 at the interest rate terms described above. The note is collateralized by the airport terminal.

The Airport Land note is a portion of the 2007 Certificates of Participation used for land acquisition, payable in

annual installments consisting of principal and interest ranging from $262,500 to $695,000 through 2011, at
the interest rate terms indicated above.
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The annual debt service requirement for the component unit instaliment note payable is as foliows:

During the Year

Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 880,984 $ 155,438 § 1,036,423
2010 994,568 117,105 1,411,673
2011 608,805 70,368 679,173
2012 373522 43,151 416,673
2013 389,083 27,610 418,673
2014 381,985 11,534 393,519
Total $ 3,628,927 § 425207 % 4,054,134

The Medical Authority had the following bonds payable at September 30, 2007:

Health Care Facilities Revenue Notes, Series 1993:
7.5% interest payable annually on November 1, maturing through 2013 $ 4,454 419

The series 1993 revenue notes are limited obligations of the Medical Authority and are collateralized solely from the
net revenue of the Medical Authority.

Annual debt service requirements, including mandatory sinking fund requirements, at September 30, 2007 are as
follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

September 30, Principal Interest Total
2008 $ 506,914 % 334,082 § 840,996
2009 544933 296,063 840,996
2010 585,803 255,193 840,996
2011 629,738 211,258 840,996
2012 676,968 164,028 840,9%

2013-2014 1510,063 171,928 1,681,991

$ 44544198 1,432,552 % 5,886,971

The total current and long-term fiabilities presented for the Authority in the Statement of Net Assets includes
certain other liabilities totaling $242,186, including the current obligation for other post empioyment benefits.

Interest expense charged to operations was $208,579, while $131,539 of interest was capitalized for the year-
ended September 30, 2007.
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Amounts due from/to funds at June 30, 2008 were as follows (balances within fund types are eliminated):

Receivabie Fund Payable Fund Amaunt
Debt Service Fund General Fund 1,010.067
Tri-Community Fire Dept. Sandy Point Fire Dept. 26
Northwest Craven Park Fund General Fund 38816
$ 1,048,809

The due from/to between the Debt Service Fund and General Fund represents the year-end accruals for certain
sales taxes which will be received and transferred within the first 3 months of the year-ended June 30, 2009.

Transfers of resources from a fund receiving revenue to the fund through which the resources are to be expended
are recorded as operating transfers, and are reported as other financing sources {uses) in the Governmental
Funds and nonoperating revenues {expenses) in the Proprietary Funds. Transfers within fund types have been
eliminated.

The following is a detailed schedule of government interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2008:

Transfers In:

Non-Major
Transfers out: General  Governmental Water

Fund Funds Fund Total

General Fund $ 576 § 7,502,767 $ 16,200 $ 7,519,543
Non-Major Govemmental Funds 3425544 569,750 - 3,995,294
Water Fund 112,999 - - 112,999
ntema Service Fund - - 26,649 26,649
Total Transfers out $ 3539119 § 8072517 § 42849 § 11,664,485

Transfers consist primarily of the following:

$4.452,513 From General Fund to Non-Major Governmental Funds primarily for future debt retirement of school
bonds.

$2 306,989 From General Fund to County Reserve Fund to accumulate resources for various future capital
projects.

$2,165,000 From County Reserve Fund (Non-Major Governmental Funds}) to General Fund to provide funds for
capital project expenditures on the community college.

$724.230  From the General Fund to the New World Software Project (Non-Major Governmental Funds}) to
provide for capital project expenditures.
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County Plan:

The County offers its employees three deferred compensation pians in accordance with Internal Revenue Code
Section 457. One plan is administered by the National Association of Counties (NACQ), with Public Employees
Benefit Services Corporation (PEBSCo.) acting as its agent in fulfilling certain of the administrative and marketing
requirements, The plan, available to all permanent County employees, permits them to defer a portion of their
salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available fo employees until termination, retirement,
death or unforeseeable emergency.

The second plan, administered by the Interational City Managers Association Retirement Corporation (ICMA/RC),
is available to all permanent County employees who wish to defer a portion of their salary until future years, The
deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable
emergency.

The third plan, administered by the American General Financial Group — VALIC, is available to all permanent
County employees who wish to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not
available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency.

In January 1997, the County amended the plans in accordance with the provisions of IRC Section 457(g). On that
date, assets of the plans were placed in trust for the exclusive benefit of participants and their beneficiaries. The
requirements of that IRC Section prescribes that the County no longer owns the amounts deferred by employees,
including the related income on those amounts. Accordingly, the assets and the liability for the compensation
deferred by plan participants, including eamings on plan assets, were removed from the County's financial
statements in a prior year,

Note 7. Joint Ventures

The County participates in a joint venture with the City of New Bemn fo operate the New Bern/Craven County
Library. The County appoints five board members of the ten-member board. The County has an ongoing financial
responsibility for the joint venture because the Library's continued existence depends on the pariicipating
governments’ continued funding. None of the participating governments have any equity interest in the Library, so
no equity interest has been reflected in the financial statements at June 30, 2068. During the year ended June 30,
2008, the County appropriated $975,110 to the library. In addition to the New Bem/Craven County Library, the
County appoints board members to the three other Craven County municipal library boards. Total funding for these
libraries was $216,756. Complete financial statements for the New Bern/Craven County Library can be obtained
from the Library's administrative offices at 400 Johnson Street, New Bern, NC 28560,

The County, in conjunction with Carteret County and Pamlico County, participates in the Coastal Regional Solid
Waste Management Authority. Craven County appoints three members of the seven-member board. The Waste
Management Authority is a joint venture established to provide solid waste management within these counties. The
County has an ongoing financial responsibility for the Waste Management Authority because it and the other
counties are legally obligated under the intergovernmental agreement that created the Waste Management
Authority fo honor any deficiencies in the event that proceeds from other sources are insufficient. The County did
not contribute any funds fo the Waste Management Authority during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. The
participating governments do not have any equity interest in the joint venture, so no equity interest has been
reflected in the financial statements at June 30, 2008. Complete financial statements for the Waste Management
Authority can be obtained from the Waste Management Authority's administrative offices at 7400 Old Highway 70
West, Cove City, NC.
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The County, in conjunction with Jones, Pamlico, Bertie, Gates, Hertford, Northampton, Pit and Beaufort Counties,
participates in a joint venture fo operate East Carolina Behavioral Health (‘ECBH"). Two members fom each
County serve on the board of eighteen members. The County has an ongoing financial responsibility for the joint
venture because ECBH's continued existence depends on the participating governments' funding in conjunction
with funding from the State of North Carolina. None of the participating governments have any equity interest in
ECBH, so no equity interest has been reflected in the financial statements at June 30, 2008. The County
appropriated $274,018 to the Center during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, which inciuded money received
from the ABC Board designated for alcohol education. Complete financial statements for ECBH can be obtained
from ECBH's administrative offices at 405 Middle Street, New Bern, NC 28560.

The County, in conjunction with the State of North Carolina and the Craven County Board of Education,
participates in a joint venture to operate Craven Community College. The County appoints five members of the
eleven-member hoard of trustees of the Community College. The college is included as a component unit of the
State of North Carolina. The County has the basic responsibility for providing funding for the facilities of the
Community College and also provides some financial support for the Community College’s operations. In addition
to providing annual appropriations for the facilities, the County periodically issues general obligation bonds to
provide financing for new and restructured facilities. Of the last general obligation bond issue for this purpose,
$1,300,000 is still outstanding. The County has an ongoing financial responsibility for the Community College
because of the statutory responsibiliies to provide funding for the Community College's facilities. The County
contributed $2,935,130, $2,075,000 and $165,000 fo the Community College for operating, capital, and technology
purposes, respectively, during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. In addition, the County made debt service
principal payments of $100,000 during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. The participating govemments do not
have any equity interest in the joint venture; therefore, no equily interest has been reflected in the financial
statements at June 30, 2008. Complete financial statements for the Community College may be obtained from the
Community College's administrative offices at 800 College Court, New Bern, NC 28562.
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The County, in conjunction with nine other counties and 26 municipalities, established the Eastern Carolina Council
(“Council”) formerly known as Neuse River Council of Governments. The participating governments established the
Council to coordinate various funding received from federal and State agencies. Each participating government
appoints one member fo the Council's goverming board.

The County, in conjunction with two other counfies, govemns the operations of the Craven-Pamlico-Carteret
Regional Library. Each participating government appoints three board members to the nine-member hoard. The
County has no ongoing financial responsibility for the joint venture because the library’s continued existence
depends on the State of North Carolina’s continued funding. None of the parficipating governments have any
equity interest in the fibrary, 50 no equity interest has been reflected in the financial statements at June 30, 2008.

The County, in conjunction with 12 other counties, governs the North Carolina Eastern Region Development
Commission. Its purpose is to allow participating counties, including Craven County, which have the potential to
derive direct economic benefits from the North Caroiina Eastern Region, to create a special economic development
district, known as the North Carolina Eastemn Region Development Zone. The Commission's primary responsibility
is to promote economic development within the territorial jurisdiction of the Zone by fostering development projects
to provide land, buildings, facilities, programs, information and data systems, and infrastructure requirements for
business and industry in the North Carolina Eastern Region Development Zone. The Commission is govemned by
42 voting members, consisting of three members from Craven County and each of the 12 other participating
counties, and three members appointed by the Global TransPark Authority. The voting members from each of the
counties are appointed by the Board of County Commissioners of the respective counties. The Commission is
responsible for a nonexpendable trust fund consisting of an initial State appropriation of $7.5 million and 85% of
the quarterly distributions of the $5 motor vehicle license fees collected by the North Carolina Department of
Transportation. The motor vehicle tax was adopted by the legislature and the participating counties and will be
collected for a period of five years. The principal balance of the trust funds are nonexpendable and will revolve as
loans are made and repaid to the Commission. At June 30, 2008, Craven County had a loan outstanding in the
amount of $68,514 due to the Commission. Also, at June 30, 2008, the portion of the trust available to be loaned
exclusively to Craven County was $1,961,080.

Note 9. Related Organization

The County's governing board is also responsible for appointing the members of the board of the Industrial
Facilifies and Pollution Control Authority, but the County's accountability for this organization does not extend
beyond making these appointments. The Authority exists to issue and service revenue bond debt for private
business for economic development purposes. Craven County industrial Facilifty and Pollution Control Financing
Authority has issued industrial revenue bonds to provide financial assistance to private businesses for economic
development purposes. These bonds are secured by the properties financed as well as by letters of credit and are
payable solely from payments received from the private businesses involved. Ownership of the acquired facilities
is in the name of the private business served by the bond issuance. Neither the County, the Authority, the State,
nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for the repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the
bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2008, there were
industrial revenue bonds outstanding, with an aggregate principal amount payable of approximately $920,000.

79



Craven County, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 10.  Additional Social Welfare Expenditures

The benefit payments listed below were issued directly from the State to recipients of the County on its behalf,
These amounts represent additional federal and State financial assistance to the residents of the County, but are
not reflected in the financial statements because the County has no primary responsibilities beyond making
eligibility determinations.

Medicaid $ 97,967,815
Temporary Assistance to Needy Families 813,360
Food stamps 10,178513
Special Assistance 692,822
WIC 2,406,340
Other programs 438,132

$ 112,496 982
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Note 11.  Risk Management

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors.
and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

The County's Internal Service Fund was established to account for a limited risk, self-insurance program to provide
health benefits to County employees. Premiums are paid into the Internal Service Fund by all other funds
(including amounts withheld from employees) and are available to pay claims and administrative costs of the
program. The interfund premiums are based upon actuarial estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior and
current year claims. An excess coverage insurance policy provides for individual claims in excess of $125,000. A
total of $3,155,753 in claims was incurred for benefits during fiscal year 2008, Payments received from the insurer
for claims over the limit of $10,186 during fiscal 2008 and $27,916 during fiscal 2007, have been netted against the
claims shown below. A receivable of $4,173 and $23,892 at June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively were recorded
to account for additional claims paid during the year for which reimbursement from the insurer had not yet been
received. Changes in the fund's claims liability amounts (net refunds due) for the past two fiscal years were as
follows:

Net Liabilityat ~ Current Claims Net Liability at
Fiscal Year and Changes Claim Fiscal
Beginning in Estimates Payments Year End
2007-2008 $ 381,408 § 3155753 § 3121334 § 415,827
2006-2007 46,606 2,933,964 2,599,162 381,408

During 2003, the County entered into a limited risk, self-funded workers' compensation claim program with
administrative services provided by a third-party administrator. Premiums are paid into the Inernal Service Fund by
all other funds and are available to pay claims and administrative costs of the program. The interfund premiums are
hased upon estimates of amounts needed to pay prior and current year claims. An excess coverage insurance policy
provides for individual claims in excess of $350,000, A total of $119,28G in claims was incurred for benefits during
fiscal year 2008. Changes in the fund's claims liability amounts for the past two fiscal years were as follows:

Nef Liabilityat ~ Current Claims Net Liability at
Fiscal Year and Changes Claim Fiscal
Beginning in Estimates Payments Year End
2007-2008 $ 335,185 § 119,269 § 398,051 § 56,403
2006-2007 170,782 481,468 317,085 335,185

The County participates in one risk financing pool administered by the North Carolina Association of County
Commissioners.  Through this pool, the County obtains property coverage equal to replacement cost values of
owned property subject o a bianket limit of $58 million; general, auto, professional, and employment practices liability
coverage of $2 million per occurrence, and crime coverage of $250,000 per occurrence. The pool is audited annually
by certified public accountants, and the audited financial statements are available to the County upon request. The
pool is reinsured through a multi-state public entity captive for single occurrence losses in excess of $500,000 upto a
$2 miltion fimit for liability coverage, $250,000 per occurrence for property and crime coverage.
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The County carries flood insurance through the National Fiood Insurance Plan (NFIP). Because the County is in an
area of the State that has been mapped and portions of which are designated an “A” area (an area close to a river,
lake, or stream) by the Federal Emergency Management Agency, the County is eligible to purchase coverage of
$500,000 per structure through the NFIP. The County has purchased the NFIP coverage for three buildings, the
Convention Center, the Administration Building, and the Water Maintenance Facility. These three buildings are in an
"A" fiood zone, the 100 year flood area. The County is also eligible to and has purchased commercial flood
insurance for another $4,500,000 of coverage for the Convention Center.

All County employees are covered under a $250,000 blanket insurance policy for theft and crime. The Director of
Finance is covered by a $250,000 individual bond. The Tax collector, Register of Deeds and Sheriff are each
individually bonded for $100,000, $50,000 and $10,000, respectively.

Craven County ABC Board is exposed to various risks of loss refated to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters. The Board has property, general fiability, auto fiability, workers'
compensation, and employee health coverage. The Board also has liquor legal liability coverage. There have been
no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the previous year and settied claims have not exceeded
coverage in any part of the past three years.

The Craven County Regional Airport Authority has property, general liability, and workers’ compensation coverage.
Employee health coverage is provided through the County's seif-insurance program described above. There have
been no significant reductions in insurance coverage in the prior year, and seftied claims have not exceeded
coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

Effective January 1, 2001, the Craven Regional Medical Authority established a limited risk, setf-insurance program
fo provide heaith benefits to the Medical Authority’s employees. The Medical Authority is billed on a monthly basis for
claims by Blue Cross Blue Shield, the plan administrator. The Medical Authority carries stop-loss insurance through
Blue Cross Blue Shield which has stop loss for individual claims in excess of $150,000. The claims fability reported
at year-end is based on the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 10,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues, which requires that a liabifity
for claims be reported if information prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicaes that it is probable that a
liability has been incurred at the balance sheet date and the amount can be reasonably estimated.

Changes in the Medical Authority's claims liability amount for retained risk for the fiscal years 2007 and 2006 were:

Current Year
Beginning of Claims and Balance at
Fiscal Year Changes in Claim Fiscal
Liability Estimates Payments Year End
2006-2007 $ 1,250,000 $ 8,893,932 § 9043932 § 1,100,000
2005-2006 1,250,000 9,195,544 9,195,544 1,250,000

Total claims expense is partially offset by employee contributions.

82



Craven County, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 11.  Risk Management (Continued)

The Authority formerly had professional liability and/or workers’ compensation insurance coverage with three
insurance companies that are now in liquidation:

¢ PHICO Insurance Company (“PHICO": Went into liquidation on February 1, 2002. Provided professional
liability and workers’ compensation coverage for Authority.

e Reliance Insurance Company {“Reliance’): Went into liquidation on October 31, 2001. Provided workers’
compensation coverage for Authority.

 The Virginia Insurance Reciprocal {“ROA"): Went into liquidation on June 20, 2003. Provided workers’
compensation coverage for Authority.

Following liquidation of each of these companies, responsibility for further defense and/or payments refating to cases
and claims formerly insured by the companies was assumed by the North Carolina Insurance Guaranty Association
(*Guaranty Fund" or "Fund"). The Fund handled the cases and claims and paid all costs and expenses relating
thereto with limited input from the Authority.

The Fund notified the Authority that it was requesting reimbursement for both indemnity payments and defense
expenses relating to cases and claims pertaining to all three former insurers pursuant to N.C.G.S. §58-48-50 (a1)(1).
Such reimbursement claim was based on the Authority's having a net worth that exceeded $50,000,000 on
December 31 of the year in which each of the former insurers became insolvent.

The Authority notified the Guaranty Fund that it disputed the Guaranty Fund's legal position with regard fo the Fund's
right to reimbursement for all indemnity payments and defense expenses, including attorneys’ fees, paid by the Fund
in the subject cases and claims. Discussions continued between the Fund and Authority conceming this matter until
the Fund initiated formal litigation by filing a declaratory judgment action on March 4, 2004.

Prior to the dispute between the Fund and the Authority, the Authority had established certain reserves to provide for
payment of professional liability cases where the settlement or judgment would potentially exceed the statutory
$300,000 indemnity payment limit provided by the Fund. The amount of the reserve relating to each pending case
was based upon assessment of the Authority's potential financial exposure for setflements or judgments that
exceeded the indemnity provided by the Fund. The Authority reassessed the nature and extent of its reserves once
the Authority became aware of the Fund's claim for reimbursement and in anticipation of the Authority having to
eventually reimburse the Fund for all indemnity payments and all or part of defense expenses relfating to cases and
claims.

On September 29, 2004, the Fund and Authority agreed upon a resolution of the declaratory judgment action and
entered into a formal Settlement Agreement and Release of All Claims.

As part of the settiement, the Authority paid the Fund $100,910, $149,116, and $762,585 during fiscal year 2007,
2006, and 2005 respectively.
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The Authority continues to maintain reserves to cover reimbursement obligations refafing to those cases and claims
that remain pending. These include several professional liability matters that may involve substantial exposure for
both indemnity and defense expenses as well as multiple workers' compensation matters involving confinued
periodic benefits payments or that are the subject of pending judicial appeals. The nature and extent of these
reserves are periodically reviewed for adequacy and reasonableness by management.

Professional Liability: The authority spent $930,824 for General, Professional, and Umbrella coverage in fiscal year
2007. These premiums represent a transfer of risk and are not determined retrospectively. The Authority also
insures certain employed physicians and CRNA’s under similar policies.

Other: The Medical Authority carries commercial insurance coverage for all other risks of loss. There have been no
significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year, and settied claims have not exceeded coverage in
any of the past three fiscal years.

Note 12,  Retirement Systems
North Carolina L.ocal Governmental Employees’ Retirement System:

Plan Description. Craven County, the Airport Authority and the ABC Board contribute to the statewide Local
Governmental Employees' Retirement System (LGERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension
plan administered by the State of North Carolina. LGERS provides retirement and disability benefits to plan
members and beneficiaries. Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit
provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Local Governmental Employees’ Refirement System is
included in the Comprehensive Arnual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State’s CAFR
includes financial statements and required supplementary information for LGERS. That report may be obtained by
writing to the Office of the State Controlier, 3512 Bush Street, Raleigh, North Carolina 27609, or by calling (919) 981-
5454,

Funding Policy. Plan members are required to contribute 6% of their annual covered salary. The County, the Airport
Authority and the ABC Board are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The current rates for
employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers as a percent of annual covered payroll
are as follows:

Employees Employees
Not Engaged Engaged
In Law In Law
Enforcement Enforcement
Craven County 491% 4.86%
Airport Authority 7.28%
ABC Board 6.00%
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North Carolina Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System:
The confribution requirements of members and of Craven County, the Airport Authority and the ABC Board are

established and may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. Contributions fo LGERS for these
entities for the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007, and 2006 were as follows:

2008 2007 2006
Craven County $ 1109216 § 1042343 § 995,043
Airport Authority 21,035 20,843 21,670
ABC Board 35,305 22,498 22,056

The contribution made by the County, The Airport Authority and the ABC Board equaled the required contributions for
each year.

Law Enforcement Officers Special Separation Allowance:

Plan Description. Craven County administers a public employee refirement system (the "Separation Allowance’), a
single-employer defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement benefits to the County's qualified swom law
enforcement officers. The Separation Allowance is equal to .85 percent of the annual equivalent of the base rate of
compensation most recently applicable to the officer for each year of creditable service.

The retirement benefits are not subject to any increases in salary or retirement allowances that may be authorized by
the General Assembly. Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 assigns the authority to estabiish and amend benefit
provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly.

All full-time County law enforcement officers of the County are covered by the Separation Allowance.

At December 31, 2007 the System's membership consisted of:

Refirees receiving benefits 7
Active plan members 65
Total 72

The Separation Allowance does not issue a stand-alone financial report.

Summary of Significant Accounting Poficies:

Basis of Accounting. The County has chosen to fund the Separation Allowance on a pay-as-you-go basis. Pension
expenditures are made from the General Fund.

Contributions. The County is required by Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement benefits and
has chosen to fund the benefit payments on a pay-as-you-go basis through appropriations made in the General Fund
operating budget. The County’s obligation to contribute to this plan is established and may be amended by the North
Carolina General Assembly. There were no confributions made by employees.
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The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the December 31, 2007 actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method, the level percent of pay closed amortization method
over a remaining amortization period of 23 years, and market value asset valuation method. The actuarial
assumptions included (a) 7.25% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) and (b) projected salary
increases ranging from 4.5% to 12.3% per year. Both (a) and (b) included an inflation component of 3.75%. The
‘assumptions did not include postretirement benefit increases or cost of living adjustments.

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of December 31 2007, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan
was not funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits and the unfunded actuarial accrued liabifity (UAAL) was
$781,597. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $2,434,754, and the
ratio of the UAAL fo the covered payroll was 32.1 percent.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the
financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets are
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation. The County's annual pension cost and net pension obligation to
the Separation Allowance for the current year were as follows:

Annual Required Contribution $ 79,477
Inferest on Net Pension Obligation 24,996
Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution (21,186}
Annual Pension Cost 83,287
Employer Contributions made for fiscal year ending June 30, 2008 51,517
Increase in Net Pension Obfigation 31,770
Net Pension Obligation, beginning of fiscal year 344,779
Net Pension Obiigation, end of fiscal year 376,549

Trend information

Fiscal Year Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pension
Ended Cost (APC) APC Contributed Obligation
6/30/2006 - 85,346 76.69% 316,848
8/30/2007 82,095 65.98% 344,779
6/30/2008 83,287 61.86% 376,549

Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers:

Plan Description. The County contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan ('Plan’), a defined
contribution pension plan administered by the Depariment of State Treasurer and a Board of Trustees. The Plan
provides retirement benefits fo law enforcement officers employed by the County. Article 5 of G.S. Chapter 135
assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Plan is
included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carofina. The State’s CAFR
includes the pension trust fund financial statements for the Internai Revenue Code Section 401(k) plan that includes
the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers. That report may be obtained by writing to
the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carofina 27699-1410, or by calling (919)
981-5454.
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Funding Policy. Article 12E of G.S. Chapter 143 requires the County to contribute each month an amount equal to
five percent of each officer’s salary, and all amounts contributed are vested immediately. Also, the law enforcement
officers may make voluntary contributions to the plan. Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2008 were
$190,637, which consisted of $125,286 (required and actual) from the County and $65,351 from the law enforcement
officers.

Death Benefit Plan:

The County has elected to provide death benefits to employees through the Death Benefit Plan for members of the
Local Government Employee' Retirement System (Death Benefit Plan), a multiple-employer, State administrated,
cost-sharing plan funded on a one-year term cost basis. The beneficiaries of those employees who die in active
service after one-year of contributing membership in the System, or who die within 180 days after retirement or
termination of service and have at least one-year of contributing membership service in the System at the time of
death are eligible for death benefits. Lump sum death benefit payments to beneficiaries are equal to the employee’s
12 highest months salary in a row during the 24 months prior to the employee's death, but the death benefit will be a
minimum of $25,000 and will not exceed $50,000. All death benefit payments are made from the Death Benefit Plan.
The County has no liability beyond the payment of monthly contributions. Contributions are determined as a
percentage of monthly payroll, based upon rates established annually by the State. Separate rates are set for
employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers. Because the benefit payments are
made by the Death Benefit plan and not by the County, the County does not determine the number of eligible
participants.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the County made contributions to the State for death benefits of $23,620
The County's required contributions for employees not engaged in law enforcement and law enforcement officers
represented .10% and .14% of covered payroll, respectively. The contributions to the Death Benefit Plan cannot be
separated between the postemployment benefit amount and the other benefit amount,

The County provides $10,000 of group-term life insurance to all eligible employees.
Registers of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund:

Plan Description. Craven County also contributes to the Registers of Deeds' Supplemental Pension Fund (*Fund’), a
noncontributory, defined contribution ptan administered by the North Carolina Department of State Treasurer. The
Fund provides supplemental pension benefits to any county register of deeds who is retired under the Local
Government Employees' Retirement System (LGERS) or an equivalent locally sponsored plan. Article 3 of G.S.
Chapter 161 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly.
The Fund is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The
State's CAFR includes the financial statements and supplementary information for the Registers of Deeds’
Supplemental Pension Fund. That report may be obtained by writing fo the Office of the State Controlier, 1410 Mail
Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454.

Funding Policy. On a monthly basis, the County remits to the Department of State Treasurer an amount equal to one
and one-half percent (1.5%) of the monthly receipts collected pursuant to Article 1 of G.S. Chapter 161. Immediately
following January 1 of each year, the Department of State Treasurer divides 93% of the amount in the Fund at the
end of the preceding calendar year into equal shares fo be disbursed as monthiy benefits. The remaining 7% of the
Fund's assets may be used by the State Treasurer in administering the Fund. For the fiscal year ended June 30,
2008, the County's required and actual contributions were $9,578.
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Medical Authority Plans:

Craven Regional Medical Authority sponsors and has a fiduciary responsibility for Craven Regional Medical Center
Money Purchase Pension Plan (primary retirement plan), a noncontributory defined contribution plan for employees
meeting certain eligibility requirements, based on a fixed percentage of the base eamings of the employee. A
supplementary retirement plan, administered by Lincoln National Life Insurance Company and The Variable Annuity
Life Insurance Company, also exists which is a contribufory plan with the Medical Authority matching a fixed
percentage of base eamings, for each eligible employee. Both of these plans are single employer, defined
confribution pension plans. The benefit to the employee under the primary plan is the Medical Authority's
contribution plus the investment eamings. The benefit to the employee under the supplemental plan is the
employee's contribution, the Medical Authority's contribution and the investment earnings on these contributions.
Under the supplementary plan the employee's contribution is tax deferred.

The primary retirement plan is fully vested after 10 years of continuous employment. The supplementary retirement
plan is fully vested after one year of continuous employment.

The Medical Authority's contributions were calculated using covered payroll amounts of $37,360,306 and
$41,484 574 for the primary and supplementary plans, respectively.

The total employer contributions of the Medical Authority were $3,736,031 and $829,691 for the primary and
supplementary plans, respectively, for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2007. The Medical Authority's required
contributions represented 10% and 2% of the covered payroll amount for the primary and supplementary plans,
respectively.

The primary retirement plan issues a separate, stand-alone financial report which can be obtained by contacting John
Satterfield, Jr., V.P. of Finance, 2000 Neuse Boulevard, New Bern, N.C. 28562.

Note 13.  Other Postemployment Benefits

The County provides certain post-employment health care and other benefits ("OPEB) as a part of its fotal
compensation package offered fo attract and retain the services of qualified employees. These benefits are available
to retirees who participate in LGERS (Local Government Employees’ Retirement System) and who, at the time of
their retirement, had at least 15 years of continuous creditable service with the County. The County provides
coverage for these benefits through the County’s partially self-funded health insurance plan. Employees who retire
with 15 to 19 years of service with the LGERS and County may continue their coverage upon retirement at their cost.
The County confributes a portion of the cost for all retirees who have at least 20 years of service with the LGERS, 15
of which is with the County. The amount contributed by the County increases with each year of service from 20
years to 30 years. Currently 36 retirees are eligible for postretirement health benefits. For the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2008, the County made payments for postretirement health benefit premiums of $129,911 to the internal
service fund established for the partially self-funded health insurance plan. The County's required contributions for
employees represented .58 percent of covered payroll.
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Plan Description. The Authority provides other postemployment benefits (OPEB) comprised of health care and group
life insurance benefits to retirees of Craven Regional Medical Center who have at least 20 years of continuous full-
time service, have attained the age of 55 and were employed prior o July 1, 1995. The Medical Center pays the ful
cost of coverage for these benefits until age 65. Also, retirees can purchase coverage for their spouse at the
Authority's group rates. The Authority elected fo discontinue the post-retirement benefit to individuals employed on
or after July 1, 1995. The plan is a single-employer, defined benefit OPEB plan established and governed by the
Authority's governing board. The plan does not issue a stand-alone financial report.

At September 30, 2007, the Authority's membership consisted of:

Refirees receiving benefits 36
Active plan members 291
Total 327

Funding Policy. To date, the Authority has chosen to fund these obligations on a pay-as-you-go basis. During 2007,
the Authority funded the actuarially determined net OPER obligation which was accrued at September 30, 2006 and
made some inferim pay-as-you-go benefit payments until the trust was funded.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The Authority's OPEB cost {expense) for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2007 is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer, and amount actuarially
determined in accordance with Statement 45 in an actuarial valuation dated October 1, 2006. The Authority's annual
OPEB cost components and its net OPEB obligation for the year ended September 30, 2007 were as follows:

Annual Required Contribution $ 444193
interest on Net OPEB Obligation -
Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution -

Annual OPEB Cost 444,193
Employer Contributions made for fiscal year ending September 30, 2007 (4,381,949)
Increase in Net OPEB Obligation {3,937,756)
Net OPEB Obligation, beginning of fiscal year 4,134 467
Net OPEB Obligation, end of fiscal year $ 196,711

Trend Information (only 1 year presented)

Fiscal Year Annual OPEB Percentage of Annual Net OPEB
Ended Cost (APC) OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
09/30/2007 $444,193 986.50%" 196,711

* Includes initial funding for the net OPEB obligation for the year-ended September 30, 2006. As of September 30,
2007, the Authority has funded a total of 85.85% of the Annual OPEB cost since implementation of GASB Statement
45.
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A summary of the costs recognized in each of the years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 follows:

Years Ended September 30,

2007 $ 444,193
2006 (Year GASB Statement 45 implemented) 4,300,137
2005 100,904

Funded Status and Funding Progress. The plan was fully funded on April 3, 2007, the date the trust was established.

Actuarial Methods and Assumplions. Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far info the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the
funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as
actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.

Methods and assumptions as of the latest actuarial valuations follows.

Valuation date October 1, 2006
Actuarial cost methed Projected unit credit
Amortization method Level dolfar, 1 year period
Remaining amortization period 0 years
Asset valuation method Present Value
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment raie of return 7.0%
Health care cost trend rates 11.0% down to 5%
includes inflation at 3.00%
Cost-of-living adjustments None

Note 14.  Contingent Liabilities

Amounts received or receivable from granfor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies,
principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute &
liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot
be determined at this time, although the government expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

The County and Medical Authority are defendants in various lawsuits. Management of the County and Authority and
their respective legal counsels feel that these claims can be successfully defended and intend to resist the
allegations of these matters in every way and do not plan to seek out-of-court settiements. In the event that
judgments adverse to the interest of the County and the Medical Authority should be rendered, management and its
legal counsel feel any liability will be covered by existing insurance policies.
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At June 30, 2008, the County had contractual commitments totaling approximately $36,393,000 within the Capital
Project Funds related to the projects being financed with the 2007 Certificates of Participation bonds, of which
approximately $18,708,000 was paid through June 30, 2008, leaving total outstanding commitments under these
contracts of approximately $17,685,000.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2000, the County entered into a 10-year lease agreement for a waste
convenience center. At June 30, 2008, future minimum lease payments under this operating lease are as follows:

Year Ending June 30,
2009 $ 9,000

Note 16.  Subsequent Event

The North Carolina State Education Assistance Authority instruments-in the portfolio, having final stated maturities
ranging from 2015 to 2036, have been called effective July 2008 resolving the matter of ilfiquid investments for the
County.

Note 17.  Pronouncements lssued Not Yet Implemented

In July, 2004, the GASB issued Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, which addresses how state and local governments should account
for and report their costs and obligations related to postemployment healthcare and other nonpension benefits.
Collectively, these benefits are commonly referred to as other postemployment benefits, or OPEB. The statement
generally requires that state and local governmental employers account for and report the annual cost of OPEB and
the outstanding obligations and commitments refated to OPEB in essentially the same manner as they currently do
for pensions. Annual OPEB cost for most employers will be based on actuarially determined amounts that, if paid on
an ongoing basis, generally would provide sufficient resources to pay benefits as they come due. The provisions of
Statement 45 may be applied prospectively and do not require governments fo fund their OPEB plans. An employer
may establish its OPEB liability at zero as of the beginning of the initial year of implementation; however, the
unfunded actuarial fiability is required to be amortized over future periods. Statement 45 also estabiishes disclosure
requirements for information about the plans in which an employer participates, the funding policy followed, the
actuarial valuation process and assumptions, and, for certain employers, the extent to which the plan has been
funded over time. The County must adopt Statement No. 45 by its fiscal year ending June 30, 2009. Management
has not fully determined what impact these statements may have on its financial statements. The Medical Authority
adopted Statement No. 45 during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2007.

In November, 2006, the GASB issued Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Polfution
Remediation Obligations, which addresses accounting and financial reporting standards for pollution (including
contamination) remediation obligations, which are obligations to address the current or potential detrimental effects of
existing pollution by participating in pollution remediation activities such as site assessments and cleanups. The
scope of the document excludes poliution prevention or control obligations with respect to current operations, and
future pollution remediation activities that are required upon retirement of an asset, such as landfill closure and
postclosure care and nuclear power plant decommissioning. The requirements of this Statement are effective for
financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2007.
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In June, 2007, the GASB issued Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets, which
requires that all intangible assets (for example easements, water rights, timber rights, patents, trademarks, and
computer software) not specifically excluded by the scope of its provisions be classified as capital assets, and follow
existing authoritative guidance relating to the accounting and financial reporting for capital assets. This guidance
includes recognition in financial statements and amortization of intangible assets. The requirements of this Statement
are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2009.
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» Schedule of Funding Progress for Law Enforcement Officers
Special Separation Allowance

+ Schedule of Employer Confributions for Law Enforcement
Officers Special Separation Allowance







CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS FOR LAW
ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS’ SPECIAL SEPARATION ALLOWANCE
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Actuarial Covered
Accrued Payroil for
Liability Year UAAL a5 2
Actuarial (AAL)- Unfunded Endingon  Percentage
Actuarial Value of  Projected Unit AAL Funded Vaiuajon  of Covered
Vaiugtion Assets Credit (UAAL) Ratio Date Payroll
Date (a) {b) (b-a) {al) {c) {(b-a)c)
1213112002 - 639,440 £39,440 - 1915,001 33.30%
1213112003 - 691,726 691,726 - 2092891 33.05%
1213112004 - 739,711 739,711 - 2,083,589 3550%
12/31/2005 . 714,832 714,832 - 2,231,390 3204%
1213112006 - 699,460 699,460 - 2293461 3050%
1213112007 - 781,597 781,597 - 2434754 3210%

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS FOR LAW
ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS’ SPECIAL SEPARATION ALLOWANCE
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Year Ended Annual Required Percentage
June 30 Contribution Contributed
1999 37,005 25.1%
2000 42,472 68.1%
2001 55,288 48.9%
2002 61,638 44.8%
2003 64,552 56.1%
2004 71,794 52.7%
2005 78,890 71.6%
2006 80,873 80.9%
2007 78,085 69.4%
2008 79,477 64.8%

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of the actuarial
valuations at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuations follows.

Valuation date 12/31/2007
Actuarial cost method Projected unit credit
Amortization method l.evel percent of pay closed
Remaining amortization period 23 years
Asset valuation method Market value
Actuarial assumptions:

investment rate of return 7.25%

Projected salary increases 4.5-12.3%

Includes inflation at 3.75%

Cost-of-living adjustments None
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Other financial information includes additional detailed analysis of
particular aspects of the County’s financial position and results of
operations.

» Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

e Analysis of Current Tax Levy

s Other Detailed Fund Information




CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF AD VALOREM TAXES RECEIVABLE

June 30, 2008
Uncollected Collections Uncollected
Fiscal Year Balance Credits and Balance
Ended June 30, June 30, 2007 Additions Adjustments June 30, 2008
2008 $ 41,762,365 § 41,038,179 § 724,186
2007 $ 699,817 - 513,397 186,420
2006 187,551 - 55,023 132,528
2005 127,749 - 26,160 101,589
2004 149,582 - 31,009 118,573
2003 150,090 - 37,357 112,733
2002 113,083 - 7,033 106,050
2001 96,100 - 3,688 92,412
2000 97,918 - 2,741 95,177
1999 80,015 - 2,030 77,985
1998 75,131 - 75,131 -
3 1,777,036 § 41,762,365 § 41,791,748 § 1,747,653
Less allowance for uncoliectible
ad valorem taxes receivable 100,000
$ 1,647,653
Reconcilement with revenues:
Ad valorem taxes- General Fund h 40,754,564
Less: Collection of taxes older than ten years 6,315
Plus: Abatements and adjustments of prior
year taxes 1,043,499
Total collections and credits b 41,791,748
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

ANALYSIS OF CURRENT TAX LEVY
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 340, 2608

Total Levy
Property
exciuding Registered
Motor Motor
County-wide Vehicles Vehicles
Property Amount
Valuation Rate of Levy
QRIGINAL LEVY:
Property taxed at current year's rate $ 6,397,232,017 06100 § 39,021,731 % 35,394,111 § 3,627,620
Motor vehicles taxed at prior year's rate 312,874,333 0.6100 1,907,932 - 1,907,932
Penalties - 93,833 93,833 -
6,710,106,350 41,023,496 35,487,944 5,535,552
DISCOVERIES 121,698,204 738,869 738,869 -
6,831,804,554 41,762,365 36,226,813 5,535,552
ABATEMENTS (138,326,003) (870,478) (258,885) (611,593)
Total property vaiuation 5 6,693,478,551
Net Levy 40,891,387 35,967,928 4,923,959
Uncollected taxes at June 30, 2008 724,186 241,429 482757
Current year's taxes collected 3 40,167,701 § 35,726,499 § 4,441,202
Current levy collection percentage 98.23% 99.33% 90.20%
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COMBINING SCHEDULES OF NONMAJOR FUNDS




CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2008

ASSETS
Cash and cash eguivalents
Short-term investments
Restricted short-term investments
Taxes receivable
Accounts receivable
Due from other fund

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FOUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits
Due to/Due from
Deferred revenue
Total Habilities

Fund balances:
Reserved for:
State statute
Debt gervice
Unreserved, reported in:
Special revenue funds
Capital project funds
Undesignated (deficit)
Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

Total
Special Capital Debt Nonmajor
Revenue Project Service Governmental
Funds Funds Fund Funds
$ 471,798 % 714,733 § 44,636 1,231,167
- 5,800,000 3,360,693 9,160,693
- 4,390,940 - 4,390,940
36,801 - - 36,891
234,662 92,343 5,597 332,602
- - 1,010,067 1,010,067
$ 743351 & 10998016 $ 4,420,993 16,162,360
$ - 3 43465 § 92,580 136,045
2,596 - - 2,596
- 38,816 - 38,816
36,917 - - 36,917
39,513 82,281 92,580 214,374
234,636 92,343 - 326,979
- - 4,328,413 4,328,413
469,202 - - 469,202
- 10,838,077 - 10,838,077
(14,685) - (14,685)
703,838 10,915,735 4,328,413 15,947,986
$ 743,351 % 10,998,016 § 4420993 16,162,360
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

June 30, 2008 Emergency
Fire Telephone
District System
Funds 911 Totals
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents b 319,101 8 152,697 % 471,798
Taxes receivable 36,891 - 36,891
Accounts receivable 188,822 45 840 234,662
Total assets $ 544814 § 198,537 $ 743,351
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accrued salaries and benefits $ - $ 2,596 8 2,596
Deferred revenue 36,917 - 36,917
Total liabilities 36,917 2,596 39,513

Fund balances:
Reserved by State statute 188,796 45,840 234,636
Unreserved, designated for
subsequent year’s

expenditures 319,101 150,101 469,202
Total fund balances 507,897 195,941 703,838
Total liabilities and fund balances 3 544814 % 198,537 § 743,351
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008 Total
Special Capital Debt Nonmajor
Revenue Project . Service Governmental
Funds Funds Fund Funds
REVENUES
Taxes $ 301993 3§ - $ - $ 3,019,903
Intergovernmental 369,953 343,815 1,969,220 2,682,988
Charges for services 304,428 - - 304,428
Interest 12,194 258,662 266,317 537,173
Miscellaneous - 80,306 - 80,306
Total revenues 3,706,478 682,783 2,235,537 6,624,798
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government - 768,866 - 768,866
Public safety 2,479,504 - - 2,479,594
Economic and physicai
development 470,989 - - 470,989
Culture and recreation - 744,251 - 144,251
Education - 10,303,956 " 10,303,956
Debt service:
Principal - - 3,475,000 3,475,000
Interest - - 2,588,649 2,588,649
Total expenditures 2,950,583 11,817,073 6,063,649 20,831,305
Excess of revenues over
{under) expenditures 755,895 {11,134,290) {3,828,112) (14,206,507
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Debt issued - 26,217,944 - 26,217,944
Current refunding of debt - (15,760,000) - {15,700,000)
Transfers in 175,732 3,444,272 4,452,513 8,072,517
Transfers out (893,157} 3,102,137} - (3,995,294)
Total other financing sources {uses) (717,425) 10,860,079 4,452 513 14,595,167
Net change in fund balances 38,470 (274,211) 624,401 388,660
FUND BALANCES:
Beginning 665,368 11,189,946 3,704,012 15,559,326
Ending 3 703,838 % 10,915,735  § 4328413 § 15,947,986
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specified revenue sources
(other than Special Assessments) or to finance specified activities as required by law or
administrative regulation.

The following comprise the County’s Special Revenue Funds:

e TFire District Funds — The Fire District Funds are used to account for the County’s collection of tax
revenues and related expenditures for each of the 11 fire districts.

e FE-911 Fund — The E-911 Fund is used to account for the revenues and expenditures refated to the
emergency 911 system.

¢ Emergency Telephone System E-911 Fund —~ The Emergency Telephone System E-911 Fund is used
to account for the revenues and expenditures related to the emergency 911 system.

e Occupancy Tax Fund — The Occupancy Tax Fund is used to account for the receipt of occupancy tax
legally restricted to be used for a convention center in New Bern, NC and a tourist center in Havelock,
NC.

+ 2006 CDBG Scattered Sites Project Fund — The CDBG Scattered Sited Project Fund is used to
account for the HUD and NC Independent Living Rehabilitation Program within Craven County for
scattered sites.

e Pre-Disaster Mitigation 06 Fund -~ The Pre-Disaster Mitigation 06 Fund was originally setup to
account for funds to be used for a housing elevation project; however this project ultimately did not
occur.
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
RHEMS FIRE DISTRICT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE,
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual {Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes:
Property $ 127,631  § 129,504 § 1,873
Sales 57,296 56,722 (574)
Total revenues 184,927 186,226 1,299
EXPENDITURES
Remittances to fire districts 188,930 188,930 -
Workers' compensation 2,090 1,980 ]
Miscellaneous 1,043 1,043 -
Total expenditures 192,063 191,953 110
Excess of revenue over (under) expenditures (7.136) (3,727 1,409
Appropriated fund balance 7,136 - (7,136}
Revenues, other sources, and appropriated
fund balance over (under) expenditures $ - (5,727 % (5,721
FUND BALANCE ‘
Beginning 317,281
Ending $ 31,554

F= o el i
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
NO 1. TOWNSHIP FIRE DISTRICT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE,
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes:
Property $ 121458 § 121,729 38 21
Sales 60,929 59,900 (1,029
Total revenues 182,387 181,629 {758)
EXPENDITURES
Remittances to fire districts 171,469 171,469 -
Workers’ compensation 3,900 3,685 215
Miscellaneous 1,395 1,043 a52
Total expenditures 176,764 176,197 567
Excess of revenue over (under) expenditures 5,623 5,432 (191)
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out:
To Little Swift Creek Fire District Fund ‘ (5,660) {5,660) -
Excess of revenues over {under) expenditures
and other financing uses {43} (234) {191)
Appropriated fund balance 43 - {43)
Revenues, other sources, and appropriated
fund balance over (under) expenditures b - (234) 3§ (234)
FUND BALANCE
Beginning 33,354
Ending 3 33,120
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
TRI-COMMUNITY FIRE DISTRICT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE,

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

REVENUES

Taxes:
Property
Sales

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Remittances to fire districts
Workers’ compensation

Miscellaneous

Total expenditures
Excess of revenue over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Transfers i

From Sandy Point

Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures

Appropriated fund batance

Revenues, other sources, and appropriated
fund balance over expenditures

FUND BALANCE

Beginning

Ending

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
161,440 167,522 6,082
79,328 78,641 687)
240,768 246,163 5,393
248,254 248,254 -
5,115 5,118 .
1,043 1,043 -
254,412 254,412 -
{13,644) {8,24% 5,395
8,486 10,913 (2427}
(5,158) 2,664 7822
5,158 - (5,158)
- 2,664 2,664
41,706
44 370
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
LITTLE SWIFT CREEK FIRE DISTRICT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE,

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

REVENUES
Taxes:
Property
Sales
Intergovernmental
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Remittances to fire districts
Workers’ compensation
Miscellaneous

Total expenditures

Excess of revenue over (under) expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers i

From Township No. 1 Fire District Fund

Excess of revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures

Ayppropriated fund balance

Revenues, other sources, and appropriated
fund balance over expenditures

FUND BALANCE
Beginning

Ending

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Nepative)
75,273 % 73,759 (1,514)
36,044 36,631 313
112,217 110,390 (1,827
105,703 105,703 "
3,200 2,750 450
9,023 1,042 7,981
117,926 109,495 8,431
(5,709) 8935 6,604
5,660 5,666 -
{43) 6,561 6,604
43 - (43)
- 6,561 6,561
29,329
3 35,890
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
NO. 3 TOWNSHIP FIRE DISTRICT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE,
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual {Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes:
Property $ 99,582 & 100,400 § 818
Sales 50,739 50,198 (541
Total revenues 150,321 150,598 277
EXPENDITURES
Remittances to fire districts 111,772 111,772 “
Workers’ compensation 76,664 75,707 857
Capital outlay 19,138 17,853 1,285
Misceilaneous 900 829 71
Total expenditures 208,474 206,161 2,313
Excess of revenue over {under) expenditures {58,153) (55,563) 2,590
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in:
From General Fund 54,888 52,963 (1,925}
From Township No. 9 Fire District Fund 3,000 3,000 -
Total other financing sources 57,888 55,963 (1,925}
Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over {under) expenditures {265) 400 665
Appropriated fund balance 265 - (265)
Revenues, other sources, and appropriated
fund balance over expenditures $ - 400 $ 400
FUND BALANCE
Beginning 33,262
Ending 3 33,662
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
NO. 5 TOWNSHIP FIRE DISTRICT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE,
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Nepative)
REVENUES
Taxes:
Property $ 164,286 § 161,387 § (2,899}
Sales 72,646 72,387 {259)
Total revenues 236,932 233,774 (3,158)
EXPENDITURES
Remittances to fire districts 239,782 239,782 -
Workers' compensation 1,650 1,595 55
Miscellaneous 1,042 1,042 -
Total expenditures 242,474 242419 55
Excess of revenae over (under) expenditures (5,542) (8,645) (3,103)
Appropriated fund balance 5,542 - (5,542}
Revenues, other sources, and appropriated
fund balance over (under) expenditures 5 - (8,645) 8 (8,645}
FUND BALANCE .
Beginning 79,61}
Ending 3 70,966
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
NO. 6 TOWNSHIP FIRE DISTRICT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE,

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

REVENUES

Taxes:
Property
Sales

TFotal revenues

EXPENDITURES
Remittances to fire districts
Workers’ compensation

Miscellaneous

Total expenditures
Excess of revenue over {under) expenditures
Appropriated fund balance

Revenues, other sources, and appropriated
fund balance over expenditures

FUND BALANCE

Beginning

Ending

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)
172,236 % 178,001 5,765
82,839 82,152 {687)
255,075 260,153 5,078

243,039 243,039 -
2,299 1,650 649
9,779 1,042 8,736
255,117 245,732 9,385
(42) 14,421 14,463
42 - 42)
- 14,421 14,421

43,214
S 57635
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
NO. 7 TOWNSHIP FIRE DISTRICT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE,
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes:
Property $ 222,582 % 232,189 9,607
Sates 106,922 105,908 (1,014)
Total revenues 329,504 338,097 8,593
EXPENDITURES
Remittances to fire districts 307,432 307,432 -
Warkers® compensation 3,575 3,575 -
Miscellaneous 18,614 1,042 17,572
Total expenditures 326,621 312,049 17,572
Excess of revenue over (under) expenditures (117) 26,048 26,165
Appropriated fund balance 117 - (117)
Revenues, other sources, and appropriated
fund balance over expenditures 5 - 26,048 26,048
FUND BALANCE
Beginning 80,976
Ending 3 107,024
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
WEST NEW BERN FIRE DISTRICT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE,

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

REVENUES
Taxes:
Property
Sales
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Remittances to fire districts
Workers’ compensation
Miscellianeous
Totai expenditures
Excess of revenue over {under) expenditures

Appropriated fund balance

Revenues, other sources, and appropriated
fund balance over (under) expenditures

FUND BALANCE
Beginning

Ending

112

Varfance
Positive
Budget Actual {Negative)
220,265 § 220,344 § 79
108,570 109,771 1,201
328,835 330,115 1,280
340,005 340,095 -
4,125 4,125 -
1,043 1,043 -
345,263 345,263 -
(16,428) (15,148) 1,280
16,428 - {16,428)
- (15,148) _§ (15,148)
62,407
3 47,259



CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
NO. 9 TOWNSHIP FIRE DISTRICT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE,
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes:
Property $ 118,955 § 116,607 § (2.348)
Sales 59,207 58,630 {377y
Total revenues 178,162 175,237 (2.925)
EXPENDITURES
Remittances to fire districts 169,950 169,950 -
Workers” compensation 3,200 2,585 615
Miscellaneous 2,055 1,043 1,012
Total expenditures 175,205 173,578 1,627
Excess of revenue over {under) expenditures 2,957 1,659 {1,298)
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out:
To Township No. 3 Fire District Fund (3,000 {3,000) -
Bxcess of revenues over (under) expenditures
and other financing uses (43) (1,341} (1,298)
Appropriated fund balance 43 - {43)
Revenues, other sources, and appropriated
fund balance over {under) expenditures $ - {1,341) § (1,341)
FIUND BALANCE
Beginning 46,766
Ending $ 45425
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SANDY POINT SERVICE DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE,
BUDGET ANDP ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes:
Property 3 5,620 3§ 5,50t % (119
Sales 2,866 3,090 224
Total revenues 8,486 8,591 105
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out:
To Tri-Community Fire District Fund {10,913} {10,913) -
Fxcess of revenues over (under)
other financing uses (2,427 (2,322) 105
Appropriated fund balance 2,427 - (2.427)
Revenues, other sources, and appropriated
fund balance over {under) expenditures $ - 2322y § (2,322)
FUND BALANCE
Beginning 3,314
Ending 3§ 992
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
E-911 FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE,

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

REVENUES
Charges for services
Interest

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Public safety
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out:
To General Fund

To County Reserve Fund
Total other financing uses

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures
and other financing uses

Appropriated fund balance

Revenues, other sources, and appropriated
fund balance over (under) expenditures

FUND BALANCE
Beginning

Ending

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual {Negative)
139,001 139,001 § -
5,451 5,451 .
144,452 144,452 -
127,907 127,903 4
127,907 127,903 4
16,545 16,549 4
(30,000) (30,000) -
{156,697) (156,697) .
(186,697) (186,697) -
(170,152) (170,148) 4
170,152 - {170,152}
- (170,148) § (170,148)
170,148
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
EMERGENCY TELEPHONE SYSTEM E-911 FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE,
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Charges for services 3 140,598 § 165427 % 24,829
interest - 2,177 2,177
Total revenues 146,598 167,604 27.006
EXPENDITURES
Public safety 149,598 94,432 46,166
Total expenditures 140,598 94,432 46,166
Excess of revenues over expenditures - 73,172 73,172
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in:
From General Fund - 122,769 122,709
Excess of revemies over expenditures
and other financing uses $ - 195941 % 195,941
FUND BALANCE
Beginning -
Ending . b 195,941
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

OCCUPANCY TAX FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE,

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

REVENUES
Taxes
Interest
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Economic and physical development:
Remittance to City of Havelock
Professional services
Total expenditures

Excess of revenue over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out:
To General Fund

Excess of revenues over expenditures
and other financing sources {uses)

FUND BALANCE
Beginning

Ending

117

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 892,760 798,930 b {(93,830)
- 4,566 4,566
892,760 803,496 (89,264)
97,000 97,000 -
50 36 14
97,050 97,036 14
795,710 706,460 (89,250)
(795,710) (706,460) (89,250)
3 - - $ -




CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROGLINA
2006 CDBG SCATTERED SITES PROJECT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE,
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Actual
Total Total
Project Prior Current To

Estimates Years Year Date
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ 400,000 § 34,575 365,425 400,000
EXPENDITURES
Economic and physical development 400,000 34,575 365,425 400,000

Excess of revenues over expenditures 5 - 8 - - -

FUND BALANCE
Beginning -
Ending ~
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
PREDISASTER MITIGATION 06

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE,
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Faception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Actual
Total Total
Project Prior Current To
Hstimates Years Year Date
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ 4529 % - 4,528 § 4,528
Miscellaneous 4,000 4,000 - 4,000
Total revenues 8,529 4,000 4,528 8,528
EXPENDITURES
Economic and physical development 8,529 ~ 8,528 8,528
8,529 - 8,528 8,528
Excess of revenues over expenditures 3 - $ 4,000 (4,000 § -
FUND BALANCE
Beginning 4,000
Ending -

119






DEBT SERVICE FUND

The debt service fund is being used to account for the accumulation
of resources and payment of general obligation school bond and
installment loans principal and interest from intergovernmental and
local resources. The fund is accounted for on the modified accrual
basis of accounting.




CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
DEBT SERVICE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE,

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

REVENUES
Intergovernmental-lottery proceeds
Intergovernmental-other
Interest

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Principal

Interest and fiscal charges
Total expenditures

Excess of revenue over (under) expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in:
From General Fund

Total other financing sources

Excess of revenues over expenditures
and other financing sources

FUND BALANCE
Beginning

Ending

Variance
Budget Actual Positive
$ 936,000 % 368,420 % (567,580)
1,130,753 1,600,800 470,047
125,000 266,317 141,317
2,191,753 2,235,537 43,784
3,475,000 3,475,000 -
2,591,753 2,588,649 3,104
6,066,753 6,063,649 3,104
(3,875,000) (3,828,112) 46,888
3,875,000 4452513 577,513
3,875,000 4,452 513 577,513
$ - 624,401 § 624,401
3,704,012
3 4,328,413
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CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

Capital Project Funds account for all resources used for the acquisition and/or construction of major capital
facilities other than those furnished by Enterprise Funds.

The following comprise the County’s Capital Project Funds:

Major Fund:

Judicial Center Project Fund — The Law Enforcement Center Project Fund accounts for construction of a new
law enforcement facility in Craven County.

Non-major Funds:

Connty Reserve Fund - The County Reserve Capital Project Fund is a capital reserve fund for future acquisitions
or construction of buildings and equipment.

New Elementary School Project Fund — The New Elementary School Project Fund accounts for construction of
a new elementary school in Craven County.

Mapping Project Fund — The Mapping Project Fund will account for a major system upgrade to improve
mapping capabilities in Craven County.

Orthophotography Project Fund — The Orthophotography Preject Fund will account for an update of the
county-wide orthophotography.

Northwest Craven Park Project Fund — The Northwest Craven Park Project Fund will account for construction
of 2 new park in the western part of the County

Fiber Optic Project Fund — The Fiber Optic Project Fund will account for the installation of a new fiber optic
network for emergency services across the County.

Schools Special Project Fund — The Schools Special Project Fund accounts for construction of a
replacement bus garage, renovations at Grover C. Fields Middle School and J.T. Barber Elementary
School, land for a future high school, replacement of telephone systems at ten schools, and a new roof
on the administration building. All of these projects are being funded through the 2007 COPS issue.

New World Software Fund ~ The New World Software Project accounts for the acquisition and
implementation of new software for E-911 (dispatch), as well as new records software for the Sheriff
Department and jail, and mobile field reporting for patrol deputies.

All Capital Project Funds are accounted for on the modified accrual basis of accounting.







CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
JUDICIAL CENTER PROJECT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE,
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Actual
Total Total
Project Pricr Cutrent To
Estimates Years Year Date
REVENUES
Interest 3 777,000 § 83,762 § 1,507,009 § 1,590,771
Miscellanecus - 2,763 69,729 72,492
Total revenues 777,000 86,525 1,576,738 1,663,263
EXPENDITURES
Capital ouflay:
Project construction 33,973,000 2,541,552 2,097,539 12,539,111
Total expenditures 33,973,000 2,541,552 9,897,559 12,539,111
Excess of revenues under expendifures (33,196,000} (2,455,027) (8,420,821) (10,875,848)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Debt issued, net of current refunding 30,696,000 3,200,000 27,495,619 30,695,619
Transfers in:
From County Reserve Fund 2,500,000 2,500,600 - 2,500,000
Total other financing sources 33,196,000 5,700,060 27,495,619 33,195,619
Excess of revenues and other financing
sources over expendifures 5 - $ 3,244,973 19,074,798 § 22,319,771
FUND BALANCE
Beginning 3,244 973
Ending $ 22,319,771
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY RESERVE CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN #UND BALANCE,

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

REVENUE

Interest

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
TFransfers in {out):

From General Fund

From E-911 Fund

To Mapping Project Fund

To Tudicial Center Capital Project Fund

To General Fund

Between closed projects

Total other financing sources (uses)

Hxcess of revenues over other
financing sources (uses)

Appropriated fund balance

Revenues, other sources, and appropriated
fund balance over {under) expenditures

FUND BALANCE
Beginning

Ending

Actaal
Total
Project Prior Current Total
Estimates Years Year to Date
533,858 § 606,926 246,622 § 853,548
16,983,851 15,110,079 2,150,292 17,260,371
- - 156,697 156,697
{150,000) {130,000} - (150,000)
(7,500,000) (2,500,000} - (2,500,060)
(4,698,623) (1,913,781) (2,682,680} (4,596,461)
(7,151,761) (5,09£,916) - (5,091,918)
(2,516,493) 5,454,382 (375,691) 5,078,621
(1,982,635) 6,061,308 {129,069) 5,932,239
1,982,635 - - .
- $ 6,061,208 (129,069 § 5,932,239
6,061,308
5,932,239
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

NEW ELEMENTARY SCHOOL PROJECT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE,

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

REVENUES
Interest
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay:
Project construction
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues under expendifures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Debt issued, net of current refunding
Transfers in (out):

From Debt Service Fund

To Schools Special Project Fund

To Debt Service Fund

Total transfers in (out)
Total other financing sources (uses)

Exeess of revennes and other financing
sources (uses) over expendinires

FUND BALANCE
Beginning

Ending

123

$

3,131,809

323,258

Actual
Total Total
Project Prior Current To
Estimates Years Year Date
§ 65,555 § 65,555 3 B $ 65,555
215,238 215,238 80,306 295,544
280,793 280,793 20,306 361,099
13,867,740 11,148,984 2,475,804 13,624,788
13,867,740 11,148,984 2,475,804 13,624,788
{13,586,947) (10,868,191} (2,395,498) (13,263,689)
14,000,000 14,060,000 - 14,000,00C
1,198,486 1,198,486 . 1,198,486
(413,053} - (413,053) (413,083}
(1,198,486) (1,198,486) - {1,198,486)
(413,053) - (413,053} (413,053)
13,586,947 14,000,000 (413,053) 13,586,947
5 - $ 3,131,809 (2,808,551) § 323258



CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
MAPPING PROJECT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE,

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

REVENUES
Interest
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Capital ouflay:
Project construction
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues
under expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in (ouf):

From County Reserve Fund

Excess of revenues over
expenditures and other financing sources

FUND BALANCE
Beginning

Ending

Actual
Total Total
Project Prior Current To
Estimates Years Year Date
- 6,263 3168 % 9,461
- 6,263 3,198 2,461
150,000 7,600 62,139 69,739
150,000 7,600 62,139 69,739
(150,000) (1,337) (58,941) (60,278)
150,000 150,000 - 150,000
" 148,663 {58,041) % 89,722
148,663
89,722
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
ORTHOPHOTOGRAPHY PROJECT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE,

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

REVENUES
Interest
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Capital cutlay:
Contractual services
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues under expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers m (outy
To General Fund
From General Fund
Total other financing sources {uses)

Excess of revenues and othey financing
sources (uses) over {under} expenditures

FUND BALANCE
Beginning

Ending

Actual
Total Total
Project Prior Current To
Estimates Years Year Date
6,405 § 4,535 § 1,369 § 6,404
6,405 4,535 1,369 6,404
359,250 96,390 262,860 359,250
359,250 96,390 262,360 359,250
(352,845) (91,855} (260,991) (352,846)
(6,405) - (6,404) {6,404}
359,250 356,250 B 350,250
352,845 359,250 (6,404} 352,846
- 3 267,395 (267,395) $ "
267,395
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
NORTHWEST CRAVEN PARK

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE,

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay:
Project construction
Engineering fees
Totai expenditures

Excess of revenues under expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Debt issued, net of vurrent refunding

Total other financiag sources

Fxcess of revenues over (under) expenditures
and other financing sources

FUND BALANCE
Beginning

Ending

Actaal
Total ‘Fotal
Project Prior Current To

Estimates Years Year Date
500,000 106,185 343815 § 459,000
500,000 106,185 343,815 450,000
951,537 206,775 725317 932,092
43,463 13,659 18,934 32,593
1,000,000 220,434 744,251 964,685
(500,000) (114,249 (400,436) (514,685)
500,000 504,000 - 506,000
500,000 504,000 - 500,000
- 385,751 (400,435) § (14,685)

385,751
S (14685
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
FIBER OPTIC PROJECT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES INFUND BALANCE,

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay:
Project consfruction
Total expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Debt issued, net of current refunding
‘Fotal other financing sources

Excess of other financing sources
over expenditures

FUND BALANCE
Beginning

Ending

Actual
Total Total
Project Prior Current To
Estimates Years Year Date
2,167,552 4930 § 1,666,849 § 1,671,820
2,167,552 4,980 1,666,849 1,671,829
2,167,552 1,200,000 967,552 2,167,552
2,167,552 1,200,000 067,552 2,167,552
- 1,195,020 {699,207 § 495,723
1,195,020
3 495,723

127



CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHOOLS SPECIAL PROJECT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE,

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

EXPENDITURES
Capital cutiay:
Project construction
Total expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Debt issued
Transfers in:
From Schoot Capital Project
Total other fimancing sources

Excess of other financing sources

over expenditures
FUND BALANCE
Beginning
Ending

Actual
Total Total
Project Prior Current To

Estimates Years Year Date
9,963,445 § - 6,161,303 6,161,303
$,963,445 - 6,161,303 6,161,303
9,550,392 - 9,550,392 9,550,392
413,053 - 413,053 413,053
9,963 445 - 9,963,445 9,963,445
- 8 - 3,802,142 3,802,142
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA.
NEW WORLD SOFTWARE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE,

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

REVENUES
Interest
Total revenues

EXFENDITURES
Capital outlay:
Project construction
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues under expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in:

From General Fund

Excess of other financing sources
over expenditures

FUND BALANCE
Beginning

Ending

Actual

Total Fotal

Project Prior Current To

Estimates Years Year Date
- $ . " 5 6973 § 6,973
- - 6,973 6,973
724,230 - 443,867 443,867
724,230 - 443,867 443,867
(724,230} - (436,804) {436,394)
724,230 - 724,230 724,230
- b - 287,336 § 287,326

$ 287336
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise Funds account for operations that are either financed and
operated in a manner similar to private business or where the County has
decided that periodic determination of net income is appropriate for capital
maintenance, management control accountability, public policy or other
purposes.

The following comprise the County’s Enterprise Funds:

Water and Sewer Funds — The Water and Sewer Funds are used to
account for the operation of water services provided throughout Craven
County.

» Craven County Water Fund (Major Fund)

The following Water and Sewer Districts comprise the County’s Blended
Component Units:

» Township 6 Water and Sewer District

» Northwest Craven Water and Sewer District (Major Fund)
» Neuse River Water and Sewer District

« Pembroke Water and Sewer District




CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

June 30, 2008
Township 6  Neuse River ~ Pembroke Total
Water Water and Waterand  Nonmajor
and Sewer Sewer Sewer Enterprise
District District District Funds
ASSETS
Current assets:
Due from other government-current $ - 3 20,000 § 30,000 § 50,000
Total current assets - 20,000 30,000 50,000
Noncuzrent Assets:
Due from other government-noncurrent - 125,000 120,000 245,000
Total noncurrent assets - 125,000 120.000 245,000
Total assets - 145,000 150,000 295,000
LIABILITIES
Current Habilities:
Accrued interest payable 586 - - 586
Installment notes payable-current 5,325 - - 5,325
General obligation bonds payable-current 82,000 20,060 30,000 132,000
Total current Habilities 87,911 20,000 30,000 137,911
Noncurrent hiabilities:
Installment notes payable 37,275 - - 31,275
General obligation bonds payable - 125,000 120,000 245,000
Internal balances {125,186) - - {125,186)
Total noncurrent liabilities (87,911) 125,000 120,000 157,089
Total Habilities - 145,000 150,000 295,600
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt {124,600) (145,000 (150,000)  (419,600)
Unrestricted 124,600 145,000 150,000 419,600
Total net assets $ - % - § - 3 -
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest income
Interest expense
Total net nonoperating revenues {expenses)
Change in net assets

Total net assets - beginning

Total net assets - ending

Township 6  Neuse River Total
Water Water and Nonmajor
and Sewer Sewer Enterprise
District District Funds
§ 11,699 3§ 4,042 3§ 15,741
{(11,699) (4,042) (15,741)
$ - 3 - $ -
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of installment notes and bonds

Proceeds from investment in direct financing lease
Net cash provided by (used in) capital

and related financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Beginning

Ending
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Township 6 Neuse River Total
Water ‘Water and Nonmajor
and Sewer Sewer Enterprise
District District Funds
(78,925) § (65,900) § (144,825)
78,925 65,500 144,825
- $ . $ -




CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
CRAVEN COUNTY WATER FUND

SCHEDULE OF NET ASSETS Craven
June 30, 2008 County PeeDee
Water Aquifer
Operating Project
Fund Fund Totals
ASSETS
Current assets: ‘
Cash and cash equivalents $ 54,191 § 107,583 % 161,774
Short-term investments 8,050,000 400,000 8,450,000

Accounts receivable, net of
allowance for doubtful
accounts 633,597 263 633,860

Total current assets 8,737,788 507,846 9,245,634

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:

Land 207,676 - 207,676
Improvements other than
buildings 27,956,624 - 27,956,624
Buildings 563,318 - 563,318
Machinery and equipment 533,274 - 533,274
Construction in progress - 590,422 590,422
Accumulated depreciation {9,888,853) - (9,888,853)
Total capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation 19,372,039 590,422 19,962,461
Total noncurrent assets 19,372,039 590,422 19,962,461
Total assets 28,109,827 1,098,268 29,208,095
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 60,804 2,797 63,601
Accrued salaries and benefits 29,441 - 29,441
Customer deposits payable 345,376 - 345,376
Total current hiabilities 435,621 2,797 438 418
Noncurrent liabilities
Obligations under capital lease 1,575,278 - 1,575,278
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,575,278 - 1,575,278
Total liabilities 2,010,899 2,797 2,013,696
NET ASSETS
Capital assets, net of related debt 19,372,040 590422 19,962,462
Unrestricted 6,726,888 505,049 7,231,937
Total net assets $ 26,098,928 § 1,095471  § 27,194,399
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

CRAVEN COUNTY WATER FUND

DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Miscelianecus

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of services
Depreciation
Total operating expenses

Qperating income

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest income
interest expense
‘Total nonoperating
revenues (expenses)

Income before transfers
TRANSFERS IN {OUT):
Retween Water and Sewer funds
From Internal Service Fund
To General Fund
Total transfers in (cut)
Change in net assets

Total net assets, beginning

Total net assets, ending

Craven
County PeeDee Northwest
Water Aquifer Craven Roads
Operating Project Project
Fund Fuad Fund Totals
§ 3,387,837 § - - 3 3,387,837
166,684 - - 166,684
3,554,521 - - 3,554,521
1,481,767 - - 1,481,767
822,024 - - 822,024
2,303,791 - - 2,303,791
1,250,730 - - 1,250,730
398,065 31,777 - 429,842
(74,477} - - (74,477)
323,588 31,777 - 355,365
1,574,318 31,777 - 1,606,095
241,500 - (241,500 -
26,649 - - 26,649
(96,799} - - (96,799)
171,350 - {241,500) (70,150)
1,745,668 31,777 (241,500) 1,535,945
24,353,260 1,063,694 241,500 25,658,454
3 26,098,928 § 1,095,47% - 3 27,194,399
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
CRAVEN COUNTY WATER OPERATING FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES),

BUDGET AND ACTUAL, NON-GAAP, MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS
For the Fiscal Year Eanded June 30, 2008

(Page 1 0f2) Variance,
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
OPERATING REVENUES
Water and sewer sales $ 2,950,600 % 3,083,012 % 133,012
Tap and permit fees 319,100 304,825 {14,275}
Miscellaneous 84,500 166,684 82,184
Total operating revenues 3,353,600 3,554,521 200921
OPERATING EXPENDITURES
Personsnel services:
Salaries 462,505 450,051 12,454
Ermployee benefits 132,423 129,284 3,139
Retirement 22,155 21,958 197
Professional services:
Audit and accounting fees 1,000 856 144
Consumer and conf report 13,500 1,155 12,345
Legal fees 4,000 - 4,000
Engineering fees 34,985 34,267 718
Contraciual services 29,780 19,375 10,405
Operating supplies 28,000 22,921 5,079
Utilities 229,800 219,823 9,977
Maintenance and repairs:
Systems 140,000 106,117 33,883
Building and grounds 58,200 58,177 23
Vehicle expense 73,146 71,026 2,120
Eguipment 13,500 6,263 7,237
Insurance 23,386 21,643 1,743
Tap outlays 122,000 107,975 14,025
Telephone and postage 27,500 23,119 4,381
Lockbox 86,000 85,551 449
Chemical and lab work 77,000 76,869 101
Capital outlay 1,273,938 374,117 899,221
Bad Debt Expenses - 10,755 {10,755}
Misceliancous 25,485 14,552 10,933
Total operating expenditures 2,878,303 1,856,484 1,021,819
Excess of operating revenues over
operating expenditures 475,297 1,698,037 1,222,740
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENDITURES)
Interest income 240,000 398,065 158,065
interest paid (93,361) {74,477) 18,884
Principal payments (525,131 {525,137 -
Total nonoperating revenues {(expenditures) (378,498 (201,549) 176,94%
Excess of revenues over expenditures 96,799 1,496,488 1,399,689
Continued
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
CRAVEN COUNTY WATER OPERATING FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES),

BUDGET AND ACTUAL, NON-GAAP, MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS

For the Fiscal Year Ended Jurne 30, 2008
(Page 2 of 2)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in {out):
From General Fund
From Internal Service Fund
From NorthWest Craven Roads Project Fund
To General Fund
Total other financing sources {uses)

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures and
other financing sources {(uses)

Reconciliation of modified acerual basis with full
accrual basis:

Excess of revenues over (under} expenditures and other
financing sources (uses), modified accrual basis, above

Capital cutlay

Payment on obligation under capital lease payable

Depreciation :

Net income, full accrual basis

Variance,
Positive
Budget Actual {Negative)
3 16,200 § 16,200 5 -
- 20,649 20,649
- 241,500 241,500
(1:2,99%) {112,999) -
(96,799} 171,350 268,149
5 - § 1,667.838 % 1,667,838
3 1,667,838
374,717
525,137
{822,024)
3 1,745,668
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
PEEDEE AQUIFER CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES),

BUDGET AND ACTUAL, NON-GAAP, MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS

From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Total Actual
Project Prior Current Total
Estimates Years Year To Date
REVENUES :
Interest revenue $ 25,000 % 32,659 % 3,777 % 64,436
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay
Architect fees 19,518 19,518 - 19,518
Inspection 48,390 22,174 17,682 39,856
General construction 494 481 351,616 76,178 427,794
Bidding phase 8,000 8,000 - 8,000
Chemical and labs 25,060 9,440 4,746 14,186
Contingency 377,105 - - -
Engineering 62,590 20,973 41,553 62,526
Administration 29,915 26,866 699 27,565
Total expenditures 1,065,059 458,587 140,858 5990 445
Excess of revenues under expenditures {(1,040,059) (425,928) (109,081) (535,609)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in:
From Craven County Water Operating Fund 1,040,059 1,040,059 - 1,040,059
Excess of revenues over (under)
expenditures and other
financing sources 3 - 614,131 $ (109,081 § 505,050

Reconciliation of modified accrual basis
with full accrual basis:

Excess of revenues aver {under) expenditures
and other financing sources, modified
accrual basis, above

Capital outlay

Net income, full accrual basis
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(109,081)

140,858
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
NORTHWEST CRAVEN ROADS PROJECT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES),
BUDGET AND ACTUAL, NON-GAAP, MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Total Actual
Project Prior Current Total
Estimates Years Year To Date
REVENUES
Interest revenue $ 4502 3 4,500 3 - $ 4,500
EXPENDITURES
Professional services:
Engineering fees 1,597 7,596 - 7,596
Adminstration fees 1,332 1,331 - 1,331
Inspection fees ' 22,373 21,808 565 22,373
Contractual services 197,423 177,681 19,742 197,423
Total expenditures 228,725 208,416 20,307 228,723
Excess of revenues under expenditures (224,223) (203,916) (20,307) {224,223}
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in (out):
To Craven County Water Operating Fund (12,777} “ (241,500) (241,500}
From Craven County Water Operating Fund 237,000 237,000 - 237,000
Total other financing sources (uses) 224,223 237,000 {241,500) (4,500
Excess of revenues over {under)
expenditures and other
financing sources 3 - $ 33084 $ {261,807y &  (228,723)

Reconciliation of modified acerual basis
with full accrnal basis:

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures
and other financing sources, modified

accrual basis, above $  (261,807)
Capital outlay 20,307
Net income, full accrual basis $  (241,500)
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

BLENDED COMPONENT UNIT, TOWNSHIP 6 WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES),
BUDGET AND ACTUAL, NON-GAAP, MODIFIEP ACCRUAL BASIS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENDITURES)

Interest income
Interest paid
Principal payment
Total nonoperating revenues (expenditures)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Direct financing lease proceeds

Excess of revenues and other financing
sources over {under) expenditures

Reconciliation of modified accrual basis
with full acerual basis:
Excess of revenues and other financing sources over
(under) expenditures, modified accrual basis, above
Payment of bond principal
Reduction of investment in direct financing
lease receivabie

Net income, full accrual basis

Variance,
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ - 3 11,699 §$ 11,699
- (11,699) {11,699}
{78,925) (78,925) -
{78,925) (78,925) -
78,925 78,925 -
5 - b - $ -
3 -
78,925
(78,925)
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
BLENDED COMPONENT UNIT, NORTH WEST CRAVEN WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES),
BUDGET AND ACTUAL, NON-GAAP, MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance,
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENDITURES)
Interest mcome $ - $ 58,736 § 58,736
Interest paid . (58,736) (58,736)
Principal payment (380,312) (380,312) -
Total nonoperating revenues (expenditures) (380,312) (380,312) -

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Direct financing lease proceeds 380,312 380,312 -

Excess of revenues and other financing
sonrces over (under) expenditures $ - $ - 3 -

Reconciliation of modified accrual basis
with full accrnal basis:
Fixcess of revenues and other financing sources over

(under) expenditures, modified accrual basis, above 3 -
Payment of bond principal 380,312
Reduction of investment in direct financing

lease receivable {380,312)

Net imcome, full accrnal basis 3 -
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

BLENDED COMPONENT UNIT, NEUSE RIVER WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES),
BUDGET AND ACTUAL, NON-GAAP, MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 34, 2008

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENDITURES)
Interest income
Interest patd
Principal payment
Total nonoperating revenues (expenditures)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Direct financing lease proceeds

Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures

Reconcitiation of modified accrual basis
with full accrual basis:

Excess of revenues and other financing sources over {under)

expenditures, modified accrual basis, above
Payment of bond principal
Reduction of investment in direct financing
lease receivable

Net income, full accrual basis

141

Variance,
Positive
Budget Actual {Negative)
- 3 4,042 § 4,042
- (4,042) (4,042)
(65,900) {65,900) -
(65,900) {65,900) -
65,900 65,900 -
- $ I _
$ -
65,900
(65,900)
$ "
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or
services provided by one department or agency to other departments or
agencies of the County on a cost reimbursement basis.

Internal Service Fund — This fund is used to finance and account for the
County’s health and dental insurance and workers’ compensation program
information. :




CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
INFTERNAL SERVICE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES),
BUDGET AND ACTUAL, NON-GAAP, MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

OPERATING REVENUES
Charge for services
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

OPERATING EXPENDITURES
Claims reimbursement

Excess of operating revenues over
(under) operating expendifures

NONOPERATING REVENUES
Interest income

Income before transfers

Transfers out:
To Water Fund

Excess of revenues over expenditures

Variance,
Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
$ 4,100,378 % 4,115,826 % 15,448
- 132,305 132,305
4,100,378 4,248,131 147,753
4,105,350 3,644,722 460,628
(4,972) 603,409 608,381
31,622 97,374 65,752
26,650 700,783 674,133
(26,650) (26,649 1
$ - 3 674,134 § 674,134
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AGENCY FUNDS

Agency Funds serve primarily as clearing mechanisms for cash resources
which are collected by a governmental unit, held as such for a brief period,
and then distributed to authorized recipients.

The following comprise the County’s Agency Funds:

Social Services Trust Fund - The Social Services Trust Fund is for funds
received by the County by court order on behalf of citizens who are unable to
expend for themselves.

Juvenile Restitution Fund ~ The Juvenile Restitution Fund is for the receipt
of State monies expended for services to juveniles.

Department of Motor Vehicle Interest Fund — The Motor Vehicle Tax
Fund accounts for the three percent interest on the first month of delinquent
motor vehicle taxes that the County is required to remit to the North Carolina
Department of Motor Vehicles.

Municipal Property Tax Fund — The Municipal Property Tax Fund accounts
for registered motor vehicle and real property taxes that are billed and
collected by the County for various municipalities within the County.

Agency funds are accounted for on a cash receipts and disbursements basis.







CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
June 30, 2008
Social
Services Trust
Fund Totals
ASSETS
Cash B 113,512 & 113,512
LIABILITIES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities h 113,512 % 113,512
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Balance Balance
Tune 30, June 30,
2007 Additions Deductions 2008

Secial Services Trust Fund:

Assets, cash and investments g 120,406 $ - 15,894 113,512

Liabilities, accounts payable and

accrued liabilities $§ 129406 5 - 15,894 113,512
Juvenile Restitution Fund:

Assets, cash and investments 3 6 % 47,993 47,999 -

Liabilities, accounts payable and

accrued liabilities 3 6 5 47,993 ! 47,999 -
Department of Motor Vehicle Interest Fund:

Assets, cash and investments 3 - $ 53,201 53,201 -

Liabilities, accounts payable and

accrued liabilities 3 - 8 53,201 53,201 -
Municipal Property Tax Fund:

Assets, cash and investments 3 - § 5672440 5,672,440 -

Liabilities, accounts payable and

accrued liabilities 3 - $ 5,672,440 5,672,440 -
Totals - All Agency Funds:

Assets, cash and investments § 129412 § 5773634 5,789,534 113,512

Liabilities, accounts payable and

accrued liabilities $ 120412 § 5,773,634 5,789,534 113,512
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION -
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
WITHOUT SEPARATELY ISSUED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following is a discretely presented component unit, which is presented
as if it were a special revenue fund:

« Tourism Development Authority — The Tourism Development
Authority is used to account for occupancy tax revenues and related
tourism expenditures.

The following is a discretely presented component unit, which is presented
as if it were a proprietary fund.

« Craven County Regional Airport Authority — The Regional Airport
Authority is used to account for the operations and capital project
activity of the Regional Airport Authority.







CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND
(A Compenent Unit)

DETAILED BALANCE SHEET
June 30, 2008

2008
ASSETS
Cash $ 64,869
Accounts receivable 313
Investments 200,000
Total assets $ 205,182
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted $ 265,182
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND
{A Component Unit)

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance,
Positive
Budget Actual {Negative)
REVENUES
Occupancy tax b 400,000 § 436,733 % 36,733
Interest 12,000 16,091 4,091
. Miscellaneous 5,500 2,200 (3,294)
Total revenues 417,500 455,030 37,530
EXPENDITURES
Economic development 518,193 473,668 44,525
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures {100,693) {18,638) 82,055
NET ASSETS
Beginning 283,820 283,820 -
Ending 3 183,127 § 265,182 § 82,055

Reconciliation of modified accrual basis
with full accrual basis

Excess of revenues over (under)
expenditures, modified accrual

basis, above 3 (18,638)
Net income, full accrual basis $ (18,638)
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

CRAVEN COUNTY REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY (A Component Unit)

OFPERATING FUND

DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES), BUDGET AND ACTUAL, NON-GAAP, MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
(Page 1 of 2)

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services

OPERATING EXPENDITURES
Personnel Services:
Sataries
Employee benefits
Retirement
Professional Services:
Audit and accounting fees
Logal fees
Contractual services
Operating supplies
Utilities
Maintenance and repairs:
Building and grounds
Vehicle expense
Insurance
Telephone and postage
Capital cutlay
Board Mermber fees
Miscellaneous
Travei/Training
Advertising
Dues and subscriptions
Totai operating expenditures

Excess of operating revenues over (under) operating expenditures

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest income

Interest expense

Debt issued

Principal payments

Intergovernmental revenue - operating grants
Total sonoperating revenues (expenses)

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

150

Variance,

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 1,709,414 § 1,925,370 § 215,956
625,265 581,527 43,738
128,542 124,130 4,412
21,051 20,337 714

876 876 -

30,862 30,862 -
72,690 72,583 107
55,156 53,839 1,317
148,800 148,673 127
106,854 106,540 314
9,500 9,471 29

75,802 75,802 -
14,300 10,748 3,552
2,050,161 2,049,406 755

10,800 10,800 -
22,682 22,376 306
16,200 13,625 2,575
124,105 123,363 742
5,550 5,210 340
3,519,196 3,460,168 59,028
(1,809,782) # {1,534,798) # 156,928
20,103 35,378 6,275
(223,599 {216,932} 6,667

1,800,000 1,804,000 -
(792,664} (792,663} 1
592,164 588,801 (3,363)
1,405,004 1,414,584 9,580
{404,778) (120,214) 284,564

Continued



CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
CRAVEN COUNTY REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY (A Component Unit)
OPERATING FUND

DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES), BUDGET AND ACTUAL, NON-GAAP, MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008 Variance,
(Page20f2) Positive
Budget Actual (Negative}
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES)
Transfers in {out}):
To Airport Capital Project Funds 3 (509,832) % (506,331) § 3,301
From Airport Capitai Project Funds - 2,255,670 2,255,670
Total other financing sources (uses) (509,832) 1,749,139 2,258,971
Fxcess revenues over {under) expenditures
and other financing sources (uses) {914,610} 1,628,925 2,543,535
Appropriated fund balance 914,610 - (914,610)
Excess revenues over {under) expenditures, other financing _
sources {uses) and appropriated fund balance $ - % 1,628,925 § 1,628,025
Reconciliation of modified accrual basis
with full accrual basis:
Excess revenues over (under) expenditures and other
financing sources (uses), modified
accrual basis, above 3 1,628,925
Capital outlay 2,049,406
Depreciation (858,568)
Amortization (7,179
Debt issued {1,800,600)
Principal payments 792,663
Net income, full acerual basis 3 1,865,247
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

CRAVEN COUNTY REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY (A Component Unit)
TERMINAL AREA DEVELOPMENT SITE NO. 25 CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES), BUDGET AND ACTUAL, NON-GAAP, MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

REVENUES
Federal grants
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay:
Project construction
Legal and administrative
Engineering fees
Inspection
Capital outlay
Miscellaneous
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues
under expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in:
From Airport Operating Fund

Excess of revenues over
(under) expenditures and
other financing sources

Reconciliation of modified accrual basis
with full accrual basis:

Fixcess of revenues over
expenditures and other financing
sources, modified accrual basis, above

Capital outlay

Net income, full accrual basis

162

Total Actual
Project Prior Current Total
Estimates Years Year to Date
$ 810,825 % 759,500 % 23,000 § 782,500
810,825 759,500 23,000 782,500
480,084 463,786 - 463,786
11,272 6,637 - 6,037
306,499 283,461 23,038 306,499
27,285 19,510 - 19,510
5,390 4,970 . 4,970
22,970 21,970 524 22,495
853,500 800,334 23,562 823,897
(42,675) {40.834) (562) (41,397)
42,675 42,675 - 42,675
$ - 5 1,841 § {562) & 1,278
$ (562)
23,562
$ 23,000



CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

CRAVEN COUNTY REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY (A Component Unit)
TERMINAL AREA DEVELOPMENT SITE NO. 26 CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES), BUDGET AND ACTUAL, NON-GAAP, MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

REVENUES
Federal grants
Interest
Total revennes

EXPENDITURES

Capital outlay:
Project construction
Land
Legal and administrative
Architect
Engineering fees
Inspection
Miscellaneons

Total expenditures

Bxcess of revenues
under expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in:
From Airport Operating Fund
Total other financing sources

Excess of revenues over
(under) expenditures and
other financing sources

Reconciliation of modified acerual basis
with full accrual basis:

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures
and other financing sources, modified
accrual basis, above

Capital outlay

Net loss, full accrual basis

Total Actual
Project Prior Current Total
Estimates Years Year to Date
8 922,168 414,500 3 195,000 609,560
- 2,732 732 3,464
922,168 417,232 195,732 612,964
594,680 224,463 100,034 324,497
75,000 71,112 - 71,112
43,247 4,854 7,968 12,822
16,613 6,613 8,625 15,238
113,358 64,706 38,038 102,744
47,150 18,615 21,517 40,132
82,656 68,716 7,482 76,197
970,704 459,079 183,664 642,742
(48,536) (41,847) 12,068 (29,778)
48,536 48,536 - 48,536
48,536 48,536 - 48,536
$ - 6,689 3 12,068 18,758
$ 12,068
183,664
3 195,732
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
CRAVEN COUNTY REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY (A Component Unit)
GENERAL AVIATION TERMINAL CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES), BUDGET AND ACTUAL, NON-GAAP, MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Total Actual
Project Prior Current Total
Estimates Years Year to Date
REVENUES
State grants $ 250,000 3 -~ 3 176,746 § 176,746
Interest - 374 1,022 1,396
Miscellaneous 35,296 - 19,817 19,817
Total revenues 285,296 374 197,585 197,959
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay:
Project construction 254,579 . 149,662 149,662
Legal and administrative 2,427 - 1,312 1,312
Contractual services 8,459 4,779 3,670 8,449
Capital outlay 32,981 - 32,981 32,981
Engineering fees 45,225 - 44,094 44,094
Miscellaneous 19,609 - 14,478 14,478
Total expenditures 363,280 4,779 246,197 250,976
Excess of revenues
under expenditures (77,984) {4,405) (48,612) (53.017)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in (out):
From Airport Operating Fund 77,984 75,000 2,984 77,984
To Airport Operating Fund - - (32,981) {32,981)
Total other financing sources (uses) 77,984 75,000 {29,997) 45,003
Excess of revenues and
other financing sources
over expenditures $ - ¥ 70,595 § {78,609 $ (8,014)
Recongciliation of modified accrual basis
with full acerual basis:
Excess of revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures,'
modified accrual basis, above 5 (78,609)
Capital outlay 246,197
Net loss, full accrual basis 3 167,588
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

CRAVEN COUNTY REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY (A Component Unit)
TERMINAL AREA DEVELOPMENT SITE NO., 27 CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES), BUDGET AND ACTUAL, NON-GAAFY, MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2008

REVENUES
Federal grants
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay:
Project construction
Legal and administrative
Capital outlay
Engineering fees
Miscellaneous
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues
under expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in (out):
From Airport Operating Fund
To Airport Operating Fund
Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess of revenues and
other financing sources
over expenditures

Reconciliation: of modified acerual basis
with full accrual basis:

Excess of revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures,
modified accrual basis, above

Capital outiay

Net loss, full accrual basis

Fotal Actual
Project Prior Current Total
Estimates Years Year to Date
1,973,145 § - $ 1,936,002 % 1,936,002
- - 1,408 1,408
1,973,145 - 1,937410 1,937,410
62,724 - 59,545 59,545
29,476 - 23,565 23,565
2,042,691 - 2,042,689 2,042,689
26,099 - 5,587 5,587
82,502 - 16,834 16,834
2,242 492 - 2,148,220 2,148,220
{270,347) - (210,810) {210,810)
270,347 - 270,347 270,347
- - (2,042,689) (2,042,689
270,347 - (1,772,342) {1,772,342)

(1,983,152) $ (1,983,152)

(1,983,152)

2,148,220

$
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
CRAVEN COUNTY REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY (A Component Unit)

PARKING LOT EXPANSION CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND OTHER FINAN CING
SOURCES (USES), BUDGET AND ACTUAL, NON-GAAP, MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay:
Legal and administrative
Engineering fees
Miscellaneous
Total expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in:
From Airport Operating Fund
Total other financing sources

Excess of other financing sources
over expenditures

Reconciliation of modified accrual basis
with full acerual basis:

Fxcess of other financing SOuUrces
over expenditures, modified
accrual basis, above

Capital outlay

Net loss, full accrual basis

Total Actual
Project Prior Current Total
Estimates Years Year to Date
884 - - -
43,436 . 30,703 30,703
8,880 - 5,132 5,132
53,200 - 35,835 35,835
53,200 - 53,200 53,200
53,200 - 53,200 53,200
- - 17,365 17,365
17,365
35,835
53,200
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CRAVEN COUNTY

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMPARATIVE SCHEDULES BY SOURCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

2008 2067

Governmental funds capital assets:

Land 7,783,557 7,774,584

Buildings 37,315,561 37,260,124

Other Improvements 4,302,671 3,681,220

Equipment & Vehicles 10,375,960 10,078,105

Construction in Progress 14,823,271 2,047,520
Total governmental funds capital assets 74,600,420 60,841,553
Investment in governmental funds capital assets by source:

(eneral Fund 20,719,389 8,232,815

Capital Projects 43,710,097 42,437,804

Prior to June,1992* 10,170,934 10,170,934
Total investment in govermental funds capital assets 74,600,420 60,841,553

*Assets acquired prior to 1992 were not classified by source
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CRAVEN COUNTY ]
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SCHEDULE BY FUNCTION & ACTIVITY
FOR THE YEAR ENPED JUNE 30, 2008 B
Other Equipment &
Function and Activity Eand Buildings | Improvements Yehicles Total
General Government:
9103 (Commissioners 3 - $ - 3 - $ 30469 1 3 30,469
0301 _{Personnel - - - 14,332 14,332
001 |Enformation Technology - - - 1,009,703 1,009,703
os01_{Finance - - - 15,510 15,510 |
ss6 | Non Depariment - - - 146,978 146,578
a601 {Elections - " - 447,102 447,102
oso1 | Tax Assessor - - - 95,955 95,955
oso4 | Tas Assessor ~Mapping - - v 50,891 50,891
ogos | Tax Assessor -Appraisal - " - 89,327 89,327
1001 |Register of Deeds - - - 369,719 369,719
1201 | Public Buildings 4,737,865 5151449 120,255 117.021 10,126,530
1212 {Housckeeping - - - 26,104 26,104
o | Court Facilities 126,790 4,604,270 744,650 114,019 5,589,729
1401 |Maintenance - 57,000 500 63,427 120,927
1se1 | Central Maintenance - - - 104,883 104,883
Totat General Government 4,364,505 | 9812719 865,403 2,695,440 18,238,159
T
Public Safety:
200 | Sheriff . - - 1,913,907 1,913,907
2008 :Jail 719,447 3,854,316 - 67,922 4,641,685
015 | Communications - e 14,000 74,712 88,712
rm |Emergency Services - - - 477,893 477,893
2401 {Inspections L - " 81,737 81,737
2508 {E 911 - ~ - 985,145 985,145
260t | Animal Controt - 401,288 - $5,582 456,870
Total Peblic Safety 719,447 4,255,604 14,000 3,656,805 8,645,949
Environmental Pratection: . M,.;, ]
=101 | Environmental Health - - " 286,035 286,035
201 i Solid Waste 15,640 14,843 - 347,466 377,951
az01 | Cooperative Extension - 765,129 6,344 95,062 866,535
?t}:al Environmenta! Protection 15,640 779,974 6,344 728,563 1,530,521
Economic and Physical Development:
aost | Plamming v - - 106,753 106,753
4401 1 Economic Development 162,195 - 750,780 20,508 933,483
s201 {Convention Center £,192,410 10,752,459 18,348 223,673 12,186,390
Total Economic and Physical Development 1,354,603 10,752,459 769,128 350,934 13,227,126
\
Health
s001_|Health - 6,191,164 283,015 771,954 7,246,173
I
| Social Services:
700t {CARTS - B - 1,036,404 1,036,404
7200 {DSS - 5,324,840 375,852 856,004 6,556,696
?otal Social Services - 5,324,840 375,852 1,892,408 7,593,160
1
Recreation: )
s001 | Recreation 329,269 188,994 1,988,328 279,721 3,286,312
Library- Havelock “ 9,809 - - 9,809
Total Regreation 829,269 198,803 1,988,328 279,721 3,296,121
T
Total 5 7,783,556 | § 37315363 1% 4302072 1 § 10,375,958 | § 59,777,149
Construction in Progress 14,823,271
) Total Government Funds Capital Assets § 74,600,420
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CRAVEN COUNTY
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES BY FUNCTION & ACTIVITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2608
T
i
Governmental Funds Governmental Funds
Capital Assets July 1, Capital Assets June 30,
Function and Activity 2007 Additions Deductions 2008
General Government:
01 {Commissioners 3 10,726 1 % 19,743 1 $ - 30,469
0201 {Administration 19,742 - 19,742 -
0301 | Personnel 14,332 - - 14,332
o0t | Information Technology 936,736 72,968 - 1,009,704
eso1 |Finance 15,510 - - 15,510
os60 | Non Department 343,602 289,731 486,355 146,978
o501 |Elections 447,102 - - 447,102
oso1 {Tax Assessor 95,955 - - 95,955
oso4 1 Tas Assessor -Mapping 21,321 37,570 8,000 50,891
osos [Tax Assessor -Appraisal 89,327 - - 89,327
oot iRegister of Deeds 369,719 - - 369,719
1z01 |Public Buildings 10,073,511 62,430 9,410 10,126,531
1212 |Housekeeping 12,444 13,660 - 26,104
1301 |Court Facilities 5,553,816 35,912 - 5,589,728
1401 | Maintenance 107,596 22,308 8,977 120,927
;i Central Maintenance 24,025 43,761 22,803 104,883
Fotal General Government 18,195,464 598,083 555,387 18,238,160
¥
Public Safety:
200; |Sheriff 1,874,580 346,001 306,675 1,913,906
2008 |Jail 4,610,237 31,448 - 4,641,685
2015 [Communications 75,372 13,339 - 88,711
2361 |Emergency Services 470,308 T.5806 - 477,894
2401 |Inspections 101,447 - 19,710 81,737
1501 |E 911 985,145 - - 985,145
201 [ Animal Control 441,420 15,450 - 456,870
Total Public Safety 8,558,509 413,824 326,385 8,645,948
{ -
Environmental Protection:
3101 |Environmental Heaith 294,963 19,474 28,402 286,035
3201 {Solid Waste 273,128 104,823 - 377,951
1201 {Cooperative Extension 856,755 29,246 19,467 866,534
Total Environmental Protection 1,424,846 153,543 47,869 1,530,520
3
Econontic and Physical Development:
4001 |{Planning 87,043 19,710 - 106,753
4401 |Economic Development 933,483 - - 933,483
201 |Convention Center 12,186,850 - 12,186,890
Total Eeonomic and Physical Development 13,207,416 19,710 - 13,227,126
I
Health
fsom 1Health 7,018,320 237,184 9,330 7,246,174
i
Social Services:
s00t {CARTS 994,191 157,623 115,410 1,036,404
7201 |D)SS 6,282,167 338,630 64,107 6,556,696
Total Social Services 7,276,358 496,259 179,517 7,593,100
i
Recreation:
so01 {Recreation 3,103,313 200,224 §7,225 3,286,312
Library- Havelock 9,809 - - 9,809
Total Recreation 3,113,122 200,224 17,225 3,296,121
;
Constraction in Progress 2,047,520 12,775,751 - 14,823.271
i
Total governmental funds capital assets 3 60,841,555 1% 14894578 1 § 1,135,713 74,600,428
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STATISTICAL SECTION
(Unaudited)

This part of the County of Craven’s comprehensive annual financial report presents
detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial
statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the
county’s overall financial health. :

Contents

Financial Trends
Schedules one through four contain trend information to help the reader understand how
the County’s financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
Schedules five through eight contain information to help the reader assess the factors
affecting the county’s ability to generate its property taxes.

Debt Capacity

Schedules nine through eleven present information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the county’s current levels of outstanding debt and the county’s ability to
issue additional debt in the futare.

Demographic and Economic Infermation

Schedules twelve and thirteen offer demographic and economic indicators to help the
reader understand the environment within which the county’s financial activities take
place and to help make comparisons over time and with other governments.

Operating Information

Schedules fourteen through sixteen contain information about the county’s operations and
resources to help the reader understand how the county’s financial information relates to
the services the county provides and the activities it performs.
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Schedule 2

Craven County

Changes in Nef Assels,

Last Six Fiscal Years
{acerual basls of accounting}

Expenses
Governmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Sociat services
Esonomic and physical cevelopment
Environmental protection
Health
Cutturat and fecreation
Education
Interest on long term debt
Tolal governmental actvities

Business-type activifies:
Water

Total primary government expenses

Program Revenues
Governmental activiies

Charges for senvices:
General government
Public safety
Social services
Economic and physical development
Environmental profection
Health
Culturat and recreation
Education

Operating grants and contributions:
Generai government
Public safety
Social services
Economic and physical development
Environmental profection
Hesith
Cultural and recreation
Education

Capital grants and confributions:
Generat government
Public safety
Social services
Cultaral and recreafion

Total governmental ackivitics program revenues

Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
5,806,630 § 6,802,230 $ 5,557,617 § 7,391,683 § 7679876 § 6,566,743
10,732,195 11,584,190 11,895,790 12,643,683 12,782,549 13475510
19,641,716 20,695,194 21,364,472 22,822,110 23,686,006 24 491,355
5,360,444 3202424 3,873,381 2,658,847 2,629,063 3447938
3,850,575 5,083,596 4,943,086 5,165,286 5,448,188 5,368,403
6,479,067 6,981,725 6,915,058 7,416,050 7,381,812 8,063,103
1,490,297 1,801,012 1,898,961 2,077,212 2,367 562 2,070,824
35,104,248 20,680,373 18,391,669 20,218,865 28,807 811 33,000,753
3,183,868 2715170 2593134 2414904 3,042,742 3,716,568
94,738,834 79,555,914 78,433,379 82,751,840 94,866,009 100,194,198
2,294,785 2,082,799 2,212,566 2452 231 2,360,421 2,378,268
94,033,610 $ 81,648,713 § 80,645,845 $ 85203871 § 97,216,430 § 102,572,466
1,666,826 § 1,657,142 § 1838261 & 2406806 § 2116173 § 4,737,085
1,500,193 1,507,250 1,697,240 2,148,811 1,657,081 2,076,951
451,043 650,102 680,235 626,859 600,994 708,758
683,866 809,529 920,675 916,702 986,517 1,072,446
2,214,890 2,178,704 2,212,444 2462,004 2,639,579 2,821,666
3,754,021 4226968 4,283,919 4436213 4,288,785 4503,742
43,438 51,000 45,745 38,948 50,690 43,309
. 503,596 - - -
1,578,967 1,660,038 1,282,220 1,147,798 1,078,615 1,633,601
707,552 669,885 912,191 651,655 612,213 634,277
10,066,157 10,864,794 10,662,434 11,834,481 12,228,544 12,805,213
2,187,801 637,866 1,195,959 50,750 219,000 499,293
436,81 613,754 210,007 168,890 138,582 183,564
1,690,116 1,502 516 1,620,835 1,473,080 1,407 566 1,495,242
- 1,000 - 9,250 35,300 75,233
- 859,450 1,182,960 1,150,405 4,060,220
. . . M7 447 -
51,897 324,304 34,526 . -
91,638 117,050 228,739 112,514 185,810
- - - 65,625 108,185 343815
27,025,425 28,144,501 28,251 415 30,301,465 20,732,743 32,788,245
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Business-type activities:
Charge for services - Water

Capital grants and contributions - Water
Total business-type activities program revenues

Total primary goverment program revenues

Net {ExpenselRevenue
Governmental activities

Business-type activities

$

Total primary govemment net (expense)irevenue §

Generat Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assets

Govermneniat acltivities:
Property taxes
Local oplion sales fax
Qther faxes and licenses
Investment eamings
Miscellanecus
Transfers

Total governmental activities:

Business-fype acliviies:
investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Transfers

Total business-type activities

Total primary government

Change in Net Assefs
Governmental activities

Business-type activities

Total primary government

]

$

Fiscal Year

2003 2004 2003 2006 2607 2008
3,001,287 § 2025547 § 3,003,662 § 3,296,858 § 3,350,661 § 3,387 837
145,830 - - - - -
3147117 2,925,947 3,003,862 3,296,858 3,350,661 3,367,837
30,172,543 § 31,670,448 § 31,255,017 § 33,508,323 § 33,083,404 § 36,177,182
{64,713,408) § (51411413) § (50,181,964) $ {52,450,176} § {65,133,266) § (67 404 853)

852,332 833,148 791,096 844,627 1,000,240 1,000,56%
(63,881,076} § {50,578,265) & {49,380,868) $ (51,805,548) § {64,133,026) § (66,395,284)
32399791 § 32400695 § 33462209 § 37,864,384 § 40,057,692 § 4223641
13,588,546 16,963,021 17,433,367 18,100,692 19,769,080 20,131,706
551,086 580,312 631,352 716,807 730,206 798,930
643,283 1,727 622,429 1,250,704 2,452,049 3,500,775
623,341 959,012 1,631,320 1,224,762 3,036,006 1,226,841
61,998 61,998 45,799 45,799 45,788 70,150
48,278,045 51,326,766 53,826,476 59,203,148 66,090,939 67,964,813
87,816 57,500 102,106 246,435 370,366 428,842
206,032 151,338 206,411 123,508 153,769 166,684
{61,998) {61,999) (45,799) (45,799) (45,789) (70,150}
231,850 146,840 282,717 324,142 478,336 526,376
48,508,895 § 51472806 $ 54,089,193 § 59,527,290 $ 66,569,266 § 68,491,188
(16,435,363) § (85,647} § 3544512 § 5752973 § 957,664 § 559,860
1,084,182 979,888 1,053,813 1,168,769 1,478,576 1,635,845
(15,351,181) § 894,341 § 4,698,325 § 192,742 § 2/436,240 § 2,095,008

Note: Accruat-basis financial information for the county govemmant as a whale is avaliable back to 2003 only,

the year GASB Statement 34 was implemented.
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Schedule 10
Craven County
Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding,

Last Ten Fiscal Years
General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Less: Amounts Percentage
General Resfricted Percentage of Actual
Fiscal Obligation to Repaying of Personal Taxable Value Per
Year Bonds Principal Total Income(1) of Property(2) Capita{1)
1689 $ 29821700 § 3,466,004 $ 283250686 1.24% 0.64% $ 291
2000 26,231,360 2,957,736 23,273,564 1.06% 0.54% 266
2001 25,731,600 2,659,789 22,771,811 $.96% 0.51% 248
2002 52,054,600 4,529,583 47 525,037 1.98% 1.04% 512
2003 49,809,600 3338471 46,570,428 1.85% 0.86% 502
2004 47,822,800 2,805,486 45017314 1.81% 0.81% 480
2005 44,875,800 2,640,085 42,235,735 1.59% 8.73% 451
2006 41,842,500 1,785,303 40,057,167 141% 0.67% 422
2007 38,769,560 3,901,084 34,868,416 1.16% 0.55% 365
2008 35,742,000 4,420,993 31,291,007 * 0.47% 325

“Information not yet available.

Notes: Detalls regarding the County's outstanding debt can be found in the noles lo the Finanglal Stalements.

{1) See Schedule 13 for personal income and population data. These ratics are calculated using pessonal income
and population Tor the prior calendar year. Galendar 20U/ personal income not avallabie 1o caiculate nscal year JUu.

(2) See schedute 5 for property value data.
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Schedule 12

Craven County

Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Personal Per Number of

income (2) Capita Public Building

{thousands Personal School Unemployment  [Inspections
Year Population(1) of dollars) Income (2) Enroliment(3} Rate(d) Performed(5)
1999 90,527 2,118,079 23,523 14,613 4.40% N/A
2000 91,640 2,190,549 24,114 14,890 4.30% N/A
2001 91,693 2,370,029 25,845 14,644 4.20% 6,450
2002 92,844 2,400,702 25775 14,465 570% 7,124
2003 92,893 2,385,406 25,738 14,362 6.00% 5,787
2004 93,761 2,489,593 26,467 14,388 5.80% 8,744
2005 93,698 2,657,216 28,275 14,523 4.80% 10,428
2006 94,838 2,841,408 29,896 14,609 £70% 12,633
2007 85,558 2,693,558 31,107 14,632 4.40% 13,600
2008 96,426 * * 14,538 4.10% 9,682

* Information not yet available.

Notes:

(1) N.C. State Data Center. Estimates are as of beginning of fiscal year (July 1)

{2) Bureau of Economic Analysis, U. S. Department of Commerce. Figures are as of the end of the calendar year ended during the fiscal year.
(3) N.C. Department of Public Instruction, First Month Average Daily Membership.

{4) N. C. Employment Security Commission, Annual Average as of the end of the calendar year ended during the fiscal year.

{5} Total number of inspections performed by Craven County Inspections Department. Does not include inspections by municipalities.
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Schedule 13

Craven County

Principal Employers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2008 1999
Percentage Percentage
of Totai County of Total County
Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment

Depariment of Defense (1) 5,400 i 12.68% 5,000 1 13.39%
Craven Couny Schaols 1,917 2 4.50% 1,806 2 4.82%
Craven Regional Medical Center 1,700 3 3.59% 1,500 3 4.02%
85H Home Appliances 4,209 4 2.84%
State of North Carolina 981 5 2.30% 900 5 241%
Moen Incorporated 750 5 1.76% 950 4 2.54%
Hatteras Yachts 700 7 1.64% 800 6 2.14%
Craven County 64 8 1.44% 570 8 1.53%
Wal-Mart 500 g 1.17%
Craven Community College 489 1G 1.15% 450 9 1.21%
Weyerhazeuser Company : 700 7 1.87%
City of New Bern 400 10 1.07%

14,250 33.48% 13,070 35.00%

Gource: New Bem Chamber of Commerca, Craven County Economic Development Comenission and N.C. Employment Security Commission

Notes: (1) Excludes active military personnel based in Craven County. It includes civiian employment at both the Naval Aviation Depot and MCAS Cherry Point,
The amount shown includes empioyeas from all counties (Of the 5,400 employees, 3,093 are Craven County residents, or 7,3% of the County employment)
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COMPLIANCE SECTION







McGladrey & Pullen

Certified Public Accountants

independent Auditor’s Report

on Internal Contro! Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of County Commissioners
Craven County, North Carolina

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Craven
County, North Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008, which collectively comprise Craven County's
hasic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 30, 2008. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. The financial statements of Craven Regional Medical Authority and Craven County Alcoholic Beverage
Control Board were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Craven County’s internal controf over financial reporting as a
basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal control over
financial reporting.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not aflow management or employees, in
the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the
County’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remole likelihood that a misstatement of the County’s
financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the County's internal
control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that resuits in more than a
remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or detected by the
County’s infernal control.

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.
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McGladrey & Pullen

Certified Public Accountants

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Craven County's financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the organization, members of
the Board of County Commissioners, and federal and State awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

/%%&7 Sl | Lo

New Bern, North Carolina
October 30, 2008
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McGladrey & Pullen

Certified Public Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report

on Compliance With Requirements Applicable To Each Major
Federal Program and the Passenger Facility Charge Program

and on Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance With
OMB Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit implementation Act

To the Board of County Commissioners
Craven County, North Carolina

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Craven County, North Carolina, with the types of compliance requirements
described in the U. S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compfiance Supplement and the
Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, issued by the Local Government Commission, that are
applicable to each of its major federal programs and with the compliance requirements described in the Passenger
Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies, issued by the Federal Aviation Administration, for its passenger
facility charge program for the year ended June 30, 2008, Craven County's major federal programs are identified in
the summary of audifor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal
programs and the passenger facility charge program is the responsibility of Craven County's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on Craven County's compliance based on our audit.

Craven County's basic financial statements include the operations of Craven Regional Medical Authority (Authority)
and Craven County Alcoholic Beverage Control Board (ABC Board), both discretely presented component units of
Craven County. Our audit, described below, did not include the operations of the Authority and ABC Board because
the financial statements of Craven Regional Medical Authority and ABC Board were not audited in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards, OMB A-133 or the State Single Audit implementation Act.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations, the State Single Audit Implementation Act, and the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide
for Public Agencies, issued by the Federal Aviation Administration. Those standards, OMB Circular A-133, the State
Single Audit Implementation Act and the Passenger Facilify Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies, issued by the
Federal Aviation Administration require that we plan and perform the audit fo obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program or the passenger facility charge program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about Craven County's compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. Qur audit does not provide a legal defermination on Craven County's compliance
with those requirements.

McGladrey & Puflen, LLP is a member firm of RSM international,
an affliation of separate and independent isgal entities.
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In our opinion, Craven County complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are
applicable to each of its major federal programs and its passenger facility charge program for the year ended
June 30, 2008.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of Craven County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable fo federal programs and the
passenger facility charge program. In planning and performing our audit, we considered Craven County's internal
control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
and the passenger facility charge program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s
internal control over compliance.

A control deficiency in the County's internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or
detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a controt deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the County's ability to
administer a federal program such that there is more than a remofe likelihood that noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federat program that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by
the County's internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than a
remote likelihood that a material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not
be prevented or detected by the County's interal control.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant
deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we
consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the organization, members of
the Board of County Commissioners, federal and State awarding agencies, the Federal Aviation Administration and
pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

%W//&Z&%/ le”

New Bem, North Carolina
Qctober 30, 2008
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McGladrey &Pullen

Certified Public Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report

on Compliance With Requirements Applicable to Each Major State Program
and on Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance With Applicable
Sections OMB Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit Implementation Act

To the Board of County Commissioners
Craven County, North Carolina

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Craven County, North Carolina, with the types of compliance requirements
described in the Audit Manual for Govermmental Auditors in Norih Carofina, issued by the Local Government
Commission, that are applicable to each of its major State programs for the year ended June 30, 2008. Craven
County's major State programs are idenfified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and
arants applicable to each of its major State programs is the responsibility of Craven County's management. Our
responsibifity is to express an opinion on Craven County's compliance based on our audit.

Craven County's basic financial statements include the operations of Craven Regional Medical Authority (Authority)
and Craven County Alcoholic Beverage Control Board (ABC Board), both discretely presented component units of
Craven County. Cur audit, described below, did not include the operations of the Authority and ABC Board because
the financial statements of Craven Regional Medical Authority and ABC Board were not audited in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards, applicable sections of OMB Circular A-133 or the State Single Audit
Implementation Act.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemnment Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; applicable sections of OMB Circular A-133, as described in the
Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carofina, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Those
standards, applicable sections of OMB Circular A-133, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the fypes of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major State program
occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Craven County's compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on
Craven County's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, Craven County complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are
applicable to each of its major State programs for the year ended June 30, 2008.

MeGladrey & Pullen, LLP is a member firm of RSM Intemationel,
an sffiliation of separate and independent legal entities.
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Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of Craven County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to State programs. In planning
and performing our audit, we considered Craven County’s internal control over compliance with requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on a major State program in order to determine our auditing procedures for
the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the County's internal control over compliance.

A contro! deficiency in the County's intemal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or
detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a State program on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the County's abiiity to
administer a State program such that there is more than a remote likelihood that noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a State program that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by
the County's internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than a
remote likelihood that a material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a State program will not be
prevented or detected by the County's internal control.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and would not necessarily identify ali deficiencies in internal control that might be significant
deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we
consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the organization, members of

the Board of County Commissioners, and federal and State awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

MNedludssy f Falloe, 227
New Bern, North Carolina ’

October 30, 2008
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
Section 1.Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's reportissued:  Ungualified
Internal control over financial reporting:

*  Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No
= Significant deficiency(ies) identified
that are not considered to be

material weaknesses? Yes X None reported

Noncompliance material o financial

statements noted? Yes X No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major federal programs:

«  Material weakness{es) identified? Yes X No

+ Significant deficiency(ies} identified

that are not considered to be

material weaknesses? Yes X None reported
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major federal programs: Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with Section 510(a) of

Circular A-1337 : Yes

identification of major federal programs:

Program Name CFDA
Medical Assistance 93,778
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 93.558/93.560

Dollar threshold used to distinguish

between Type A and Type B Programs $ 2,772,136

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X Yes
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

State Awards
Internat control over major State programs:
e Material weakness{es) identified? Yes X No

»  Significant deficiency(ies) identified
that are not considered to be

material weaknesses? Yes X None reported
Noncompliance material fo State awards? Yes X No

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major State programs: Unqualified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with the State Single

Audit implementation Act? Yes X No

Identification of major State programs:

Program Name Grant#
Medical Assistance/Medicaid Maximization N/A
Parks and Recreation Trust Fund 2006-443
Special Assistance N/A
Public School Building Capital Fund N/A
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 38, 2008

Section 2, Financial Statement Findings
None reported
Section 3. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported
Section 4. State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

No corrective action plan is required for the current year.
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
STATUS OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

None reported in prior year.
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FERERAL AND STATE AWARDS AND PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
(Fage 1 of 53

CFDA Grantor's Expenditures
Number Namber Federal State Loenl
FEDERAL AWARDS:
US Department of Agriculiure
Passed through NC Department of Agriculture:
Administered by Craven County Sheriff:
Natienal Forest 10.418 05-LE-11081122-163 3 15,065 8 - 3 -

Passed through NC Department of Health and Human Services:
Division of Secial Services:
Adminisiered by County Health Department,
Special Supplementai Nutrition Program for
Women, Infants, and Children:
WIC - Adsninistration 10,557 5405 437,283 - 4,235
Direct Berefit Payments:
Special Suppiemental Nutrition Program for
Waomen, Infants, & Children 10.557 5405 2,406,240 - -
2,843,623 - 4,235

Pagsed-through the NC Dept of Health and Human Services:
Division of Social Services:
Administered by County Department of Sociel Services:
State Administrative Matching Grants for the
Food Starnp Cluster:

Food Stamp Direct Benefit Payinents 16.551 10,178,513 - -
Food Stamp Admin 10.561 448,456 - 498,456
Food Stamp Issuance 10.561 20,98% - 20,989
Food Stamp Fraud Admin 10.56% 66,557 - 656,557
Food Stamp Emp and Training 10,563 1,315 - 1,375
Total Food Stamp Cluster 15,765,890 - 587,377
Total US Department of Agriculture 13,620,382 - 501,612

US Department of Justice:

Passed through NC Departimen of Crime Control and
Public Safety:
Passed through County Finance Department:
" Administered by City of New Bern Housing Authority:

ASAP Afer School Program 16.540  025.1-04.009-AJ-166 &-167 26,222 - -
Administered by Craven County Sheriff:

Mobile Data Terminals 16.738 025-1-06-15B-D133 16,401 - -

‘Totai US Depurtment of Justice 42,623 - -

US Departiment of Transportation
Tederal Aviation Adminisiation
Direct Programs:
Administered by Craven Regional Airport:
Airport Improvement Program:

LEOQ Staff 20.106 DTSA20-02-P5026 138,802 . -
Adrport Improvement Project No, 25 20,106 3-37-0050-25 23,000 - 362
Adrport Improvement Praject No, 26 20,106 3-37-0050-26 195,000 - {11,336)
Airport Improvement Project No. 27 20,106 3.37.0050-27 1,936,002 " 212,218
2,292,804 - 201,444

Passed through NC Department of Transportion:
Administered by Craven Arca Rural Transportation Systern:

Administration 20,509 36233.31.91 231,522 14,47¢ 730,003
Operating 20.509 362333192 40,053 -
Capital 20.509 362333193 143,433 17,992 {7,442)
415,508 32,462 772,561
Total US Department of Transponation 2,708,312 3z,962 974,003

U8 Departiment of Homeland Secayity

Division of Emergency Management:
Passed through NC Department of Crime Control and
Public Safety:
Administered by Craven County Emergency Services:

Hazardous Materials Emergency Prepared G7.004 HRMEP 2005-014 4,960 - -

Homeland Security 97,604 2006-GE-T4-0010-5021 1,712 - ~

Emergency Management Assistance - Performance g7.042 EM PA 00025 24 39,337 - 265,136
Admisnistered by Craven County SherHf

Builet Proof Vests 97,004 BVFP 2006 31,032 - 11,033

State Criminal Alicn Assistance Program 16.606 2006-F3Z99NC-AP 3,296 - -
Administered by Craven County Planning:

Pre Disasler Mitigation 97.047  PDM-PI-04-NC-20606-001 4,528 - 4,000

Total US Department of Homeland Security 74,805 » 280,169

US Department of Housing and Urban Develop

Passed through NC Department of Commerce:
Administered by Craven Connty Planning:
Community Development Block Grant 14.228 06-C-1523 $ 365425 § - % -
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CARQLINA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS AND PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGES
For tite Fises! Year Ended June 39, 2608
{Page 2 of 5)

CrDA Grantos's Expenditures
Number Murmber Federal State Local
US Departitent of Health and Human Services
Adeninistration oy Aging
Passed through NC Department of Health and Human Services:
Division of Aging, Heme, and Community Care Block Grant
Aging Cluster:
Passed through Eastern Carofina Council
Passed through Craven County Department of Social Services:
Administered by Craven Arca Rural Transportation 93.044 $ 47411 § 8,367 3 6,198
Administered by Coastal Community Action:
Senior Companion Program 93.045 23,700 4,182 3,098
Administered by Craven County Department of Social Services:
Conpregate Meals 93.045 59,369 §0,477 7,761
USDA Congregate 93.045 2,601 " -
Home Delivered Meals 93.045 133,114 20,554 15,225
In Home Level I 93,044 11,117 19,609 14,525
Care Management Administration 93.044 66,476 11,731 8,690
Administered by Craven County Home Heslth:
1n Home Services Level 111 93,044 18,482 3,261 2416
468,360 78,18% 51,913
Addministration for Children and Farilies
Passed through NC Department of Health and Human Services:
Division of Sucial Services:
Administered by Craven County Department of Social Services.
Work First/TANF Benefit Payments 93.558 843,360 - 344
Work First Admin 631.558 260,839 - 292,177
Work First Service 03.538 1,567,657 - £93,129
Family Support Payments 43,560 {340 [EE)) {93}
2,640,916 {53) 1,185,557
Refupee Assistance Adnxinistration 93,566 87,449 - -
1V.D Child Support Enforcement:
Administration 93.563 16,274 - 8,284
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance:
Adminisiration 93 568 17,542 . -
Energy Assistance Paymems - Direct Benefit Payments 93.568 142,839 - -
Crisis Intervention Payments 93,568 194,279 - .
354,660 - -
Administered by Craven County Health:
Child Welfare Services:
Permanency Planning:
Penmanency Planning - Families for Kids 93.645 21,032 7,011 -
Perinasency Planning - Speciat 93,645 6,110 - 2,037
Adoption Subsidy - 145,136 30,993
22,142 152,147 42,030
Fester Care and Adoption Cluster:
Title IV-E Foster Care: X
Administration 93.658 205,524 - 197,784
Foster Care - At Risk - 51,186 27,081
IV-ECPS 93.658 361,338 110,029 191,510
Fostgr Care - Direct Benefit Payments 93.658 85,604 19,710 28,228
Title IV-E Adoption Subsidy 93659 176,21% 41,784 69,908
Fotal Foster Carc and Adoption Cluster 768,985 232,769 514,511
Division of Child Development
Administered by Craven County DSS:
Subsidized Child Care Cluster:
Child Care & Development Fund - Discretionary 93.575 1,387,568 - -
Child Care & Development Fund - Mandatory ©3.5%6 616,799 - -
Child Care & Development Fund - Maich ©3.596 757,118 423,229 -
Child Care & Development Fund - Administration 93.596 175,624 40,242 .
Social Services Block Grant 93.667 33,984 - -
Temporary Assistance for Needy Famblies 93.558 538,656 - -
TANF - MOB - 721,932 -
Smart Start - 83,357 -
More at Four State Funding - 120,000 -
Sune Appropriation - 227,433 -
Tata) Subsidized Child Care Cluster 3,509,749 1,616,193 -
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS AND PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGES

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

{Page 3 of 5}
CFDA Crantor's Expenditures
Nuraber Number Federal Stale Local
Administered by County Department of Sociat Services:
Social Services Block Granu:
Family Planning:
Adopt FC 93.667 $ 128,649 § - 18,520
In-Home Services 93.667 51,898 - 7,414
in-FHome Services over 60 93,667 42,382 - 5,055
Other Services and Training 93,667 331,154 36,722 122,639
554,123 36,722 154,628
Pagsed through NC Department of Health and Human Services:
Administered by County Department of Social Services:
Independent Living - Foster Care 93.674 20,064 3472 -
Healtk Care Financing Administration
Passed through NC Department of Realth and Human Services:
Division of Medical Assistance:
Administration:
Medical Assistance Propram 93778 1,168,870 - 1,168,870
Eligibitity Workers Administration - MA 93.773 19,417 19,417 -
Medical Transportation Administration 93,778 79,035 - 79,035
Medicatd At-Risk Administration 93.778 68,029 - 2,375
Family Preservation 93.778 19,027 - -
Other:
Adult Care Iome Case Management 93,778 71,507 33,934 37,572
Transporiation Regulay 93,778 255,671 122,568 23,564
NC Health Choice 93,767 62,169 3,584 17,472
Direct Benefit Payments:
Medical Assistance Program 93,778 64,738,580 33,229,235 4,425,304
66,473,205 23,408,738 5,753,892
Ceater for Disease Control
Division of Epidemiolagy:
Administered by County Health Departmens:
Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant:
Aduls Health- Statewide Health Promotion 93,991 20,745 13,646 {547
Health Resources and Services Adminisiration
Passed through NC Depaniment of Health and Human Services:
Division of Public Health:
Family Planning 93.217 82,672 - -
Iminunization Action Plan/ Add 1o County Fanding 93,268 37,858 - 9,050
BioTerrorism Grant 93.283 55,317 - 61
Pandemic Flu Prevention 93.283 17,085 - -
Breast and Cervical Cancer Control 93.283 24,246 15,375 (9,808)
‘Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 93.358 12,377 - -
CCDG-Diseretionary 93,575 2,750 - 250
Tobaceo Use Prevention and Control 93.28% 53,083 8,000 (2,542)
Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant:
Maternal Heaith 93.994 97,544 71,428 805,904
Woentns Preveative Health $3.994 144,768 1,421 191,436
Child Health 53.504 123,301 - 959,438
651,001 96,224 1,963,68¢
Total US Department of Health and Human Scrvices 15,592,773 35,627,939 2.580,057
STATE ASSISTANCE
NC Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Social Services:
Administered by County Department of Social Services:
StaeCounty Speclat Assistance Benefits Payments - 692,822 693,975
State/County Speciat Assistance - - 79,764
Energy Assistance, Carolina Power & Light Project - 10,161 -
Food Swmp Tax Intercept - 12,568 -
Medicaid Maximization - 541,744 -
State Aid to Counties - 79,306
CP$ Expansion - 87,172 -
Family Care Giver - 33,325 -
State Foster Home - 144,636 144,636
State Adult Protective Services - 62,166 -
- 1,663,900 918,375
Division of Services for the Blind:
Administered by County Department of Social Services:
Services for the Blind - 35,245 5,033
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS AND PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGES

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

(Page d of 5)
CFDA Grantor's Expenditures
Nomber Numbey Federal State Lecal
Health Divisions:
Administered by County Health Department:
General 83,675 § -
Communicable Disease 6,343 29,025
Tuberculosis 31,587 37,105
AIDS - State 12,500 30,554
TB Medical Scrvices 1,850 -
Healzhy Carolinians 9,744 -
Minority Health 18,911 2,940
164,610 99,624
Total NC Department of Heaith and Human Services 1,863,753 1,623,034
NC Department of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention
Division of Youth Services:
Juvenife Crime Prevention Prograny
Administered by County Finance Department:
Psychological Services for Court Referred Youth 825041 7,600 .
Juvenile Restitation Fund 825181 47,991 -
Passed through County Finance Department:
Committee for Children 825000 1,200 -
Resolve 825022 36,000 -
Home-based Intervention and Treatment-Disciplined:
Teen Court 825032 12,500 -
Swructured Day Reporting 825006 90,600 -
United Cerebral Palsy - Home Based Treatment 825066 50,650 -
Total NC Department of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention 265,343 -
NC Department of Environment and Natural Resources
Matura] Resources Division:
Administered by County Seit Conservation Departinent:
Sofl Conservation State Matching Funds DSWL-2008-25 29,835 84,491
Division of Parks and Recreation:
Administered by Craven County Recreation:
Naorthwest Craven Park PARTF 2006-443 376,158 373,289
Adopt A Trail 08POBOGS 4,845 -
381,003 373,289
Division of Community Assisiance:
Administered by Craven Connty Planning:
CORE tand Use Plan 507070 16,840 6,642
Total NC Depariment of Environment
and Nawral Resources 427,678 457,780
NC Bepartment of Transportation:
Rural Qperating Assistance Program {ROAP):
Elderly Handicap EHTAP 104,895 -
General Public Transpostation {Craven} GPT 111,366 -
Work First {Craven} Waork First 16,491
Pass through Pitt County:
General Public Transportation (Pambice & Jones) GPY 51,630 -
Werk First {Pamtico & Jones} Wark First §,02¢ -
302,402 -
Administered by Craven Regional Afrport:
Annual Appropriation - State Ald o Ajrports 9.9417910 380,000 409,594
N Consortium of Small Commercial Alr Service
Developmental Pilot Program W3B1. 17700009800 83,736 -
General Aviation Terminal 41179 176,748 69.45¢
560,482 479,044
‘fotal NC Department of Transportation 862,884 479,044
NC Department of Corrections:
Administered by Craven County Day Reporting Center:
Criminal Justice Parsiership Program 025.0700-1-A 120,817 -
NC Department of Comamerce:
Administered by Craven County Economic Development
Wirthwein/Carolina Plastics 112,500 -
Department of the State Treasares:
Public Schoel Buildiag Capital Fund 368,420 -
Public School Building Capital Fund-Lottery Proceeds 1,600,800 -
Total NG Department of Public Instruction 1,969,220 -
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS AND PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGES
For the Fisczl Year Ended June 30, 2008
(Page 5 of 5)

CFDA Grantor's Expenditures

Number Number Federal Stale Local

NC Department of Adwinistration:
Division of Veterans Affairs:
Administered by Craven County Department of Veterans Services:

Veicrans Services 3 -5 2,000 % 121,444

State of North Carolina:
Pass Through Craven County Partnership for Chitdres:
Administered by Craven County Cooperative Extension:
Parents As Teachers - 54,094

NC Department of Elections:
Administered by Cooperative Extension:
Senior Health Insurance Information Program (SHIIP) - 5,000

Office of State Controller

Unauthorized Substance Abuse - 14,614 -

Fotal Federal Expenditures

Total State Expenditures
Total Local Expenditures 5 13,607,145
Federai Aviation Administration:

Administered by Craven Regional Airport
Passenger Facility Charges 96-01-C-00-BEWN 3 492,649 § -3 -
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CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS AND
PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Note1. GENERAL

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards and passenger facility charges represents
only the activity of all federal and State financial assistance programs of Craven County, North Carolina, primary
government, all blended component units, and the Airport Authority and Tourism Development Authority discretely
presented component units. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, the State Single Audit
implementation Act, and the Passenger Facility Charges Audit Guide for Public Agencies issued by the Federal
Aviation Administration, There, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or
used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

Note2.  BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedule is presented using the modified accrual basis of accounting, which is described in Note
1 to the County's basic financial statements, except that direct benefit payments made by the State of North Carolina
to eligible program beneficiaries and the value of food stamps and WIC vouchers distributed, which are not included
as expenditures in the basic financial statements, are included herein,

Note 3. RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Substantially all federal and State financial assistance programs {other than benefit payments - see Note 2) are
accounted for in the County’s governmental funds.

Noted. PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGES

Beginning February 1, 1997, and including subsequent revisions, Craven County Regional Airport Authority was
authorized to impose a passenger facility charge to a maximum of $11,160,275. Current year expenditures from
these funds are $492,649 and are included on the schedule of federal awards.

Revenue from passenger facility charges for the year ended June 30, 2008 consists of $493,246 for passenger
facility charges plus $7,218 of interest earnings from the restricted bank account. Passenger facility charges are
administered by the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) but are not considered federal awards. Their
presentation in this schedule is in accordance with FAA requitements.

Note 5. LOAN ACTIVITY

The County had the following loan activity involving State award program dollars during the current fiscal year

Grantor/Program Federal Loan Balance Loan Principal Loan Balance
Title CFDA July 1, 2007 Proceeds Repayments June 30, 2008
Number

NC Clean Water Revolving Loan
& Grant Program N/A $ 1,442,056 $ - $ 80,114 $ 1,361,942

194



